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ASSEMBLYMAN KENNETH T, WILSON: This hearing will now
come t@ order. The first thlng T will say 1s that no placards
will be allowed and you will remove them, please,

~ This is a hearing before the Assembly Commlttee on Air
and Water Pollution and Public Health, and we are.going to get
an Objectlve opinion on thls bill. Not only that, I don't
expect any outbursts from the audlence or I will have the
gallery cleared and we will have one witness come in at a time.

~ We are here as Leglslators_to hear opinions on this bill,
to hear 'both sides, and that is thé'way this hearing will be
conducted. So/l@ng as everyone uhderstands that, we will get
‘along fine. | | , |

I would like, first of all to have any Leglslators here,
who wish to testify, please come forward and sign up. As far
as legislative'responsibility,and,protQCOl, we first call on
LegislatOrs to testify, so if you will please come\forward and
sign so that we will know who is here. / B

All right, I would now like to open the hearing on ’
Agsembly Bill.No; 2212, sponsored by Assemblyman Dennis. This
is a hearing before the Assembly Committee on Air and Water
Pollution and Public Health. I am Kenneth T. Wilson, Chairman
of the Committee, from Essex County. To my right is John
Fay from Middlesex County: to my left is Herb Kiehn, Union .
County; and on my far left is Assemblyman Black from Salem County.

our first witness will be Assemblyman Dennis who is the
sp@nsor of the bill. Assemblyman Dennls, " (Boos)

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I don't believe you heard me. If
we can't have -an orderly hearing - that's the only. type hearing
I run and this Committee will attend - I will have to clear
the gallery and I wouldn't want to do this because there are
quite a few people here.

J OHN N. DENN I S: Mr. Chairman, Committee members,
ladies and gentlemen: I,ammappearingmbéfore you.todéy on behalf
of a bill which I and nine co-sponsors believe to be a major and
necesgsary step if we are to clean up the environment in which we
live.



The litter problem in America is not new. It has been
with us and growing since the first colonists arrived at
Jamestown. As our country filled up and land became even
scarcer, the problem worsened. Over the last three decades,
the population explosion, risihgﬁaffluence“and more leisure

time have combined to magnify the piles of discarded articles

.

marring our countryside. But there has been a single develop-
ment during the last 10 years or so that has come close to
overshadowing them all, and that is the massive switch by
industry and retailers to the non-returnable beverage container.
It is generally agreed, I think, that we must act, and w
act now, both on the proliferation of litter on our streets and

highways and in our parks and places of recreation, and on the
more long-range problem of dispasing‘of solid waste. Let's

keep New Jersey the "Garden State”, nhot the "garbage state."
While not an ultimate solution, this bill, we believe, is a long
st@p,taward;the goal we all seek. '

In 1969, 43.8 billion containers for beer and soft drinks
were manufactured. If the trend to throw away containers _
continues, as it is now, it is estimated that by 1980 over ,}
100 billion containers will be produced and discarded every year. j

Non-returnables, I suppose, have their attractions. They
are easier‘far,the store and convenient for the customexr. They
are.éiég more expensive. It has been estimated that Americans
could save $705 million a year if they purchased all of their
soft drinks in returnable bottles - that's just soft drinks -
and they could save an additional $800 million a year by pur-
chasing beer in aney—back'containerse Add to that the
estimate that the cost of just picking up litter in the United
States runs to more than $500 million a year and you get some
idea of the price we pay for non-treturnables. That last figure,

by the way, is just for litter collection, not regular refuse
pickups. And if you look around you, all of the litter is by |
no means being picked up. -



Putting these cost figpres plug the effect on our environma2nt against
the ease and comfort‘of non-returnables, perhaps it is time to echo a
- quote from Sir Winston Churchill: "This is not the time for ease and comfort!"
Since the introduction of this bill in March, I have received a large
volume of mail and phone calls, pro and con, from interested parties and
citizens. I have also made personal visits to area breweries and bottle
distribution firms to get face-to~face reactions from the people who will be
‘ mostiimmediately affected should this bill become'law.

I have been told, among other things, that it is people, not containers,
who litter. This argument could be, and is, used'egainst proposals for any
kind of firearms control or against any ban or control of narcotics or drugs,
or upon harmful or hazardous merchandise. Thete are some people, I well
realize, who will continue to litter the countryside with bottles and cans,
but I believe they will be far less likely to do so when they stand.
to lose five cents on each container. And even if they do throw away the

- ;containers, there is always the chance of‘some enterprising youngsters

- picking them up and turning them in for the refund.

I can remember as a child, and I am sure many of you can too, collecting
the empty beverage bottles in the house and returning them to the corner
store. This not only helped pay for many a movie or ice cream soda, but

it helped to keep our community clean. I think it is a custom we ought to

revive.
We are then told that adoption of this pill will cost jobs. Let's
. leok at the beer industry, a major one in New Jersey. Certainly the |
trend toward non-returnables hasn't meant more jobs but less. U. s.

Department of Commerce flgures tell us that between 1958 and 1967 the number



of breweries in the United States dropped from.262 to 188. Over the same
period, the number of persons employed in breweries declined by 15.6 per
cent, an 11,400 job reduction and a resulting payroll loss of $97,596,800.
The reason is fairly obvious; with the virtual phasing out of returnable
containers it is no longer noccssary‘to maintain area plants to which
bottles can be returned. . And who can say a similar reduction will not
take place in the soft drink induétry if there is the complete .changeover
to throwaways that is predicted by 19752

Then it is said: "Oh, people don't want returnables," I think the best
answer to that is that in most instances the people can't get them. And
here we come to what I feel may be the nub of the problem, the attitude
of the chain super markets who have decided they are just not going to
bother with returnable containers.

The consumer really hasn't much, if any, choice. The stores either
don't deal in returnable containers at all or they put such items in
unobstrusive parts of the store where the customer isn't likely to find
them. It has been alleged (by Crusade for a Cleaner Environment) that

big chains have warned bottlers they will replace their brands with the

chain' i -
1n's own private brand unless the bottlers supply throwaways only.

This bill does not go as far as a law recently enacted in Oregon,
which requires that bottles be capable of reuse and even requires that

a standard bottle be used. - I am not sure we are ready

to go this far. What the markets would do with the returned containers is
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a matter for conjecture. We would hope that glass containers would be
reusable and sent backkto the bottlefs in thé same trucks fhét bring new
supplies to the stores. Perhaps non-reusable containers wbuld be sent
to recycling plants or’Simply disposed of in refuse collection. Anything
would be bétfér than Havihg them thrown on our stfeets} roads and parks.

Another question: 1Is this a proper field for legislation? Can't we
rely on volunteer efforts? What about‘the recfcling centers now being run
by civic gfbups and.manufaqturing concerns?

I think the recycling projects are doing a tremendous job; There is
a great deal of enthusiasm, but I question whether these efforts alone
will prove»to'be‘gnough in the long run. The top federal official in
charge of solid waste problems last week predicted a tdtal federal ban
or tax on non-returnables within two years, and added it was "idealistic"
to assume that'volunteer recycling projects could make much of a dent in

the waste disposal problem.

Legislation, by its very nature, involves a measure of compulsion.
But I believe that in éertain.circumstances if takes leadership by public
officials and a measure of law to effect real'refbrm. We believe this law
would be on the positive side of the ledger, a "do" law rather than a
"don't", an incentive to New Jersey residents to keep New iersey‘clean.

In conclusion, I suggest three amendments to Assembly Bill 2212 be
made:

First: the date must be changed to allow more time for industry



Second: I have asked theycdmmittee Chairman, in a
letter, previously, that the bill should exclude wax coated
paper containers. - . .

Third: An idea that I got from the Oregon bill and
from loocking at the streets,'and T think it is not only an.
environmental pf@blem but aysafety'facthﬂ particularly on
the beaches where people take the cans and throw the little
metal tabs away. This would be: No person shali sell or
offer for sale at retail in this State any metal beverage
container so designed and constructed that alpart of the
container is detachable in opening the container without
the aid of a can opener. _

That concludes my prepared statement. I do have a
copy for the Sten@grapher@ And, at this time, I am prepared
to answer any questions the Committee might have.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Fay?

- ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: I have a few questions, Assemblyman.

In your testimony you said that this would not affect
the cost to the consumer? )

MR. DENNIS: No. I don't know, maybe because I'm the
sponsor of this bill, but money is always tight so I try to
buy my beverages in returnable cgntalnerse As a mattexr of
fact” I like my beer - I know it shows a little bit -- I
drink a few brews and so does my wife. In Northern New Jersey
there are two large breweries, Schaefer -and Rheingold, and
we buy our case in returnable bottles. By doing this, comparing
the bottle with bottle, we save 53¢ a case - the throw-away
bottles versus the returnable bottles. Now if you use return-
able bottles versus cans, you would save 65¢. These, by the
way, are regulated by the State, the beer would be regulated
by the State. The quarts also, you save about 34¢ on a case
of beer.

As far as soda bottles, this varies from store to store.
This price is set by the stores themselves. I know I did check
some of the bottles. We have a soda company up in Northern
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New Jersey, Bookdale Beverage Company, and 95% of their.
bottles are returnable and they are a lot lessyexpensive
than the regular throw-aways. |

_ 'ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: But your major premise then is that
the cost to the censumer, in the beverage field, the alcoholic
and n@n-@lé@h@lic; that this would bring the prices down?
Does your research prove that?

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS They would save money. I don't
think it would bring prices down. Obviously, if they're going
to pay s nickel it would increase the initial cost, but they
would save money by returning them. Even now, if they could
get them they would save money but the pr@blém is, you can't
get them in most stores. | '

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: The second point that you made,
referring to the empl@yment proklem or which'possibly could
become an unemployment problem. |

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Well, I realize that there are
a lot of people from South Jersey here because of the bottling
industry, but I really don't think there would be a loss of
jobs as much as it would be @ffset by the increase in jobs.
Your &tores, for instance, obviously 1if they are going to take
‘r@turnablé bottles, they would have to add, it is estimated,
one-quarter man-hours per day, which would be appr@kimately
two hours. That means that the retail stores would probably.
have to add more helpm I think the breweries would probably
have to add more help if they“te going to have returnable
bottles. If, for instance, Millers, which no longer has any
breweries on the East Coast, if you had to send the bottles
back to Milwaukee, you would add Jjobs in transportation in
returning the bottles. So, actually, it would help the
transportation industry. Again, if y@u“re going to recycle
these, obviously, when the bottles come back to the stores, you
are going to have to do something. So it may be more of a
shift in jobs, rather than a loss in jobs.
| ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: And is there any reason why you have
ilimited this bill to the beverages?
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ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS : This is a question that has often
been asked of me, too. What about the other items, such as
ketchup, which practically every home uses, or peanut butter?
But I know, we buy a big jar of peanut butter, it"s,prétty
popular with the youngsters, still that lasts us a week; where
we go through a six-pack of soda a day. So I think it's a : .
guestion of guantity. And I don't think people, when they go |
out on the highways or a beach would take a bottle of ketchup ;
and throw it out the window, or throw the jar of peanut butter
on the beach, where‘they would with the beverages.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Kiehn?

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Yes. Assemblyman Dennis, are beer
cans, as we know them today, ~ you referred to beer cans - to
be a returnable item?

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Yes. This bill would say that all
beverages must be in returnable containers. So they could
still use cans. We're not saying, like the Oregon Bill, that
they must be reused. We're encouraging recycling. It's not
outlawing the use of throw-aways, as we say, not reusable, just .
saying that they get back to the stores. I am leaving it to
the ingenuity of our business firms in the State to get together .
and decide which would be the best way, whether to recycle them
or to reuse them, and I think they know best.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: In other words then, according to
the bill, there would be 5¢ added to the cost of a beer con-
tainer, that is metal, -- |

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: I don't know how much they would
add to it. Maybe they would add more or maybe they would

add less, but you would receive 5¢ back when you took the
container back to the store, a mihimum of 5¢., Naturally, if
it's a quart, it might be more. I believe the Garden State
Dairy Products which use the big half gallon. containers of milk,
I think they get 25¢ as a deposit. And, again, as my _
youngsters say "in the older days" wetused‘to buy the gallon of x
cider and the cider mill used to gét a Quarter, So, it's a N

5¢ minimum but it could be more. R
8 |



ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: In other words, then, on canned
beer and soda, the case would cost $1.20 more. ;

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Not necessarily. It could.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: It could. _,

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: It could cost less, it could cost
more.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Well, one of the things that bothers
mé, I would like to know if you have any suggestions as to how
a large supermarket could handle the return of cans, that is,
storage in these places where the cans would be brought back..
evidently in a bag, and they would probablykxythfownvin some
disposal center to be picked up.

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Yes. I think, again, maybe we
could have a new type industry. We have Masters for the home
and maybe there could be a large Master for these supermarkets
for these cans, which would condense them to a small package
and then be turned over to their reclamation center. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Another question that T would like
to clarify in my own mind: Do you have any idea of how the
cans would be reused, that is howthey may be cleaned and --

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: No, the cans would not be reused.
They would be recycled, like they are now in our town and in
many of the towns throughout the State where they are collecting
tin cans and aluminum cans on Saturdays. What they do, they
recycle them, they chop them up and use them again, suéh as
paper to be recycled, not reused. There's a difference in
the terminology, recycle and reuse. It's not like a bottle
that would be cleaned and reused; this would be recycled.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I notice you did mention that the
cutoff date of January 1 is not realistic.

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: No, it is not realistic at all.
Again., I'm not in the soda industry or the beer industry but
I have been advised by some people in the industry and other
environmental groups that it would take a lot longer time
for the beer industry to make the changes than the soda

9



industry so they should be given a longer length of time.
without guestion, I think we have to allow some time. I -
think Oregon is allowing them about a year or so.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: You also mention returnables. I
might say I did receive a letter from Canada Dry, I believe i
at Neptune, and they said that their production was about
600,000 cases per vear when there were returnable bottles and 1
only 275,000 were returned, which was not even half. Do you
think that is a figure to be determined in this particular-
area? ’ '

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Two things on this. First, I did
also receive that letter from Canada Dryv. And, again, it goes
back to my speech, they say pecople don’t want returnables,
there is no demand for this. I know the Pepsicola Company
tried this in New York City and the big thing is the super-
markets don't want this, not the people. You go to the
supermarket - I go to one of the big chain stores and the
@nly returnable I can get there is the quart bottle of Coke. ]
The supermarkets won't handle them. It's not the people. }
And, obvidusly, if they don't have them, they can't sell them.
The reason they can't sell them is because the supermarkets
say they don't want them. And they have been threatened -

I don't know whether it's true or not - that if they don't
use throwaways they would go to their own brand, which you
do see in many .large supermarkets, they have their own
brand name. But I did check out where I buy my liguor that

the 7 ounce bottle of Canada Dry, if you buy an - I think
they come in 8 or 6 ounce bottles, if you buy a sixpack, you
would save about 3¢ a bottle by using the returnable.
ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: The problem, as I see it, though,
is that returnable bottles probably would increase the cost
to the consumer because of the fact that the bottles would
have to be cleaned. I don't know if a bottle going through

the process of cleaning is actually sanitary because some of
them might just to missed. ,
ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Well, they used to do it many times.
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They still do it in the milk industry, a lot of them. As
far as the cost, it's cheaper. That's what I tried to
emphasize.

I do have a little brochure here, put out by the
Crusade for Cleaner Environment, which shows that you save
anywhere from three to four cents per drink. And, as I
mentioned, as I pointed out in my own case, by using returnable
“ bottles, I am saving 53¢. If it's a hot week and I'm drinking
two cases of beer a week, I'm saving over $1.00 a week, so
that's $50 a year that I'm saving by using returnable bottles.
So the consumer would save money; there's no question.

'ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I presume the cost of the bottle,
whether it be returnable or non-returnable, would be about the
same in manufacturing cost. |

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: No, I believe not. The glass, I
believe, - again, I'm sure the glass industry will tell you,
if you compare a Coke bottle - and this is another tricky one,
the 6 ounce loocks almost like the 8 ounce bottle in the
supermarket, but the 6% ounce Coke bottle is that greenish
glass that's much thicker than the other glass. This is just
from my personal observation. Again, I'm not an expert in the
glass field but I am sure they do cost more and they are
heavier glass.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Do you know the exact difference in
cost? '

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: No, I don't. I know it's more.
But, of CQurse@ they could be reused.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Well, one of my concerns is the cost
- to the consumer.

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Well, if you‘re forhthevcgnsumer,
you will be for this bill. It is going to save the consumer
mOneya ’
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black?
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I have several questions of
Assemblymén Dennis. |

I would first like to ask you, with the concentration

11



of sodas being sold by your majorrsgpermarketsﬂ.and'with

the great volume of returned bottles, as your bill WOuld'
indicate we should handle, where would the supermarkets store
these. I am wondering primarily whether you have given this
very much thought.

We're talking about a facility which is designed to
market foodstuff to be consumed by people of the State. The
bottles being brought back, in all probability, would not be
brought back clean. They would have to be stored. If they
were stored, T do not believe they could be stored in the
same building for sanitary purposes. Now, I would assume'
then that we would probably have to construct facilities at
each supermarket to retain the bottles, since they now have
a monetary value.

Would you agree with this?

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Most of your supermarkets, at
least in the northern part of New Jersey and the ones I have
seen in my travels throughout the State, are located in a
shopping area where there is large room for parking,
obviously they are relying on the people that get there and
they have to park their cars, and I think possibly they could
Just add a little shed or something very inexpensive to put
these bottles in. I don't think it would add that much cost.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Well, I would ask,at this ' .
point you indicate that the Crusade for Cleaney Environment
indicates that to utilize returnable bottles would reduce the
cost to the consumer. But we mention such things now as
supermarkets having to construct facilities to store the bottles;
we're talking about shipment of bottles across several states
in order to get back, be cleaned and refilled, and I wonder -
I understand the State of Oregon has gone into this approach
and T wonder if you have any information to submit to this
Committee to justify your position. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes. As far as these supermarketsQ'
we have here a Bottle Survey, 1971, which is a California
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supermarket report, and california is almost like New Jersey,
the southern part, it's densely populated. And I do have a
report here - the Bottle Survey, 1971, all broken down by
computers, and so forth, as to how much it would cost for the
returnable bottles. It varies. There are eight stores here.
I am not going to go into this but I will be glad to leave a
copy for the record. (See p. 142 ) The minimum would be
about 1l¢ to 2¢ at the most. »

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: What I'm wondering primarily is,
what hasvbeen the experience in the State of Oregon?

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: It has just started. I don't know.
Tt has just gotten underway. I don't know. But this is broken
down. You mentioned the cost. this is broken down by labor
cost, the transportation cost, and inventory —,labor¢mequipment
and inventory, which I will beNglad to submit for the record.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you. No further questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank‘you very much, Assemblyman.

ASSEMBLYMAN DENNIS: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Our next speaker is Congressman
Charles W. Sandman, Jr., Second District of New Jersey.
CHARLES W. SANDMA N: Thank you, Mr.
Chairman. ‘

I have a statement which I would like to file and make
a part of the record. (See p. 161 ) I don't intent to read
the statement here to the Committee. However, I will narrate
on those points that I feel are the most important.

At the outset, I would like you to remember that I
served in this Government, in .the State Senate, for a decade.
I know how important these committee hearings are. I know
the great weight that they cast upon the fate of important
legislation such as this. And this is the reason, really, why
I came all the way from Washington to testify against this
piece of legislation which I think is dangerous, which I think
is impractical, and certainly cannot achieve those goals which
I am sure the sponéor, in good conscience, wants to achieve.
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Having been in the legislativé'field for all thésé
years, I am familiar, as I am sure the C@mmlttee is, with
those fields that are p@pular t@ be for and those that are
popular not to be for. The‘argument for cleaning up the
ecology is so much of an attractive"thing these days that
it's something that attracts pe@ple to be for. it's one of
those things that here in the Legislature we used to refer
to, and I'm sure they still do, as one of those "motherhood"
bills: to be against this kind @f‘thing, you're against
motherhood, you're for sin. And this, of course, is not the
case. :

Now sbme may believe that, because the largest glass
industry in the world is in my district, I am here to testify
on behalf of the glass industry. Well, I~amﬂ ©f course,
interested‘in the glass industry; I'm interested in the
30,000 people that make their livelihood from that industry:
I'm interested in the thousands of people who invest in that
industry: and I am interested in the tremendous contribution
that\that industry makes to the economy of the nation at all
levels of government. But I ém interested, even more than
that, the same as the sponsor of this bill is interested, in
doing something to keep our environment as it should be: I'm
interested in doing everything that I possibly can to curtail
pollution, which I am sure he is: and, if I th@ught>for one
moment that this measure would accomplish any of those things,
notwithstanding the fact»that a big‘part of my 4100000
constituents are inlsome way benefitting from the glass industry,
I would still Suppgrt this bill because the protection @f the
énvirOnment is far more imp©rtant@ And this I b@lievei as the
sponsor believes. But this is not a practical Way to reach
that conclusg,one B ‘ |

There are many arguments, and I don't want to bring
these up just becauSe I f@ll@W@d the sponsor but I have to
because I d@n t have enough time to come back again. I have
to be in the Nation's Capitol at 1 o 'elock and I can't stay
here too long. But I do have to comment upon a couple of things
which he said which don't make sense and cannot possibly prove
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the,argument which he has presented.

1. He claims that this is going to be something which
is great for the consumer. Wé have information that shows
that it is not great for the consumer; if it does anything, .it
is going to cost the consumer more. And I will deal with
that later.

Secondly, he on one hand says that it's going to
increase employment because it is going to require more people
to do more jobs. Doesn't he know that if you do this you
increase costs? And if you increase costs, it can oniy be
passed off to the consumer. Who else pays the cost? So that

" argument is very inconsistent.

As far as the consumer benefitting, he should then
study a little more about the cost of the container itself.
The non-returnable bottle costs less than half the cost of
a metal container. It is the cheapest kind of container.

It diminishes the cost of production which allows the finished
product to go to the consumer at its lowest price.' Why is it,
for example, that the milk industry is in almost- total production
of non~-returnable containers? Do you know why? - I know why
because I lived on a dairy farm almost all of my boyhood.

Because it costs an awful lot of money to wash bottles. And
that cost has to be passed on to the consumer and nobody else.

So let's not kid ourselves. You do the consumer no big deal

by passing this bill. ' -

And before I pass over too much more, maybe I should give
you some real facts about a place where this was tested. Our
neighbor across the Hudson River,® in the State of New York.

The Pepéi Cola Company attempted to find out what would happen

if you put a 5¢ deposit on Pepsi Cola bottles. ’Duringmthe year,

in their 16 ounce bottles, there was sold 14% million in this

one area where the test.was>being conducted. It was not a citywide
test. Eleven million of the 14% million, for which the consumer
'paid a nickel apiece, were not returned. Now, if that isn't
concrete proof that this thing is not going to achieve the result
that it seeks to achieve, I don't know what is.
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Now, Mr. Chairman, the bill, A-2212, is impractical
and cannot possibly do the job which I know that the sponsors
conscientiously want to do. I am not going to dwell upon
those intricacies and‘those things which are written in this
bill that, as a Lawyer, I must say to you are only going to “
invite an endless chain of litigation. I am going to confine #
my remarks to the heart of the issue as to whether or not this
bill really is in the best interest of the people. ; ;

The Congress, in 1969, created a Council on Environmental |

Quality and then, recently, they created the Environmental
Protection Agency to stimulate techh@logy to establish national :
priorities to adopt better methods for solving the waste i
disposal problem. The objective of that Bill is worthwhile [
and certainly aimed at establishing a better way to control
waste and litter.
o ~In the last three years, the Federal Government has,
on the advice of the Nation's top experts, decided that the _
answer to this lies solely in one area, and that is salvage | N
and recycling. This is what the best experts in the Nation :
testified and told the Congress of the United States when it . |
adopted those measures.

You cannot legislate the object of litter out of .
existence and think that you have in any way eliminated or
curtailed that problem. The objective here is not to dis-
continue the use of the thing that may become litter. The
objective, I think, is to keep those things from being placed

in places where they should not be. You should not penalize
the litter; you should penalize the litter-bug. (Applause)

The method suggested by Assembly Bill 2212 in banning
the non-returnable container, which would keep it out of
existence for the most part because that's what would happen,
is truly an exercise in futility. It is parallel to another
ill-conceived proposition. If you are .going to cure the litter
problem or the/refusenprgblem by eliminating the non-returnable
container, you could set out to do a far greater job, if you 'ﬂ
wanted to go to that extreme. Why not take on the massive sewage ‘
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problem that we have in New Jersey the same way.
Do you realize that if you attacked the sewage problem
in the same way as the sponsors of this bill are attempting
to attack the litter and refuse problem, you know what you
would ask the people to do? You would ask 7% million people
to leave New Jersey. (Applause)
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Now, the first time you .applauded
I thought that was going to be sufficient but, if you.are
going to continue evety time you agree with a speaker's point -
Iﬂamug©ing to clear the gallery. I told you that at the
beginning of the hearing. We don't need that. Continue, please.
CONGRESSMAN. SANDMAN ¢ '
Imposing a deposit will not alleviate the problem.
If ygu want to solve the solid wasté.problem, you have ‘to
deal with all kinds of containers, you have to deal with all
kinds of things that constitute refuse and constitute litter.
Now, let‘s be practical about this. Let's go back to
that era in your life and mine, that the sponsor talks about,
about when you.gathered some bottles on a Saturday morning to
get enough money to . go. to the movies and maybe buy YOurngirl
a lollypop. You collected every bottle that you could collect
and you took it to the corner store, and that corner grocer he
looked at you with a jaundiced look and he didn't want to buy
2ll of those bottles back and he looked over each one to make
sure ‘'you bought it from him. This he did. o ‘
Take the same set of facts. This bill goes so far that
you would have to have a deposit on a tin can, and the largest
tin can company in the world is on the other side of the
Delaware River in another state. Do y@u think the corner grocer
is going to want to pay a nickel for that can that he didn't
'sell? Of course not. And you are not going to have these
things returned either. ‘
 Now I notice too that again - of course, over these
many years the news media hasn't always agreed with Charlie
Sandman and I don't expect them to do that now, but I notice
that the New York Times and several other responSible papers

17



have endorsed this pie@eygfulegislatibng Now, I would like

to call to the attenti@n‘quthe m@dia,.especially the New York
Times, the n@nmr@turnablembOEtlé by,éveryb@dg“swfigures, not
mine, amounts to only 2%% of the Nation's litter and refuse.
That's all. But discarded newswprint;,includingwthe New York
Times, represents 57% of the Nation's litter and refuse. Now,
let us ask the New York Times, don't you think it would be a
good.idea, since you're sponsoring this bill, to say that
everybody that buys a copy of the New York Times sh@uld“pay a
nickel deposit so that it would not be deposited in the litter
pile? |

Well, it would be the same thing, fellows, and it's a
good. idea, .and maybe you should find out the position of the
editorial staff of that great paper and see what they want
to do. ‘> _

The New Jersey glass industry, almost all of which is
located in my Congressional District, happens to be the
largest of its kind, not only in the State or the Country but
the largest in the world. It's located there because we
happen to have the best silica sand that there is in the
world, most of that coming from the COunty I live in. And
this is why it"s situated there. Thousands of people work
‘in those plants and thousands upon thousands of children have
been raised as a result of those plants and theyhve been there
more than a hundred yearse |

I happen to be one person who seems to be a little
proud of that operation. I'm prQudIQf‘the people who work
there; I'm proud of the things that are produced there; and
I am also satisfied that they're tryiﬁg to do something about
the ecology along with other people, in fact, moreso than other
people. ' |

During the Congressional recess, I went through the
District for the primary purpose ofAlQQking into the
unemployment problem which is reported in my area as being
the highest in the State. In the glass industry I didn't
- £ind any cutoff of j@bs, I found unfilled jobs. That's how
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important that industry is in South Jersey - unfilled. Any-
body who wants to work in the 2nd Congressional District of
New Jersey can, today, if they want to work, get a job in
one of the four major glass plants - if they want to work.
This is what those plants mean tc the 2nd Congressional
District. ‘ .

In addition to that, I also found that they were
doing something about trying to recycle glass. And I visited
each of the four major plants, two in Salem County and two
in Cumberland County. They are paying $20 a ton to Boy Scouts,
Girl Scouts, and anybody who wants to bring glass to the
plant. They are setting up special days, and they have been
doing this for over a vear, for'receiving the glass from
these people at an exact time when the weighmaster will be
there to take it off your hands, and at an exact time when
company employees will stack the stuff where it should be.
and I have gotten some very interesting figures from these
people that I think you ought to have.

- If you think they are just in the business to clutter
up the country and what-not, let me call these figures to
youxr attention. |

In the first quarter, where this was attempted in
the country, in the quarter July through September of 1970,

42 million glass containers were recycled. This was the
beginning of the program. In the succeeding quarter, ending
December 31, 1970, the quantity recycled jumped to 65 million.
In the first quarter of 1971 it jumped to 96 million. And

what do you think it reached in this last qﬁarter? 175 million.

So don't try to tell me that the glass industry isn't
trying to be cooperative. I know it is; I've been there.

And I invite this Committee, and especially the Sp@nsars of
this bill, to go £here so that they may see what has
happened. ' |

- The $20 a ton that they’re paying for the recycling of
broken glass is a higher cost, much higher cost, than if they
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start from raw material all the way. So, econémically, this
is no big deal for the glass industry but,in the best interest
of the environment, they're doing this anyway.

_ Now, in :closing, I want to call to the Legislators®:
attention something which I saw happen which I am sure affects
them. And, before.geiting into that, I don't want anybody who
favors this bill to think that I am preferring economics over
ecology. That is not the case. I have a record in support of
the ecology of this country which I will place in competition
with any Legislator that breathes in any state.

The largest piece of legislation passed in the United
States Congress, which only became a piece of legislation
passed by the House of Representatives on September 9 of this
year, was my bill, the bill that has to do with curtailing
and controlling the dumping of refuse in the ocean and tidal’
waters. »

I think the.Législature”should'be told what happens
in one area there because it affects what you are doing here.

That particular bill passed the House of Representatives
by a vote of 308 to 3. As I said, it's one of those "motherhood"
bills. However, the same bill had in it a very dangef@us
provision which would have nullified the right of any state
to have concurrent jurisdiction and, in effect, would have
repealed the laws of New Jersey and 31 other states that have
to do with the dumping of refuse in the ocean or the tidal
waters. In fact, the exact language in the bill, before it
was amended = with my amendment said:

"No state shall adopt or enforce any regulation
relating to any activity regulated by this title."

Now, I thought that it would be rather simple to amend
this out of the bill because, in my opinion, that language is
unconstitutional. It certainly violates state's rights as set
forth in the U. S. Constitution. My amendment simply said:

"Nothing in this Act shall be construed as preempting
any state, federal'territoryg'Or‘c®mm©hwealth, or subdividion
thereof from imposing any requirement or liability.”
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Now, the.amazing thing about the treatment of this
amendment, which is the only reason why I am mentioning this
to you, was that the amendment should have been a popular
amendment because it did no" more than knock out an uncon-
stitutional provision of a bill and only gave to the states
those rights that the Constitution ‘gives to the states anyway.
Who can say that a state should not legislate and say how a
ship should be loaded in a New Jersey port? It shouldn’t .
happen. :
‘ At any rate, the amazing thing of it all, the amendment
that I offered, which should have taken every vote, only passed
the House of Representatives by one vote. /Now, what do you
think the argument used against the amendment was? And this
is the meat of my argument.

The advocates who did not want to give states their
constitutional rights to have a concurrent jurisdiction said -

“and it's easy to get this testimony if you want to get it --—
the states are too slow to react and when they do - get this -
they overreact. They claimed that,because environmental-
legislation had become such an "apple pie" issue, the states
would become prone to ramrod poorly conceived and poorly
written and inadequate legislation that was emotional and po-
litically popular. This is why the amendment almost failed.

Now I resent those claims and I said so on the floor
of the House of Representatives on the date the bill was
under consideration.

I said at the outset that I served ten years of my
life in the State Senate here, and I am very proud of those
ten years. I still have a profound respect for every man
or woman who was ever elected to the New Jersey Legislature.

I think it is one of the greatest positions and one of the
greatest honors that any man or woman can ever achieve. It
certainly was one of the highlights of my life. I still have
that same profound respect. I said so in your defense in the
Congress of the United States. Please donﬁt-let me down by
passing any kind of legislation as poorly conceived as this.
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Thank you. . : g fo .

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Congressman, then you are saying
that the Federal Government is acting as far as recycling is
concerned or recovering our resources? What is the Federal
Government doing to offset this problem that we do have with
non-disposable items, bottles and so forth? I see in your
testimony you mentioned the Resources Recovery Act of 1970
which authorized the Federal Government to spend up to
$460 million, but we know there is a difference between
authorization and appropriation. How much is appropriated for
this? ‘ . ,

CONGRESSMAN SANDMAN: $460 million.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: That was appropriated? It wasn't
just authorized? , ' ‘

 'CONGRESSMAN SANDMAN: It was authorized and appropriated
in 1970. It has gotten off to a good start but I must frankly
admit to you, it's in its infancy stage and certainly hasn't
attained the results we would hope it would, yet. It hasn't
had a chance. ‘

- ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Fay?

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Congressman, of that $460 million of
federal monies, how many of those dollars are appropriated for
New Jersey? , v ,

CONGRESSMAN SANDMAN: Well I have no way of telling.

And, quite frankly, the $460 million, I voted for it, I was

one of the cosponsors of the bill. They can't handle that

much money in two years, let alone one year. This is designated
over three years. In my opinion, they're not going to be able
to do it in three or four years because you've got to set up

the machinery. But one thing that we did do, we made it
available so that if they could facilitate it the money would

be there. _ |
' Under this Act, I don't think any amounts are allocated
to the various states. Under the program, as you will read

" in my remarks here, these federal grants amount to 75% federal
money which can be matched by any state or subdivision thereof
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for the establishment of better methods for dlSpOSlng of solid
waste. ‘ . ’ ‘
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: It's on this point, I feel, that the
critics of state government say we-.overreact. I feel that
'sometimes we're forced to because the federal government
doesn't act. And I feel that a good'example of that is where
you quoted the top experts. Six months ago the federalkggvern-
merit and other experts were telling us that phosphates had to
go.-immediately and last week,wewhad;theWSurgeon.General.and a
few other experts telling us to let . the fish die in:ordergtb
protect’ your children. You have that kind of a choice.

So, if anything, I'm a critic of the federal government
in this area of ecology. I feel they haven't spent enough-
money on research and toco often their,research has been mis-:
leading to us. And I most certainly hope that Commissioner ..
Sullivan‘will let this Committee and the.people of the State:
of New Jersey know just how much money we're applying for
and just how much money is being appropriated, particularly for
southern Jersey where you have the glass industry and certainly
in the northern and central part of our State where there is
not only an ecology problem,but also the unemployment problem
coupled with it.

CONGRESSMAN SANDMAN: The overall plcture of state law,
T must frankly say to you, is in a far better condition and
position than people give them credit. 1In the 32 states that
T mentioned that have laws affecting the carrying of refuse
that's going to be dumped somewhere, those states have better
‘laws than people think they have. ‘And, truthfully, for the
most part, collectively, they have more control than the
federal legislation gives. See? When you get to the point
of what can the federal government do, I don't think the
federal government should intervene anywhere where a state
has control. The big vehicle that you need the federal
government for is to supply the vast amounts of money that
will be needed for some of these areas that the state cannot
better do in another way. So I am not critical of anything
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the states have done, I think they've done a great job.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: The immediate problem that we have
in Union and Middlesex Counties with the State's right argument
is New York City dumping raw sewage and the State of New Jersey
is completely impotent, completely incapable of doing anything
about it. There is a new Port Authority structure going up in
New York City and there not even secondary let alone primary treat-
ment : 18 given to the sewage problem. So I don't know how
this logic carries. We might have the strongest laws in the
Union but New York State has no law at all and we are being
destroyed on the New Jersey side.

CONGRESSMAN SANDMAN: Well, again in some of these
areas you have federal jurisdiction only because of interstate
traffic being involved and interstate commerce, and they are
necessary to stop what you are talking about, going from one
state to the other. However, the control within the state
is best done by the State Legislature and not by Congréss;kwﬁ

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: My only comment is that I would
like to express my appreciation to the Congressman for
spending so much time with us, realizing that he has an
appointment in Washington.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Kiehn?

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Congressman Sandman, I did notice
that you have given us quite a comprehensive report and with
the statements that you have made it will enable this Committee
to arrive at a determination. v

You did go off the subject a little bit on ocean dumping
and I would just like to take this opportunity, inasmuch as you
went off a little bit,to ask a favor for the State of New
Jersey on revenue source sharing so that we will have some
relief on our property taxes in the state. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: C@ngressmanﬂ I want to thank you
for coming here to testify before the Committee. As
Chairman of this Committee for the last four years, Assemblyman
Fay‘and I have talked about this, as far as federal government
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participation, and we would like you to take back a ‘
message. Number one, that we would like them to maybe

funnel more money into sewage upgradeing. According to

laws passed by the federal government, they can fund up to
55% for improving sewage treatment and the State pay 25%.

And we have our 25% but the Federal Government has @hly
contributed about 15 to 20%. A lot of times we hear grandiose
statements = and this is not directed to yoﬁ“but to the
cgmgxessl-u,manyygxandiase.stateménts”aboutmpollutionmbut
apparently we don’t get the funds from the federal government
that we need. We realize that we have a limited base, as far
as revenue. I have talked to you at great length about the
off-shore dumping, how there was guite a little hassle in
Congress to .get this through . and finally itﬂdidﬂgo,thr@ugh,“
but, in turn, we were forced to pass a law that this affected
the State of New‘Jersey” that only affected our vessels, yet
vessels from all over the eastern seaboard could still dump
off our shore, so we had federal legislation passed.

So we want to work together and we hope that the
federal government will participate a little more financially
as far as some of these programs where they say they are going
to provide funds but don't provide the correct amount.

. Thank you very much. |

CONGRESSMAN SANDMAN: Thank you. .. (Applause)

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I would like to now call Assemblyman
Hurlevy. |

‘I would appreciate it if the rest of our. .speakers - we
have a great number to testify - if you will limit yourselves
to around five minutes. I am not going to hold you exactly to
five minutes. TIn turn, if your sﬁatement is longer than this,
hand it in and we will have it printed in full in the record
for the Committee and the rest of the Legislators to study.

In turn, we will also have an opportunity to gquestion you so
that we might get a diversified opinion. But please do not
read a complete statement and try to limit yourself to about
five minutes.
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All right, Assemblyman Hurley.

JAMES R. HURLEY: Mr. Chairman and members of
the Coﬁmittee@ I'am Aesemblymaﬁ James Hurley. I represent
Dlstrlct 1, Cumberland and Cape May Countlesg in the New Jersey
Legislature.

What I have to say here I say on behalf of not only
mYeelf but my fellow Assemblyman, James Cafiero, who, unfortu-
nately,could not be here today.

My remarks will be brief because I have participated
in public hearings and I know the number of people who are
here from the public sector who want to teétify and they
should be allewed to speak on this important matter. As a
member of the Leglslature, I do have other avenues that I can
take to present my petition to members of this Committee and
members of the Legislature.

I do not speak here just as an individual but I speak
here as a representative of 175,000 people. I speak here not
only for members of the public and members of the industry,
but also I speak here on behalf of governmental agencies and
laboring people in my county. For example, the Board of
Chosen Freeholders of Cumberland County; every municipality in
Cumberland County has adopted resolutions in opposition to this
bill; every local and every central labor union has adopted
resolutions in.opposition to this bill, including the GBBA and
Teamsters No. 676‘wh© are members of the Central Labor Union.

The concern over environmental. problems, in this case
solid waste, is of great importance. Much needed legislation
has been passed in these very halls in an attempt to insure
the public that clean air and water, a clean environment, will
be available to sustain life. And I am sure that much more
needs. to be done. Nob@dy‘will argue with this point. And I
have voted for most of the legislation that has been proposed
here dealing with environmental problems.

However, as in every problem of this type, every problem
that comes before any legislative body, a balanced  approach is
absolutely essential.  The solid waste problem will not be

26




solved by the:passage of A-2212.

To ban the sale of non-returnable containers, which
are a very minor percentage of the total solid waste picture,
is like attacking water pollution problems created by storm
sewers. We know that water pollution is a very complicated
issue, that everybody;is involved in it, that it is not caused
by only storm sewers'and, therefore, we don't attack that
problem in that way. Neither should we attack solid waste
problems by attacking the non-returnable container. They
aren't the real problem and we know it. _

It is so obvious to me that the solution lies in the
cooperative effortsbﬁandﬂl'urge you to consider these efforts,
cooperative efforts between state,»federal,and local govern-
ments, not by themselves but in concert with industry, in
concert with the people who are employed,ih'these industries,
~and with the general public at large, to develop plants, to
develop means to reuse what we7now call waste. No one is .
going to do it alone. It is obviously expensive. We've
been dealing with the problems of water and air pollution and
we know how expensive it is to solve these problems.
Municipalities can't do it alone. You have just discussed
with the Congressman the fact‘thét neither can the State do it
alone. Neither can any other governmental agency. But
together, with industry's help, with a concerted and a co-
operative effort, it can be done. v

The recycling of all solid waste - paper, metal,
wood,glass, plastics - is the only solution. = Moving toward
this goal would be a positive and beneficial stép to take to
protect our environment and just as importantly to protect
our jobs and our ratables, in other words, to protect our
economic health. }

To pass this bill would be a negative, detrimental act
which would not solve the problem and would cripple the people
and the economy‘inﬁmany areas of this State, but I have to
speak here particularlyfdf the economy and the people of
Cumberland County. '
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There are‘122ﬂ000 people in Cumberland County. 22,422
of them are emploved in manufacturing plants. out of a total
émployment of 40,362.° 9,800 men and women are working today
in glass plants in our County. Their taxable annual payroll
is $70 million. Banning the non-returnable bottle - and I
realize in this State this is purely economics - but, banning

the non-returnable container would put people out of wc

cause plants to close or cause them to move to states where
the manufacturing atmosphereis more conducive,and literally
destroy the economy of oux County. This economy, the existence
@f'glaSS'plants-infCumberland County goes all the way back to
1806 in the City of Millville. -

Many facts will be presented to vou today. That's
why I want to attempt to be very brief, because you want
to hear from chemists and envirocnmentalists, manufacturers,
labor leaders and businessmen. . They should be heard and thevy
will be heard. But there are only two facts that I want to
leave with you.

1. This bill will not solve the problem that you're
attempting to solve, and it will create more problems than it
could possibly solve. And that's saying it ‘Just as basically

as I can say it.

2. The answer YQu’ar@'lQQKing for.is found in recvyel
recycling not only glass but recycling all solid waste. I
don't know if you are aware of this or not, but there is some
o0ld glass in every pilece of .glass made, particularly in the
container business. In.fact there are people who contend that
now you can manufacture glass containers with 100% cullet glass,
glass that has beern manufactured before and used before. Ws
must use and reuse all that we have in ‘this State and in t.l=
Country.

-I’want't@”thank“y@uff@ffallgwimg'meJthiS time to come
here. And I want to sincerely urge vou to cast aside tiis
legislative measure and turn your attention to solid waste
recycling, turn your atterntion to that which has a charnce of
success.

Thank you.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON@ Assemblyman, you mentioned the
fact that now you can manufacture glass contalners with
100% cullet glass, whlch is glass that is reused,: broken, and
so forth. My problem, as Chairman of the Commlttee,kand I
think many of our Leglslators are concerned w1th thls, is how
do we get the glass from the consumer back to the factory
and not to the refuse heap which is now the trend? Would
you have any suggestions along those lines? ’ v
» ASSEMBLYMAN HURLEY: Yes. I thlnk there are two

suggestions. And one reason why I m opposed to this blll
there is a myrlad of opportunltles here, thlngs that we
could be doing and should be doing.

~ Number one, there.is a massive public educatien job.
The industry, the labor unions’are working very hard, spending
money,uattempting to educate people to return and recycle all
kinds of refuseg lThis, I am sure, will‘have a‘beneficial |
effect. The Congressman stated some figures that he had
at his dlsposal.
| Ultimately the answer is, taking all solid waste from
mun101pa11t1es, from your doorstep, - ultlmately the answer
that we must move toward. We must move toward taklng all the
solld waste from your doorstep and mine, from industrial |
,plants and bu51ness houses and retail stores, and putting it
through a process that separates glass from metal, separates
paper, and reusing these,materialsvso that they can be put
back in the. manufacturing. proceSS .and .be. productive"materials;p'

As you.are. probably aware, othex. people‘w1ll speak. to o

thls today, Jut. there is a. plant An. operatlon in' this country
and there is. tremendous research..going.on where they can. take
all the .solid .waste. and. put it. through this process.

L w1ll not for a ‘minute. contendaw1th the incentive of
$20 a ton,that we can.-depend on the. publlc to..bring. back all
containers. We know that we.can't. But awmass1vemeducat1on
=j@bmcan~bewdonewand.the‘Statemcan.helpnin,thithatter; A
massive job of making it important to the very air that we
breathe and themgroundwthat‘we‘walk on will motivate people to
become inveolved in this whole énvironmental struggleo ’
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I think, ultimately, Mr. Chairman, the answer is in
recycling‘ali solid waste and separating it and using it .
again. That's not an immediate geal, it's not a first step”
but we ought to be moving toward that.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No questions)

Thank you very much f@f testifying, Mr. Assemblyman.

The next person will be Assemblyman Fioré of Essex
County.

C. RICHARD FI O R E: Gentlemen, I welcome the
opportunity to..appear before this Committee today to present
testimony in opposition to the passage of Assembly Bill 2212.

I feel that.if Assembly Bill 2212 were to pass, first
.of all we would have a discriminatory. tax which is the |
.deposit3onubeverageWGOntainerso People do not return deposit
bottles as they did 30 years ago. Théref@re” this winds up
as-a tax on the.people wh@ can least afford it, the poor,
the inner-city people. | .

We havé 7,000 jobs in our metal can manufacturers alone |
with an $80.million payrell;. twice that many in glass manu- .
facture»and,gupportingwindustriesm The total jobs.amounting
to cl@se~t©§20g000~j®bs with a loss of income up to $175 million
throughout the State if a bill of this type were passed.

The U. S. Bureau of Mines stated that S4 billion is.
spent’in cellection and. disposal of garbage. Thismgarbage
contained $5 . billion of wvaluable material which can be recovered
and recycled, which it should be.

- Many of the proponents of Bill 2212 would have us
believe a ban on non-returnable containers and a mandatory tax =
on returnable containers would solve the litter problem. I
share the concern over the disgfaceful litter situation prevail- -
ing in our environment, not only in New Jersey but elsewhere. .
But I would suggest that Bill 2212 is a simple solution where
no simple problem exists. Litter is a separate problem from .
solid waste and organized garbageilitter is disorganized garbage:
litter is a people's problem, a human behavior problem.
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A study conducted by one nf the:most prestlg;ous;L”"
organlzatlons in America, the Natlonal Academy of ‘Science,
concludes that less than 20% of the comp081t10n of roadside
litter is made up of beer and beverage cans and bottles. The
amazing statistic in this study is that 42% of all beer and
beverage bottles found in roadside litter were returnable
bottles. Yes, gentlemen, deposit bottles.

In light of this fact, how can anyone logically reach
the conclusion that a mahdatory deposit will solve the litter
problem? How does Bill 2212 address itself to the other 80%
of the litter that is notvbeer or beverage containers? It
simply ignores the 80% of this problem. Facts clearly show
that a deposit system will not eliminate litter. Education,
enforcement and equipment are the only answers.

I know, gentlemen, and you know, theré is a problem
with solid waste mismanagement. Everyone knows there is a
problem wﬁth litter. I respectfully submit to members of
this Committee that Assembly Bill 2212 is what the problem
is not about. v

Now, gentlemen, I went out to get a drink of orange
juice. I came in and put it on my desk and somebody tapped
me on the shoulder and asked me how much the container cost -
24¢. He said, well this bill also will state that there's
a 5¢ deposit on the orange juice container that I just used.

Now, I have to agree with Assemblyman Hurley.
Recycling is the answer, and that's the only answer. Now
they can melt this metal down and reuse it. This is what we
want. We want the people to have jobs. We do not want to
pass legislation which can cause unémplayment problems.

With that, gentlemen,'I oppose Bill 2212,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No questions)

Thank you very much, Assemblyman, for testifying.

Assemblyman Jackman from Hudson County.
CHRISTOPHER Jo. JACKMAN: Mr. Chairman,
and my colleagues. I come before you this morning not only
as an Assemblyman in opposition to Bill A-2212 but I come here
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as an International Vice President of 'my Union, representing
17,000 workers in the State and that industry, gentlemen, is.
the container industry. - ' : co

I think I would be facetious if I tried to elaborate
any more on the remarks that were made by our honored
Congressman Sandman and my colleague, Assemblyman Hurley, but
I would be remiss if I didn't just add a few remarks.

| Number one and primarily, the recycling matter that
has been discussed here today is an important subject matter.
And I think vou've heard it from Assemblyman Hurley and.
Congressman Sandman that it's a matter of education.

Now, just to prove that point teo you, gentlemen, We
have a plant in Garfield, New Jersey, that operates 100% on
thefrecycling of discarded news print, Contrary to my eminent
Congressman, - he may not have realized this - the container
industry is. interested in recycling.  This mill, the Garfield
Paper Mill, manufactures news print entirely with the recycling .
of old newswprintvgnd corrugated containers. So, consequently,
you can see that the container industry. realizes that there is
a problem in our environment. And I think it might be well
to let everybody in this room realize that we, as Assemblyman, - <
and speaking on behalf of the Hudson County delegation -- we |
realize we have an ecology problem and I think it was put
very aptly by Congressman Sandman that this is a motherhood
bill, how can you be against clean air or how can you hot be

against pollution. Let's not kid ourselves. We are against

it but we're looking for the best method.
Contrary to my colleague, Assemblyman Dennis, I would .

foresee that if this bill were enacted you would have
approximately anywhere from 8,000 to 10,000 unemployed, .
additional unemployed, not necessarily in the bottling industry .

per se but in its related'industries;‘the-CGHtainer industry for
example. ’

I don't want to go into a long dissertation on the
storage problem and what-have-you, and I think primarily we

should be interested in the educational background for recycling.
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Now, it wasn't too long ago, during World War II, that
we had to save our newspapers, and it was strictly educational,
and we saved the tin containers because we knew that we needed
that product. And, again, egven in the aluminum end of it.

Now, gentlemen, I am sure that with the type of legisla-
tion that we can espouse here we can educate our particular
citizens here in the State of New Jersey because I think they
are dedicated to clean air and clean water, and I am sure, with
the help of our 'educational system, we will be able to recycle. -
Just to make that one point again, I read in this morning's
paper that there is a symposium this afternoon or 8 o'clock
tonight in West Orange on the recycling subject. And with |
the recy&ling of these products we can clean up some of this
litter. : o

I think it was put very aptly by Congressman Sandman
when he said that we must educate the litterbug in order to
eliminate litter. , ) "» L

With that, and in the interest of time, gentlemen, IM’
subscribe to the Congressman's remarks and the remarks thét
were made by the worthy Assemblyman Hurley. And I can assure
you, gentlemen, speaking again on behalf of the Hudson County
Delegation, that we are against A-2212. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No questions)

Thank you wvery much, Assemblyman Jackman.

Assemblyman Goldfarb, Essex County.

DAV ID GOLDFARB: Mr. Chairman and Committee
Members, I certainly appreciate this opportunity to be called.
I have a short statement and I will read it.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee, I am appearing
todas as a co—spohsor of Assembly Bill 2212. I think it is
important to note at the outset that at the time I was asked to
co-sponsor this legislation, it was suggested to me by several
of my fellow Assemblymen that this bill would spark needed
discussion of our growing solid waste disposal problem. I
agreed to éo-sponsor this bill with the understanding that its
introduction would stimulate the very type of public hearing
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that you are so ably chairing today. -

Since the introduction of this legislation, back in
March, however, I have had an opportunity to further my own
research into this problem and to examine the impact of this
legislation in our State. '

T have frankly been Impressed by the success and the
enthusiastic response to various recycling programs in many
communities. I have come to believe that legislation which
amounts to a ban on non-returnable containers merely diverts
attention from our overall solid waste problems and is a most
impractical approach. I have also been convinced that such
legislation would place an intolerable burden on the small
retailer and would probably add substantially to the shopping
bills of the averagé consumer. For these and other reasons,
many of them that are being detailed today, I have come to
theVCOnCIusiQn”that Assembly Bill 2212 is not in the public
interest ard I am formally withdrawing my support as a
co-sponsor. (Applause)

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you, Assemblyman. You will
have to do that formally when we're back in session in
November. | '

We have a statement on behalf of Assemblyweman Margetts.
May we have that given now, please.

ELLA FILTIPPONE: I am presenting this statement
in behalf of the Honorable Josephine Margetts of Morris
County,~ I am Ella Filippone - regarding A-2212.

The disposal of our noh«returﬁable products presents
considerable problems in our way of life. Although the
objectives @f the bill, A-2212, are sound, I believe we should
have a more th@r@ugh investigation of how elimination of these
products affect the industries involved.

Glass and cans are a small percentage of the refuse mix.
It would seem from further study that implementation of the
program would cost more over theblong run. Recycling of our

wastes should receive considerable attention, since we can
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build into our economy through this concept end products
which can serve a useful purpose.

Paper products, for example, constltute over 50% of
our wastes. Packaging with plastics and its accompanying
products further complicate matters. The recycling endeavors
in many of our communities, which have been done on a
volunteer basis, should transcend itself to a municipal or
county“efforto‘ If we can devise an efficient system of |
collection across municipal lines for certain waste products,
we can make recycling economical. This would then be the
first step toward enacting ways and means to further the
recycling of other products combining it with educating the
‘public as to its worth.

It is my feeling that this bill, A-2212, needs further
study to provide a workable solution, thereby expanding the
intent of this bill. '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much.

Mr. James Sheeran. '

JAMES Je S HE/ERA N: Mr. Chairman and members
of the Committee. I am James J. Sheeran and I am an Attorney
in West Orange. I appear today on behalf of the Milk
Processors and Distributors of New Jersey, which is an
association representing two of our State’s major milk
process and distributing firms - Johanna Farms, with its
headquarters in Flemington, and Tuscan Dairies, with its
offices in Union.

We appear here today neither to advocate nor oppose
Assembly Bill 2212. Our purpose is to persuade this Committee
and the Legislature to reach some firm conclusions, and reach
them soon, on the question of container materials for products
sold in the mass market. That decision is vital not only to
our members and to the other New Jersey milk companies but
to the economy and environmental well-being of every citizen
of our State.

Our memebers indeed serve a mass market in New Jersey
and in neighboring states. In New Jersey plants, utilizing
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New Jersey labor and paying New Jersey taxes, these
independent firms process and distribute the equivalent of
more than 25% of New Jersey's total fluid milk consumption.
We now stand at the threshold of some vital and far-reaching
business decisions. We must decide whether to maintain and
continue to improve our present packaging system which is
based on the paper container or whether to install machinery
that would permit us to package most, if not all, our fluid
milk in polyethylene plastic containers.

We hope to make this decision not only as good business-
men but also as good citizens. To act responsibly, we need
the guidance of the State government.

A-2212 would outlaw plastic containers. We are assuming
now, and this is of vital importance to us, that it would have
no effect on the familiar paper containers presently used in
the milk industry which do have a plastic coating. We hope
that this Committee today can fully clarxify for us the in-
tention of the Legislature regarding the present paper con-
tainers used in this very important industry.

The bill also rules out non-returnable bottles. The
use of bottles in milk processing has declined in recent years
to a negligible point and this aspect of the bill does not
present any problems to us. )

On the basis of the information which you receive at
this hearing and from other sources such as the respected New
Jersey Department of Environmental Protection, we think you
should be able to make a decision as to whether plastic con-
tainers do pose a threat to the quality of our environment.  We
have been seeking such a determination by the State for quite
some time. The replies that we have received are to this
effect: "There's no law against plastic containers now but
we can't tell what the Legislature is likely to . do in the
future."”

While plastic bottles already have an important impact
on marketing and solid waste disposal consideration, this is only
a fraction of their effect if they were to dominate the milk

market. Vo
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Let me give you some figures., In 1969 some 606 million containers of
milk -~- in all sizes, from half pints to full gallons -- were consumed in New Jersey.
" f1is is almost 12 million containers a week, a veritable avalanche. Although full-
vear figures for 1970 are not yet available from the Division of Dairy Industry,
there appears to have been a considerable increase since then.

If your inquiry finds that plastic poses no real problems, then we hope
you would sa& 36 and either amend or reject A-2212. We also would expect that the
appropriate administrative agencies would concur in this viewpoint so we could make
our decisions on plastic packaging without the threat of adverse governmental action
after the fact. |

1f, on the other hand, your review finds that plastic jeopardizes the
quality of our life, then we hope you would pass this bill or somgthing like it.

As businessmen serving a mass market, we must remain alertlto the public
convenience. The plastic milk bottle could prove quite attractive to the consumer.

Our members, to some degree, already are using plastic ong-gallon containers and

they arc finding an increasing acceptability in the marketplacé.. Interestingly
enough, some customers will not purchase milk in the plastic bottle because they
consider it bad for the environment.

Although plastic is still somewhat more expensive than paper, is a slower
process énd requires more plant space, it is quite likely that the differentials in
all of these areas could soon be closed, We then are faced with the decision whether
to invest the hundreds of thousands, if not millions, of dollars required for a
full plastic operation. At present we purchase plastic bottle sections which are
manufactﬁred elsewﬁefe. A full operation comprehends machinery which will blow the
-bottles from polyethylene pellets as part of a continuous bottle-making and filling
operation.

If, in good faith and as a matter of good business practice and customer
convenience, we were to make this investment and then find that the State has pro-

hibited the use of plastic bottles, the impact on our business would be disastrous.
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If we were to delay this installation while competitors in New
Jersey and in neighboring states undertook large-scale use of .
plastic which met with high public acceptance, the results to .
us as businessmen also could be harmful. We want to do the-
right thing, but we need from you, the Legislature, as makers
of public policy, and from the administrative agencies who
implement your policy a clear indication of which course to
follow. - '

The well-being of an important New Jersey industry, the
thousands of citizens whose livelihoods depend on it and the
millions of people whom it serves depend in great part on the
guidance which we hope you will give us. We trust that it
won't be long delayed.

Thank vou very much. } ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Sheeran, could you ke a little
bit more specific as to what is the cost &6f one of those
machines used in a complete plastic operation? Would you
happen to know.that? ‘ _

MR, SHEERAN: I don't know it off-hand but it is a -
considerable expense that may well run into the millions for
our segment. of the industry. _

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Could you find that information
for us and send it to me as Chairman of this Committee so
that we can see what it would cost to convert as far as going
into a plastic operation, because I agree with you that if
we Legislators decide some day that we are going to ban

plastics and if now businesses are going into that direction,

it would not be a correct position on our part as far as
investment. -

Now, let me ask vou. another question. Do you fesl
that the milk‘industry now is leaning toward plastic con-
tainers? .

MR, SHEERAN: Well, as I said in my statement, there -
appears to be a high public acceptance of that small portion
of our marketing that has been using plastic, although there
are people in the market who refuse to buy plastic containers
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because they do think it's damaging to the economy. But
there is a public acceptance of that means of marketing.
o ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Damaging to the environment.

MR. SHEERAN: Some think it is damaging to the
environment. ' I think the most critical and important decision
that we need on an immediate basis is the question of whether
or not this bill does include the presently used paper with
plastic coating that's known and quite familiar in the market.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: I don't believe it does.

MR. SHEERAN: It's merély'a thin plastic coating.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: It's not included in this bill.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Well, if it is, it would have to
be amended.

Mr. Sheeran, one other point, when you lock at these
figures of 606 million containers of milk produced in 1969
and if all of these companies were to develop plastic con-
tainers it would be a_tremendous volume.

MR, SHEERAN: That's a rather accurate figure that
we get from the Division of Dairy Industry.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black, do you have
any questions? | 5 :

' ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Someone else may have a question
first.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Kiehn, how about you?

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I would just like to know - and
this question has been presented to me at various times - why
the milk industry’has practically discontinued the use of
the quart bottle in delivery from the so-called milk truck
to the home, that they are now using the plastic cocated .
container. 4

MR. SHEERAN: Well, actually, I don't think that that
relates to the question’before the Committee. , '

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: No, but I would like to know
because I notice that we have milk‘delivered, of course, to the
home and for the past several months now it has been in a '
plastic coated container rather than, well, you might call it,
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the old-fashioned milk bottle. And I was just wondering
why that switch was made. | e

MR. SHEERAN: I might assume, and I can't give you
the answer, that it has something to do with the handling,
and the movement of that milk is probably a little more |
severe than the movement from a plant into a supermarket.
The indication is that plastic is now being used for home
delivery quarts. I don't think that is so for the companies
within the framework of my representation. |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Okay.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black, do you now
have a question? ‘ ”

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I do. I am amazed at the
volume of containers that we're talking about and I would
assume, sir, that the milk processors and distributors have
gotten into the plastic coated container on the basis of
economy as well as its suitability for the purpaseg

MR. SHEERAN: That developed, you know, from the
traditional glass to the n@W‘paper with a plastic coating
which is a convenient method of bottling and distributing
to the public. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: And I would assume that it has
served the purpose very well. I would assume then, if the
industry, let us gay, had to go back to another type of
container and had to get involved in a aep©sit on that
containey, - I would imagine then it would have rather an
earthshaking consequence on your business.

MR. SHEERAN: Well, actually, if we were talking
about making a deposit on the milk industry, I would say
the effect would be to continue us in the same kind of
packaging that we have today. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Sheeran, the plastic coated
container that they use now is quite easily disposed of, is
*it not, that most of thé,cémpaniQS'in New Jersey use?’
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MR. SHEERAN: Yes, I would say so.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: On the other hand, if they
switch to plastics then we're going to have a problem.

Would you say that? '

MR, SHEERAN: Well, I have given you the figures as
to the amount of containers that will be disposed of in the
market. If we were to use plastic, we would basically be
talking of something near 650 million :containers of milk
in the course of one year.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Sheeran.

MR, SHEERAN: Thank you. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. William Lund.

Not just because Mr. Lund is.going to.speak, but we
did request that the testimony be limited to five minutes and
if you have a prepared statement, hand it in and it will
be printed verbatim for the record, and the Committee will
have an opportunity for questions. ’ _
WILLIAM C. L UN D: Assemblyman Wilson, in the
interest of time, your statement regarding that, and in
deference to other,speakérs to follow, I am not . going to go
through this whole presentation. You have copies of the
entire presentation and I will just cover parts of it.

My name is William C. ILund. I am Manager of Environ-
mental Protection with Union .Carbide Corporation at its
Bound Brook, New Jersey, Engineering Center. I am appearing
here today as a member of the New Jersey State Chamber of
Commerce’s Committee on Solid Waste Disposal. We are a
group of specialists and. managers with diverse backgrounds
and disciplines, but all with one common responsibility - to
work through the Chamber toward an orderly and effective
solution to the problems of disposing of all forms of solid
waste in New Jersey.

|
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Our Committee, and the Chamber itscelf, are fu;ly awvare of_New Jersey's
exceptionally difficult pressing and complex problems in connection with pre-
serving and enhancing our nstural environment{ We recégnize, moreover, that
New Jersey's business and industry have an imﬁortant obligation to the pﬁblic

to contribute substantially toward the eiforts to clean up our environment.

However, we are opposed to A-2212 because, it fails to deal sguarely
with all aspects of solid waste disposal and, instead, singles out -~ piecemeal
fashion -- one relatively small segment of the economy for disciplinary action.

Because the measure is clearly discriminatory, we simply cannot support it.

Moreover, the bill's approach to the litter problem is not only
negative but also indirect and, from'the evidence we have obtained, would thus
have little effect toward the reduction of litter. Instead bf imposing bans,
Qr even mandatory high deposits on non-returnable containers, we are convinced
that substantial reduction of the litter problem will come cnly from a con-
centrated education and enforcement program to be directed at the scurce of

the litter problem -- people.

Litter is created solely by people. It is not caused by unreturnable
containers, returnable containers or any other specific type of manﬁfactured
product. The fundamental problem here is a personel private, "you and me"
problem of conduct. Litter is purely the result of human behavior. To
approach the problem on the basis of placing an arbitrary ban upen the manufacturc
of one or two of the ingredients of general litter is hardly even akin tov
paeying lip service to the problem. To solve or even alleviate New Jersey's
litter problem -- which we fully recognize as one of excéptional dimensions,
legislative attention must be directed toward the cause, not the mere visible

effect. Practicable solutions must be concerned with you and me -- all of us,
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and our thoughtless, careless habits, our inconsiderate, sebusive practices,

our irresponsible acts, etec.

PREVIOUS STUDIES OF THE PROBLEM

Research studies conducted by a divergency of well known and thoroughly
reputable organizations, provide us with some valuable facts asbout the actual-

jties of the litter problem -- facts that clearly refute many casual, popular

opinions. For example:

a) THE HIGHWAY RESEARCH BOARD OF THE NATIONAL ACADEMY OF SCIENCES in 1969
completed a 29-State survey of roadside litter for Keep America
Beautiful, the national sntilitter organizstion. The average national

composition of litter revealed by this survey was as follows:

‘ Percent
Composition of Roadside Litter , of Total

Paper (containers, wrappers, newspaper, etc.). . . « . . . .59.5

Total Cans - . L] . . .‘ L] . L] . . 1 ] - L] Ll L] . . L] L] L] L] L] . . ‘l6.3
beer and soft dArink cans . . ¢ « « + ¢ o o o o o . . 1k.9

Total GLASS. & « v & o o o o e e e e e e e e e .. 5.9
beer and soft drink (returnable) . . . . . . . . . . 2.0
beer and soft drink (non-returnsble) . . . . . . . . 2.8

Total P1astic. « « v v v v o o 4 = o o s o v v e s e e . . 5.8

MISCellaneous. ¢ v v v 4 4o 4 4 o 4 s o 4 6 e e 0 e e e . 12,5

While the composition of litter varied somewhat from state to state,
the relative position of the various categories remained constant. This nation-
wide study, incidentally, substantiated the findings of earlier litter surveys

mede in a number of individual states.

Note that over 80% of the items littered on highways are other than non-
returnable bottles and cans. Only 17.7% of highway litter consisté of these
non-returnable beverage containers.
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It should be apparent, therefore, that punitive action -- in theuform

of forced deposits -- on one-way beer and soft drink containers, offers no

meaningful solution to the litter problem. The Highway Reseérch Board, in a

summary of findings in the 29-state roadside litter survey, stated:

b)

c)

d)v

"Study findings indicate that current attempts to reduce litter
significantly by assessing special taxes or through development
of 'self-destruct' bottles may leave other problems unsolved.
Litter components, including paper, automobile tires, construct-
ion materials and random items represent a high percentage of
the litter genersted by motorists along the nation's primary
highways. Control of cans and bottles alone will not solve

the problem and additional punitiye ncasures are not likely to
prove effective."

(Emphasis Supplied).

THE BUREAU OF SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT,.OF THE FEBERAL ENVIRONMENTAL
PROTECTION AGENCY, has published a study of used packaging.in solid
waste which shows that a total of 13% (by weight) of solid waste is

used packaging materials:

‘Used Packaging In Solid Waste

Percent of
Solid Waste
‘ (by weight)
PADEY & & v v it et b h e e e e ee e e e e e e e . . 6.3

Glass .« v v ¢ o0 v . ; -
beer and soft drink (returnable). . . . . . .

. o . 0.9

beer and soft drink (non-returneble). . . . . « . . 0.8
Metalls' ‘. . . L] - . L) o e L] . . L] L] L] . L . L] . L] L] . . L] 1.8

beer and soft drink cans. . « « ¢« « + ¢ ¢ « 0 o s 0.5
OBherS. & v i v it e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e s . 2.8
13.0

(See also Tables I and II of atteched pamphlet "Pollution Facts,
Returnaebles vs. Non-Returnables," published by the U.S. CHAMBER OF

COMMERCE, 19T1.)

In 1969, the PEPSI-COTA CUMPANY, conducted an experiment in New York

City by introducing 14,400,000 16-0z. returnsble bottles, each carry-
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ing a 5¢ deposit. Within 12 months, 11,000,000 of the bottles were

gone, and $550,000 in deposits forfeited.

We think it significant thatlno deliberative body which has given
careful consideration to this problem has recommended banning the use of non-
returnsble containers as a solution to solid waste problems. Even the Federal
government has refused to impose & ban on returnable bottles. As reported in

the May 5, 1971 issue of the Kiplinger Washington Letter, the Federal govern-

ment "has a survey showing that people won't return bottles if return price is
too low. And if they throw away heavier returnables, this worsens the disposal
problem. If return price is high, a new racket is anticipated... the making

of 'returnsble' bottles that are phonies, made Just to be cashéd in, never used

at all. So government will lay off until it has solution...."

ECONOMIC IMPACT IN NEW JERSEY

Restrictions ageinst the use of non-returnable containers in New Jersey
will have a substantially adverse impact, not only upon the various container
manufacturers in our State, but also upon a considerable number of related
industries. You are to hear testimony from trade union representatives, container
manufacturers, distributors, retailefs and brewers, each describing the adverse

economic impact of arbitrary restrictions on non-returnsble conteiners.

The importance to New Jersey's economy of the beverage container industry

is impressive. Here is just a'partial picture:

N.J. Taxes Services &

Industry Jobs Payroll Paid Investment Goods Purch.
Metal Cans T,000 71,000,000 2,244,000 NA NA

Brewers 6,000 60,000,000 h,SO0,00Sl) NA 2,500,0082)

Glass Cont!3) 24,000 111,115,000 5,456,000 272,800,000 90,100,000
Soft Drink 3,200 33,600,000 2,800,000 64,500,000 127,800,000

(l)‘ N.J. Excise Tax.
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(2) Fuel and Power only.

(3) Incomplete
A SELF-DEFEATING APPROACH

In our opinion, the restrictions proposed in A-2212, though laudable
in intent, would prove to be self-defeating. They run contrary to the public
interest in that they will penalize the consumer with increased costs as well
as burdensome and outmoded handling of containers as the price of seeking to
deal with improper behaviOr on the part of a small segment of the population.
These restrictions wiil clearly increase prices paid by consumers for beverages
because substantisl costs are entailed in the handling of returnables at the
retail level. Recent studies (by The Neighborhood Consumer InfOrmafion Canter
Study, Weshington, D.C.) indicate that these increased costs would fall most
heavily upon lower income and minority citizens. These consumers normally do
not have ready access to transportetion so as to. return containers, nor do they
have space in their homes to store them under sanitary conditions. In effect,
you,would be imposing, upon thoée who could least afford it, the burden of

paying for a program which, at best, is of highly questionabie value.

Additionally, this bill will place an intolerable - burden upon the
retailer. It will require him to serve also as the initial assembly point for
the return Journey of re-usable containers. In addition to the increased costs.
he will have to bear for additional manpower and space, sahitar& conditions wculd
deteridrate with the accumulation of partially filled containers and the resulting
spillage, odors, possible vermin aﬁd bacterial deposits, plus generally un-
attractive surroundings. Furthermoré, many retailers could 1§gically be expected

to place a limit upon the beversges sold on their premises in order to avoid
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these excess costs and the concurrent unsanitary end unattractive conditions.

This will ultimately limit the product choice availeble to the consumer.
RECOMMENDATIONS

In expressing our opposition to A-2212, we also offer here some suggest-

ions toward a more constructive solution to th¢ litter problem.

In contrast to the overall problem of solid waste handling, litter calls
for specific measures directed at the practice of littering. The State, it
seems to us, presently has two choices: First,to impose punitive restrictions
on the industry by banning one-way containers which account for but a emall
fraction of the problem. This is the approach of A-2212 which we reject as

piecemeal, ineffective and discriminatory.

Second, however, would be to create a problem-solving mechanism that
will permit local governments and the industries concerned with all forms of
litter to work together to their mutual benefit in and in quest of effective and

equitible solutions to the problem.

The rroblem of litter, in contrast to the overall problem of solid
waste handling, calls for specific measures directed at the practice of litter-

ing. There appear to be three feassible ways to attack the litter problem:

a) Enactment of more effective anti-~litter laws and initiation of strict
enforcemént‘procedures. (In contrast to restrictive container legislation,
such laws would pinpoint penalties and enforcement upon those who are

the offenders).

b) Far wider dissemination of information to discourage littering practices.
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c)

a)

b)

c)

a)

e)

(Education should be directed toward all age groups of the general public

but with particular emphasis at the elementary and secondary school .
levels. -
Development, possibly with support from the Federal government and in -

cooperation with state and local governments, of design and development
projects which have as their objective the rapid collection by mechanical
means of highway and other fofms of litter. An economical and practical,
rapid mechenical colleétion system could be a vital adjunc£ to the

measures described above.
The State Chamber strongly urges that the legislature:

Defeat restrictive legislation that .would outlew or generally p=nelize

use of any particular type of food or teverage container.

Render New Jersey's anti-litter statutes more effective and realistic

and accompany this change with provision for far stricter enforcement. .

Encourage the development of education and information programs to dis-
coursge littering, directed at all age groups of the general public but

with particular emphasis on the schools.

Support the initiation of research and development projects designed to
develop systems of rapid mechanical collection of highway and other

forms of litter.

Encourege research toward development of an economical system for municipal
ities to collect,handle and dispose of solid waste so as to permit recovery

of the greatest possible volume of raw materials.
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Federal funds for the type of research and development
- projects suggested in (d), (e) above are available through
the Solid Waste office of the Environmental Protection Agency
in Washington. | : ,

We appreciate this opportunity to appear today. We
ask, however, that you consider, thoughtfully and earnestly,
the points we and other representatives of the business
community have raised at this public hearing.

Thank you. , .

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No questions)

‘Thank you, Mr. Lund.

MR. LUND: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Goldshore, Department of
Environmental Protection.

LEWTIS GOLDSHORE: I am Lewis Goldshore, Legal
Analyst on the staff of Commissioner Sullivan. I am pleased
to be here and present the views of the State Department on
the issue of non-returnable containers.

The bill under review today, Assembly 2212, is to
be commended for the concept that it embodies. We believe
that society can ill afford to condone systems of resource
use which disrupt the natural environment. Thé attempt by
government to bring a return to the practice of reusing
beverage containers is necessary to alleviate problems of
solid waste disposal, litter, and energy use. The situation
facing us and the various solutions offered are typical of
the environmental problems which face us every day.

The environmental problems generated by non-returnable
beverage containers should not be minimized. Of the more
than 29 billion glass container units produced in 1966,

12 billion were beverage containers, and of this 12 billion
only 2.7 billion were of the returnable variety. :

I think the chart before you today illustrates the
market share of various types of soft drink containers. We
see that returnable bottles are being reduced, as far as
their market share, and we see an ascendandy of market share
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by metal cans and non-returnable bottles. The figures are -
projected and you see thé'Erendbin@reasing‘Qver the years.

Because of those returnables, the cost of collecting
and disposing of solid waste across the nation was reduced
about $12 million below what it would have been otherwise.

The number of trips a returnable bottle makes, however, is
declining as inflation makes two cents worth less and less.
In the late fifties we know that each soda container made
60 trips back and forth, but today it only makes 16.

Metal cans and bottles represent a comparatively small
percentage of the total solid waste, as does each category
when viewed separately. Because these materials are the most
difficult to dispose of, however, their importance is much
greater than one might otherwise expect. Even after incinera-
tion, glass and cans are respectively 99% and 90% inert
residue. There is just as much left to dispose of after
burning as before. Moreover, glass and aluminum are not s
degradable in land f£ills. Only the archeologists, picking
through what remains of our society 5000 years from now, .
will appreciate this charactéristicuof our présent contalners.

A complete switch to the throw-away containers would
also cause us much unemployment. Job loss in breweries and in
stores that sell beverages is estimated at 80,450 persons due
to lowered labor requirements of non-returnables. Payroll
loss would be in excess of $511 million., In addition,
thousands of warehouse jobs could be adversely'affected by a
complete switch to the throwaways. Breweries in Oregon and
Washington have decided to use returnable bottles after one
firm found that returnable bottle sales had increased 21%.

Assembly 2212 would provide a strong economic incentive -
for the recycling of these containers. It would require that = -
the containers remain in a stream of commerce as they did in
the past. Assembly 2212 would not reqguire that manufacturers .
switch to the old heavy style bottles. They could, in fact,
use the lightweight bottles, be assured a continuous supply
of the old bottles for recycling, and unemployment would not
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The problem is not limited, however, to litter and
solid waste. Like any component of an industrialized society,
non-returnable bottles affect many sectors of life.  To
analyze solutions and alternatives, therefore, we must first
decide what is the purpose of doing anything at all, and
secondly consider why, or if, for that matter, government
should be the one to do it. ‘

There are three possible, and closely related, reasons
for acting to restrict the use of non-returnable beverage
containers.

The first one and most common reason is to reduce
litter. 1In 1967, 19 states saw the introduction of legisla-
tion to ban or restrict the use of non-returnable beverage
containers to reduce the litter problem. None of these bills
were adopted. '

The intermediate goal would be to reduce the amounts
of, and costs of collection and processing, solid wastes.

Thirdly, a long-term purpose would be to minimize
use oxr waste, if you will, of energy and of materials.

We believe that these aims can legitimately be en-
couraged by government action and, fqrthermerei that their
maximum effective attainment will be echieved only as a
result of government action. In concept, the legislation
before you seeks these ends. The legitimacy of govern-
mental action derives from the traditional resp@nsibility_
that government has had for solid waste collection.and
disposal. More recently, growing environmental concern
has prompted the public to seek initiatives by gowernment
in solid waste management. _

_ The incre&ase in non-returnable beverage containers
and the consequent growing cost of their disposal are an
economic and environmental problem that responsible govern-
ment should help to solve.

‘To clean up the results of current container practice,
a third party, the only existing one being government, must
. intervene in the manufacturer-consumer cycle to reduce the
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costs that all of society now bears. At the present time,
~neither the manufacturer's decision to make nor the
consumer's decision to buy is based on consideération of
disposability and the cost of disposal. The current economics
of container manufacture and use not only omit calculations

of disposal costs in setting prices, but also fail to con-
sider production or use of easily disposable packaging.

The proklem of resource management in solid wastes
has been recognized already in other jurisdictions. Defini-
tive action has already been taken by the Oregon Legislature
and it exposes the logical fallacy of the texrm "disposable
resources." There is just no such thing as a disposable
resource. The Province of British Columbia, in Canada, has
also taken legislative action to discourage, prohibit,
restrict, the throwaway mentality.

The State of New Jersey has a grim environmental
legacy. 1In the first half of this century, we gave no
thought to the pollution of our rivers, the degradation of our
air, the despoliation of our land. New Jersey's government,
however, has already demonstrated its commitment to a better
New Jersey tomorrow. It has enacted environmental protection
laws which instantly have become models for the rest of the
nation. Your legislative action established a Department of
Environmental Protection, and created the framework to
control effectively the environmental insults generated by
pesticides, ocean dumping, solid waste, and oil pollution.
The Governor, in initiating and signing this legislation,
has demonstrated his commitment to a cleaner environment.

Now you are being asked to consider and to act
favorably on a measure that would protect and help to fulfill
those earlier pursuits. Requiring the recycling of beverage
containers constitutes only . the first step in a future
comprehensive program to control the generation and reuse of
waste materials. ' '

The National Environmental Policy Act of 1969, which
was instantly acknowledged as the most significant legislative
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action ever taken to preserve the natural environment,
establishes national goals. Section 101(b) (6) of that

Act treats the issue of recycling and resource recovery

and provides that one of our national objections shall be:

to "...enhance the quality of renewable resources and approach
the maximum attainable reCycling‘of depletable resources."”
Other Federal action in this érea includes both the Resource
Recovery Act and studies undertaken by the President's Council
on Environmental Quality.

This Legislature has already recognized the growing
scarcity of our natural resources and the consequent need .
to recycle materials. A bill adopted this session, enrolled
as Chapter 257 of the Laws of 1971, creates an expanded market
for recycled materials. The State has been directed to purchase
recycled materials wherever product quality can be assured and
price is competitive. | o

. Morecover, a number of municipalities in the State have
considered local action to restrict the sale of non-returnable
‘bottles. 1In addition, the Legislature and the Governor have
received resolutions from local governments urging that the
State take the action necessary because the municipalities fear
that their own efforts will be frustrated by unregulated
neighboring communities.

For all these reasons, we support the concept and ine=
tentions of A-2212. Now, we need to take a closer loock at its
provisions. v .

. The bill 'w;)uld make unlawful the sale of a "non-returnable
beverage container". This is defined in the bill as a contain-
er “the title to which the seller intends to pass with the sale
of the contents.” The bill requires that beverage containers
carry a five—cent refund value, and provides that the viclators
be punished as disorderly persons.

The approach embodied in A-2212, as well as that in
S-2150, are thoughtful attempts to deal with a serious problem.
The Department, however, would like to offer a few modifications
suggested by its own experience. - We believe that civil penalties,
that is, substantial penalties collectable under the penalty
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enforcement law, and the opportunity to seek summary in-
junctions, are more effective deterrents that are criminal
sanctions in which the disorderly person category falls),
that is for violations of environmental protection laws.

Furthermore, because of the rising cost of living, we

believe that in order to insure that beverage containers '
are recycled, a ten cent cash return value should be mandated
by the statute. ;
. To insure flexibility in coping with any environmental
problem, it is necessary that the Legislature also enable the
responsible agency to adopt necessary implementing rules and
regulations.

Further, enforcement authority - and this is an important
point = should be shared by state and local officials, and
those are the local officials who normally inspect establish-

- ments where beverage containers are sold. With these amendments,
we believe that New Jersey will be able to take a first, yet
a very significant, &tep toward the recycling of our resources.

Before concluding my testimony, I wish to discuss some
of the objections commonly voiced against similar bills.

It is said that beverage containers account for only
a small fraction of solid waste and litter, and that it would
thus be unfair or unwise to single out beverage containers
for regulation. I think the two charts that we are going to
place before you now illustrate the magnitude of this problem.

Figures projected by the Midwest Research Institute's
study of packaging wastes indicate that beverage containers
constituted half of the 34 billion glass containers manufactured
for all purposes in 1970. That chart indicates the ascendency
of beverages as a portion of the total glases container market.
You see it is in excess of 50% of all glass containers.

The same study estimates that over 60% of all metal
cans used - this next chart shows that more than 60% of all
metal cans projected in 1970 ended up as beverage containers.
This shows the magnitude of the use of metal cans, which would
be regulated under S-2212 as a share of the total market. We
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are talking about quite a number, quite a substantial
portion of the market, quite a number of cpntainers. We
are talking, therefore, abdut‘a major share of the market,
not-a tiny fraction as some critics have suggested. Never-
theless, we recognize that this bill is only a preliminary
measure in the overall effort to insure that all waste
materials are reused. A start has to be made somewhere
if the term "recycling" is to have any meaning whatsoever,
and beverage containers,; which symbolize the whole throw-
away mentality, are appropriate items against which responsible
counter-concepts must be initiated. v

A second criticism is that passage of Assembly 2212 would

‘thrown hundreds of people in the beverage container industry

out of work. We do not believe that this criticism is valid.
-The decision to lay off workers after the passége of this bill
will be entirely a management decision, not a decision dictated
by this legislation. Nowhere does this bill require that
bottle manufacturers switch their production lines to sturdier
returnable type bottles and, thus, that they lower their f@tal
output and conseqﬁently their labor requirements. Manufacturers
may continue to produce thin-walled bottles unsuitable for reuse
but suitable for recycling. If this is the course they elect
to follow, the bill will accomplish the following:

The number of bottles returned for recycling will be
increased because the bounty on these bottles will be a nickel
apiece, as the bill ‘suggests, or a dime, as we suggest, rather
than the one-half éent currently paid for recycléd bottles.
Furthermore, the bottles will not have to be returned to out
of the way recycling centers but, instead, to convenient
supermarkets where they were originally purchased, and where
five or ten years ago we were in the habit of returning them.

The bottle manufacturers will be able to develop new
markefs with a steady supply of returned glass and, thus, may
even add to the labor force.

A third critique comes from supermarket operét@rs who
claim that they would have to add employees and space in order
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to handle the load of bottles returned. We feel certain that
an industry that has shown such ingenuity in merchandising,
manufa@turing” management and packaging can find a sound method
to handle these returns in a way that benefits both environ-
ment and economy. In British Columbia the packaging industry
has cooperated with the retailers to provide convenient loca-
tions for the redempti@n of bottles and cans. This is one
pattern to consider. ‘

In conclusion, let me say that, although the measure under
consideration bears the title "beverage containers”, the
complexity of the issue extends far beyond the question of
whether the consumer will simply return more of his soda
bottles or cans to the store. Although the bill is concerned
superficially with those who are responsible for generating
solid waste, the language of the act poses a more fundamental
question to society. Are we willing to waste the resources
which nature has entrusted to our oversight? And do we wish -
to bury ourselves with the misplaced materials of our '
industrial society? I am reminded of Governor Cahill's words
upon adoption of the Clean Ocean Act: heé saidy’atvthat time:
"We can no longer afford to throw our wastes away because there
is no 'away'." ’

The concept implicit in A=2212 constitutes a necessary

first step in New Jersey's efforts to recycle and reuse its

resources.
Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black? -
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I have a few questions. o .
It's good to see you today, sir.
MR, GOLDSHORE: Thank you. : ..
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have several . guestions. The .

first one is this: Actually, then, what y©u.are saying is
that there is no need really to go to any different type of ‘ .
bottle, we could use the same bottles but just charge the
consumer a nickel for it when he picks it up at the store.
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~MR. GOLDSHORE: ' There is that possibility. We were
suggesting that perhaps a dime would be an appropriate
bounty to insure that the bottles weré.returned,

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I wonder, then, based on that
concept, why we stopped at.a,dimé, why we didn't go to $50
or $100 and really accomplish this.

MR. GOLDSHORE: I think there is a .balance in here,

We felt that a dime would be enough to induce the people to
return the bottles.

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I think a former speaker indicated
that they worried at a nickel a bottle about the possible
illegal manufacture of bottles as perhaps an endeavor that
organized crime might get into, and I am very glad to see
that you feel we ought to take it up to ten cents and perhaps
give illegal bottle manufacturers double the premium.

MR. GOLDSHORE: I think adequate safeguards can be
built into the bill so that we wouldn't have counterfeiting
of any type. I am reminded of a remark, when I discussed this
with a friend and I said that we were suggesting a dime a bottle
and he said, "That's $2.40 a case.” I don't usually think
in those terms but $2.40 is quite a bit of money and probably,
we believe, would furnish an adequate incentive for return.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: My next question regards your
reference to British Columbia and I wonder, offhand, what is
the population of British Columbia. ,

MR. GOLDSHORE: I don't know but I would assume that it
was less than New Jersey.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I would think so. aAnd I wonder
what the average wage of their workers would be. I would
assume that would be somewhat lower than the average wage for
a worker in New Jersey. I'm getting around to the point that
~it's fine that they've established national collection spots
in British Columbia but I doubt very much they have the
volume of spending capability even closely coming to a
comparison with regard to utilization in New Jerseyg

I am surprised, also, by your second criticism, as
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indicated in your release. You mention that there appears
to be some erroneous thoughts that hundreds of workers might
be thrown out of work if this bill would pass; in the event,
however, that any layoff should occur, I notice a backstop
movement in which you shift the entire blame for any layoffs
to management decisions and indicate that it has nothing to
do with the enactment of this bill. I would like to have
you elaborate on that a little bit, especially when I find
that in my concept of this bill it would be extremely detri- .
mental to any industry to attempt to perhaps go through a re-
tooling or updating of their facilities to switch, let's

say, from the thin bottle to the thicker bottle.

MR, GOLDSHORE: We understand that many bottlers right
now are making the thin-wall bottle. What we're suggesting
is that this bill will supply them with the materials for
recycling. In that way they can continue to make the thin-
wall bottles if that was their choice.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: All right. I have just had some
information presented to me with regard to British Columbia
and I am very‘amazed to know, after what you've told me, that
in British Columbia 300 glassworkers were laid off after they
went to this type of legislation. I understand that they
were represented by the same group that represents the glass-
workers here in the State of New Jersey;

I sould like to summarize with this question and you
really don't have to answer it if you don't wish to, but I
would like to ask, doesn't this position only further point
out the Commissioner's apparent zeal to force the people of
this State to do what he feels is necessary,t@ save civiliza-
tion and to achieve a 100% pure ecology, even if it kills the
people? (Applause) » »

MR. GOLDSHORE: T think this bill is designed to do a
lot of things but not that, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Well, I'm a little remiss -- (Applause)

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: All right. We can't have the
applause for one side or the other. So far we“veihad a good
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hearing. We have a lot of people who want to testify. ..

‘ . ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I would like to terminate my

- comments on the basis that we have been at.odds in the past
and I hope some day to be in full agreement with the J
Department of Environmental Protection.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I have been remiss but at this
time I would like to introduce two Legislators who are here.
They .do not wish to testify but I just want to note their
presence. Assemblyman Turher from Gloucester and Salem
Counties. _

ASSEMBLYMAN TURNER: Mr.Chairman, inasmhch‘as you,
said I do not wish to testify, I would like to add, at this
‘time. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: At this time.

And the other person is Assemblyman from Essex County
who happens to be the Majority Leader, that's Assemblyman
Kéan. -

Assemblyman Kiehn? .

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Mr. Goldshore, I would just like.
to know whether the statement that you have submitted has been
endorsed by Commissioner Sullivan?

MR. GOLDSHORE: He is aware of it, yes, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: He is aware of it?

MR. GOLDSHORE: It is the statement of the Department.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Oh, these are your own findings.

MR. GOLDSHORE: Of the Department, yes, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN:- Has this been submitted, at all, to
Governor Cahill?

MR, GOLDSHORE: I don't believe so, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: The reason I ask is -- _

MR. GOLDSHORE: It's the Department's position on a
bill that was sponsored by Assemblyman Dennis and others, and
not an administration bill, as such. »

~ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: The reason I ask is, there was a
newspaper article back on September 9th in the Daily Journal,
which is printed in Elizabeth, and it says that a spokesman
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for Governor William T. Cahill said the Governor had not as
yet had an @ppOrtunlty to study the measure and was ‘withholding .
COmment on it. And I was just W©nder1ng if he might have read
over your statement or if you were speaking in his behalf.
MR, GOLDSHORE: No, we're not, this is the Department’s
statement. ' ' S ' ’
" ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Fay?
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Lew, Congressman Sandman mentioned, -
as your statement mentioned, the Réesources Recovery Act, and
the Congressman used the figure of $460 million and I would
like to know if your Department has applied for any of these
funds as of this moment, or do you have a record of counties
and municipalities in the State who have applied for any of
these monies. ’ o
MR, GOLDSHORE: We understand that only $4 million was
appropriated this year for that purpose. . .
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Excuse me. What was that figure?
MR. GOLDSHORE: $400 million was authorized but only
$4 million was appropriated. ’ '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Only $4 million was appropriated? -
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: For the Nation or for the State?
MR. GOLDSHORE: For the Nation. - .

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: That's the direct opposite of
the testimony that was given this morning when I asked how
much was authorized and appropriated, two different things,
and the statement was that $460 million was"apperriatedc
MR, GOLDSHORE: Well, there is $460 million over a ¥
five year period. $4 million has been appr@priated for this
fiscal year. R ‘ o ' .
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON“ Only $4 million for the whole .
United States. - ‘ S
MR. GOLDSHORE: Yes, sir.
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: This is $4 million for the Nation, and
has New Jersey applied for their 5139 yet° (Laughter)
Have we applied?
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MR. GOLDSHORE: I think Mr. O'Neill might~be better
able to answer that.question.l

MR. O'NEILL: The grantswe're speaking of. are demonstration
grants for innovative resource recovery systems. This entails
systems which maximize recycling systems which use new methods
of treating solid waste rather than just burying it. The
- Department has been loocking, for some time, at all the new
systems that. are available. As you know, we have a State master
plan. That is the firstnrequirement,that you must have before
you get a solid waste grant under the Resources Recovery Act.
We've passed that hurdle. Now we need to find something that
is attractive, something which is cost effective, a system
‘which can treat solid waste and remove from it all those parts
.that can be recycled and, in fact, recycle them effectively.
That\search‘isuaq arduous one and it's continuing. I would
hope that some time in the near future we would have a system
that we would like to buy.and which federal money would be
available for, which we could demonstrate over the whole State
as an.innovative system, something that would be better than
incineration and much, much better than landfill, '

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Are there any municipalities involved
in this? o | |

MR. O'NEILL: Several municipalities have expressed an
interest to us in this. We have sort of a .two-pronged
approach. Our first approach is to find a simple separation
machine into which raw or partially .segregated solid waste
can.be poured, which will separate it out into those three
types of things which can be most easily recycled, which are
now cans, bottles and paper, which, altogether, make up. more
than 50% of the solid waste load. It seems that the companies
that are in this business have COncentratedvmqre of their
efforts on making larger, more. grandiose, machines than the
simple separator, so thé“simple step is a difficult one. I
know of only two or three in the country and we've visited
some of those and.looked at them,aﬁd.we have the plans and are

evaluating them now.
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The second step would be'to find a more complete
type of treatment process somewhere along:the line of the
- Black-Clawson hydropulping process in Franklin, Ohib; the
Monsanto process; the Hercules process being built in Delaware.
These are all the kinds of things we're looking at, and T
hope we are going to be able to take advantage of our share
of whatever federal monies are available within the few years.
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. O'Neill, would you state your
position, please, for the record, in Environmental Protection? .
‘MR, O'NEILL: I am Thomas M. O'Neill. I am
Administrative Assistant to Commissioner Sullivan.
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Again, I would like to get your.
Department's position, and even your*owh‘personal professional
position, on this matter of priorities. - And I am convinced
that there would be a major economic challenge here, and I..
don't believe there are enough facts so far submitted to be
so casual as to be talking about, yes, there's going to be
‘an unemployment problem but, yes, we're going to suddenly
create new jobs. I think we've been told that too often and -
it just hasn't been the.caseg And I would just like you to
go on the record that the major priority and the major impact .
should be on the recycling, that most of the monies for
research - and, most certainly, no one has to be an expert .
in this and dedicated to ecél@gy to know that $4 million is
a tragedy when talking about this kind of a problem on the
state level, which we're primarily concerned with, and the
national tragedy.
MR. GOLDSHORE: We see this bill as creating many new y
jobs rather than eliminating old jobs, in many ways. And
I think that's the trend, this is the impact of this bill.
In many different areas this bill can create additional jobs.
ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Would you elaborate on that, please?
MR, GOLDSHORE: In terms of returning the bottles, the
additional manpower that may be needed to return beverage
containers and recycle them. We will employ more people as
a result of this bill than there is a possibility of losing.
I don't see it as a real possibility in terms of the balance
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of employment. :

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Yet, everyone from the industry and
every union involved insists otherwise, that: their statistics
and their prognoses is otherwise.

MR. O'NEILL: I think the reason that our estimates on
this differ is because most of the people who read this bill
for the‘first time assume that what it regqguires is a return.
to the old thick returnable bottle, which is taken back to the
store, washed out and filled again, in its present form, with
the beverage. The waykwe read the bill, what it might do is,
instead, mandate recycling. In other wdrds, return to the
store the same thin-wall bottles that are now called non-
returnables, so that we would have centralized points to
pick up these bottles for recycling, return a much higher
- percentage of them to the industries thah are now returned
by the voluntary programs, provide the industries, therefore,
with the raw materials necessary not only to make new bottles,
because they can only use, I understand, about 30% cullet in
the manufacture of bottles, but also to go to some of the new
things that the industry, very responsibly, has paid out money
for research on, such as the creation of glass bricks and other
objects, the principal ban to go into which now is the fact
that they don't have a steady supply of this kind of glass.

If this bill were taken by management to mean that what they
would have to do is provide a service, picking up the glass
from centralized depots run by supermarkets where people buy
them, returning that glass to their factories, they would, I
feel have more opportunity for employment than now because
~they would have wider markets for this used glass. This bill,
the way we read it, does not mean that you have to go back

to the old thick-wall returnable bottles which are washed.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: And we have no place to look to find
the facts. Oregon is the only state in the Union that's doing
this right now, I believe.

MR. O'NEILL: Well, it's not really a search for facts
because this bill is unlike the others that I'm familiar with
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in that it does leave this option open to management.
Management can decide to go to the old type returnable bottle
which is washed. They will then have problems. They will
have to reinvest in equipment they sold ten years ago when
they got rid of the returnable bottle, and they will probably
have to 1ét workers go because the returnable bottle makes

16 trips as opposed to the one trip made by non-returnables.

If management took the option of simply picking up the
bottles at'supermarkets fo which they were returned and
recycling them, then they would not lose employment, they
would actually add employees to their rolls. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: ALL right, thank you very much,
Mr. Goldshore and also Mr. O'Neill. :

Barbara Eisler.

MRS, BARBARA ‘E I SLER: I am Barbara Eisler,
President of New Jersey Citizens for Clean Air.

Before giving my testimony, I would just like to
comment on the gratefulness of all those who have been sup-
porting recycling efforts for years and have been met with
protests. We hope that all of our new-found supporters will
be with us when we oppose incineration plants coming up in
the future. I o

| New Jersey Citizens for Clean Air favors the passage of
Assembly Bill No. 2212 as a necessary first step in combatting
‘the continuously growing problem of solid waste disposal. While
we support the recycling of all solid wastes,we feel that the
best type of recyecling is reuse because it actually prevents
the entry of items into the “garbage stream”. In addition,
reuse of a product in its actual form is less costly in terms
of labor, capital outlay, energy demand and possible pollution
than the conversion of that product into another form.

You, undoubtedly, will be bombarded with a variety of
statistics today and, while we do not wish to-add to the
"statistical disposal pr@blem”” we think it is important to
bear in mind that several sources project the volume of non-
returnable bottles and cans for 1976 at approximately 60
billion units. »

64



- ‘According to the-Nationalenstitute of Municipal Law
Officers in Washington in their preface to a Model Ordinance
taxing one-way beverage containers, "If most of these units
are changed so as to be returnable and'rédyclical, and if we
can assume that the average number of refillings per unit is
maintained at 19, the unit of resulting waste may be reduced
to a figure as low as 3 billion units - 7 billion less than
the 1958 total." -

Obviously, the disposal of 3 billion containers is
much less of a problem than the disposal of 60 billion. of
course, these are national figures, and we are talking about
New Jersey today, but we are still speaking of millions of
containers and thousands of tons of refuse and must not be
misled by those who tell us that glass and metal containers
comprise just a small amount of the total volume of solid waste.
When you are dealing with millions of containers, even
"small percentages are significant.

' We realize that one effect of this bill will be to
encourage the use of glass containers, since they are the
only ones which are reusable at present. This poses a
challenge to the steel and aluminum container manufacturers .
to design a reusable beverage container, but we should like to
point out here that the production of metal containers is
more hazardous to the environment than the production of 'glass
containers from the standpoint of the depletion of natural
resources and the production of air pollutants through demands
for electricity. Bauxite and iron ores which, are used in the
production of aluminum and Steel are constantly diminishing
natural resources, while glass manufacture ufilizes some of the
most abundant resources on earth - sand, soda ash and limestone.
In terms of electrical demahd the production of one pound of
aluminum requares the use of 29,860 British thermal units:
the productlon of one pound of steel requlres 4, 615 BTUs? and
the production of one pound of glass requires 1,451 BTUs.

We must also bear in mind that the production of the
bottle and the glass takes place in the same operation, while
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steel and aluminum must first be refined from ores and then
converted into containers at an additional use of electricity.
We are stressing the use of electricity here because we are
well aware that electrical,g@nerating stations are one of our
biggest sources of air pollution. We are not suggesting that
steel and aluminum producte be banned or curtailed, but we

are recommending that in a case like beverage containers where
the only advantage of metal containers appears to be their
disposability and unbreakability and where it can be shown that
the production of these metals is more envirommentally hazardous
than that of glass, then we should opt for glass@

' It has been argued that the burden of this bill will fall
heavily on the retailer, but we believe that the entire pro-
cedure of collecting and reusing glass and plastic bottles
can be more easily and efficiently(handled if we adopt uniform
standards for shape, color and texture with the use of either
slip-on labels or labels that can be removed in the same process .
that sterilizes the bottles for reuse. Once every manufacturer's
bottles are the same in any given category, much of the handling
problems in the stores can be eliminated, ‘and manufacturers
can contract directly with stores for the purchase of their | -
entire collection of bottles. Perhaps special containers can |
be constructed in supermarkets or on shopping center grounds
for the collection of bottles with store owners and manu-
facturers sharing the cost of manpower.

While we are in favor of A-2212, we would like to suggest
two amendments:

1. All bottied. water, not just mineral water, should -
be covered. Some manufacturers list their water as "purified”,
others as "spring” or "mineral”. All should be covered under .
the bill. : . R : .

2. The use of containers with flip-top, throw-away lids
should be banned since these lids never wind up in recycling
operations and are a definite hazard to barefoot recreationers
and wildlife. ’
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‘In conclusion, if we are ever going to solve the
solid waste problem, we must make every effort to reduce
the total volume of garbage by reusing products wherever .
possible and eliminating excess packaging. We must then
turn our efforts to recycling those materials which have to
be disposed of. A ban on non-returnable beverage containers
is a necessary first Step in this process. To those who
say it can't be done, we can only answer: We did it before,
and we will have to do it again. K S

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSCON: Any queStions? {(No questions)

‘Thank you very much; Mrs. Eisler, for your testimony
and we will take this into consideration.

- Joseph Stevens, New Jersey State AFL-CIO. :
JOSEPH Je STEVEN S: Mr. Chalrmana honorable
members of the Assembly Committee: My name is Joseph J.
Stevens. I am the Executive Vice President of the New Jersey
State AFL-CIO. We represent more than 500,000 members in more
than 1,000 craft and industrial locals throughout our State.

It is conservatlvely estimated that,between our members and
thelrtfamllles; we represent the interests of 47% of the
total populatlon of New Jersey.

It is in this interest that I address myself to thlS
Committee in sincere, studied and flrm,opp081tlon to the tragic
economic consequences which are spawned in the provisions of
Assembly Bill No. 2212, now before your Committee for con-
sideration. v

We in. organized labor do not doubt the idealism, the good
intentions of the sponsors of this measure.  The gquest for a
better environment is common cause to all of us. But our
enthusiasm cannot take precedence over common sense and good
reasoning. ’

This is the mistake involved in A-2212, and as innocent
as the mistake may be, if uncorrected, it could and will have
far-reaching, uncontrollable adverse consequences on the economy
of our state and the family well-being of thousands of workers
at a time when we are already buffeted by a record unemployment.
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In short, organized labor is convinced that the cure proposed in A-2212
-+ 1s worse than the plight. It does not hit at the heart or even substance of

the problem of pollution but rather in‘its dlscrlmlnatory select1V1ty agalnst -

the packaging industry, it confines itself to the mere fringe of litter and
solid waste disposal problems. S | ' - ' .
On these problems, permit me fo quote to you thé pplicy‘of‘bofh the | -
National AFL-CIO and the New Jersey:AFL-CIO regarding ill-conceived and ill-
considered legislation of which A-2212 is the epitome:
"Fragmented and expedient proposals that deal merely with the smaller
and more visible aépects of the total problem will not only fail to achieve |
their stated aims, but they will accompllsh more in depriving workers of their
jobs than in lessening the burdens of solld waste, Such self-defeatlng schemeg
do not deserve public support and will be vigorously opposed by all elements of
organized labor." »
Loss of job statistics in both the bottlingﬁand can industries in our .
state resulting from passage of A-2212 will be detailed to this committee by
later speakers from both labor and industry in these affected categories. The
overall adverse effect is disheartening, saa and tragic, both from an industry .
and the worker point of wiew. It could well be the catalyst in the ruination
of our whole state's industrial economy.
This bill will cause the direct loss of 10,000 jobs in Mew Jersey and at
least $80,000,000 in payroll. The sad part of its consequence is that it will
barely prick the skln of the pollutlon problem.
The blll also will earn the embitterment of those unemployed workers
vhose families are being made the scapegoats of a rush to purity. Recently,
I read an editorial in a newspaper in whlch the editor deplored what he called
millions of disposable contalners lltterlng the highways and piling high on
the dumps.

This editor never read the report by the Highway Research Board of the
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National Research Council (a division of the National Academy of Sciences)
which shows that newspapers and other paper products make up 60% of the litter
on our highways,

I see nothing in this bill that would fine a newspaper manufacturer %500
each time a newspaper or other paper product was sold without a five cent
return deposit. And what about empty cigarette packs and discarded cigarette
and cigar butts whose volume dwarfs that of beverage containers? Are you
going to propose a return depoéit on these unsightly items? And if you pick.
on fhe soda bottle, how about the ketchup and the pickle jar? And if you put
a deposit requirement on a can of soda or a cen of beer, how about the can of
beans and the coffee can? They are all equally part of the litter-waste
problem.

Ridiculous, you say. The consumer public wouldn't stand for it. We in
}Qrganized labor agree, but we point out that the ridiculous begihs with A-2212
itself, which is as dangerous and tragic as it is self-defeating and futile.

Basically, the misunderstanding in A=2212 is that it attacks two products
rather than the misuse people make of them. It's not the fault of the soda
bottle or the beer can or the people who make them that non-considerate and
non-thinking people litter our parks and highways with them. And don't for
a moment conclude that a five cent deposit will change the manners, habits or
attitudes of the confirmed litterer.‘

There are sensible and considered ways of dealing with the entire pro-
blem of wastes., We in organized labor in cooperation with industry and

concerned citizens are spending our own resources in reaching a positive and

congtructive solution.
The answer lies not in punitive laws, which will earn neither the public's

cooperation or respect, but in the recycling and the return to productive use,
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not only of pop bottles and beer and soda cans but the hundred times that much
other types of waste and Junk that g0 to make up our waste ‘disposal and litter
problems.

The key to this achievement is the rapid development of techniques that
will result in efficient, economical methods of collection, separation, re-
cycling and the re-use of soiid wastes.

Prior to my election as Executive Vice President of the State AFL-CIO,

I served as a member and international representative of the United Steel
Vorkers. I know the steel industry, of which the can industry,is a vital part
is continuing research-into the feasibility of processing aluminum, steel and
tin cans for use in the produetion of steel. The research gives indications
that the basic oxygen furnace can handle all types of scrap metal derived from
re-cycled cans.

This research is being centered under the direetion of the National
Center for Solid Waste Disposal, a joint industry—labor effort. Our own union
has authorized this year a contribution‘of $25,000 to this worlk and other
- unions end other industries are also cooperating. |

| As with the can industry, so is the bottle industry engaged in develop~
ment of new uses for glass‘recovered from the junk heap, including the use of
ground glass as a substitute for limestone in the paving of our highways.

In conclusion, may I express the conV1ctlon that a better ecology and a
better life can and must be achieved without sacrificing the livelihoods of
thousands of workers and their families in industries which public demand has
itself created. It is a time for action, tempered with considered judgement
and understanding. |

In addition to the action of the glass and can institutes and direction

of the National Center for Solid Waste disposal for a solution to our waste
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problems, we most earnestly request that no legislative action be forthcoming
| on A-2212,

We propose that state and principally the federal government assume the
cost of constructlon on county operated. recycllng plants to handle our ever
increasing loads of solid waste materials. Not only would such a. program aid
in the fight agamst pollution, but would let the county profit, to the benefit
of the taxpayer, by selling the by-products of this method of reconversion.

We feel there is a great advantage in having an income producing division
of government rather than conétantly supporting those:divigions where there is

only outflow of taxpayers' dollars.
This approach, we feel, will lend a sound productive solution to many of

the problems confronting the taxpayers of New Jersey.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Joe, just one point that I think we should
challenge. I can't recall the State AFL-CIO and the State Chamber
of Commerce agreeing on a point since the declaration of war
against Spain, and we do have testimony today from a few people
saying that absolutely this would not cause an unemployment problem;
some of them even saying the fact of the matter is it is going to
aid employment, going to create jobs. And your statement, as a
fact, approximately 10,000 people will be unemployed in this State
if this bill became law - could you enlarge upon that 10,000
figure?

MR. STEVENS: Yes, I can. It's a very conservative estimate.
And let me enlarge on your statement as to the State Chamber. We've
also been on the same side with the can, glass, bottle industry
and many, many others, for a change. We got these statistics from
the different companies that we're involved with, as a joint effort.
The can industry, which will testify later has something upward of
5,000 jobs involved. The teamsters, you will hear in testimony
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later, will be affected by 6,000 jobs. The glass industry,
you will hear later, has upward of possibly 10,000 job
losses. So this conservative figure from the State was
compiled by all of these different industries! management
people from industry, who tell us this is how they feel it
will affect their particular industry. And their statistics
will come from a more authoritative source than mine.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Thank you. |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON:: Thank you, Mr. Stevens.

We will now recess until 2 o'clock.

(recess for lunch)
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(Afternoon session)

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: We will now resume the hearing.

Is Dr. Harold Colburn or Wyn Kennedy here? (No
response)

o Mr. Allen Harris. TIs he here? (No response)

Mr. Seales.

HENRY SEALES: Mr. Chairman and Committee members,
I am Henry Seales, original Reclamation Coordinator, Long
Branch., -

I am here as an environmentalist with no axe to grind,
political, business, industry, or otherwise, but I am strongly
opposed to this bill and would like to give documented facts.

First, I would like to compliment the sponsors of
A-2212 for tearing right into the heart of the critical need
for some action on environmental matters while, at the same
time, conducting this open hearing to give fullest attention
to whether you have been rightly or wrongfully advised.

If I may give a little background before I try to
document my opposition. For nearly a year, in Long Branch,
we have operated a national pilot program for reclamation. In
Long Branch alone, we're now into the second million, well
into the second million, pounds of waste material that we have
reclaimed and recycled, by volunteers with municipal support
in back of them. Some 1500 kids have received over $15,000.
These kids, mainly aged from 6 to 14, the ages for which there
is no employment, no means of worthwhile community involvement.
These kids are just as important in considering reclamation
and recycling as is waste material.

‘During this past year, we have also fostered other
reclamation centers throughout the State and Nation. We have
nearly 200 reclamation centers operatihg in the State of New
JerSey, over 300 throughout the State and Nation following
the lead of Long Branch. Reclamation works. We have facts
and figures to prove it.

| This bill, as presently proposed, is completely
unworkable, it is pie-in-the-sky wishfulness, and I believe

you géntlemen are beginning to realize that.
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This bill does not prohibit or ban thé ﬁsezof any
container materials now in common usage: iE does not restrict
the use of non-returnable or non-recyclable containers; all it
does is add an extra burden on the consumer.

Under this bill you would create the biggest boondoggle
that the state and nation has ever seen because all that you
or I, any one of us, would have to do to cash in on the biggest |
graft ever imposed on the consumer is to follow the two |
gualifications mentioned in this bill to extort a mihimum_of
5¢ extra on each container from every consumer. Under the
provisions of this bill, even the milk carton in your vending
machine - all you would have to do is stamp on that carton
"This is a container valid for refund at a nickel or more," and
there is no intent to transfer title to this container.

Now, I would be only toco happy to handle the refund
program for any beverage wholesaler or retailer whereby I
could charge a nickel each to every consumer and pay out the
half cent, maybe a penny but probably much less than a half
penny, that would be returned.

Unless there is an active and effective reclamation
operation with the education, the training, that is necessary
for the public -- I might start giving some of the documentation
that has been based on hard-earned experience in pioneering
practical reclamation and recycling,activitieso |

When we made a deal with Coke of New York to go to a
nickel on deposit containers, up until then we had gotten in,
even last year, the old 2¢ and 5¢ Coke containers that we paid
only scrap glass prices for. People brought them in for
ecology purposes, not for the deposit. After we switched over
to paying a nickel each, cash on the spot, for every Coke bottle
brought in, regardless of size, even the smallest size Coke
returnable container, our volume on th@se bottles decreased.
Whether we smashed them up or returned them for reuse made
no significant difference. . - _ : . : ,

If you pass a regulation that we go back to the old
thick-wall bottles, for example, proven experience, not only
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in Long Branch but in. Manasguan, in Bricktown, in West
Orangey all over the State, has already proven conclusively
that you will not decrease the litter or pollution problems,
yeu'will'only serve to inerease them.

Now, gentlemen, I know that you have many more people
who want to be heard. I have been asked by dozens of our
reclametion'greups throughout the State to appear here to try
to glve you some information from the comblned experience of
all of us.. I am trying to keep this ]or:n.,ef,i I will answer any
questions or give you any further information you might want
but I do have some suggestions - first, that you consider
alternate courses and that you consider a second hearing to
accentuate the positive and eliminate the negative/ this
appreaeh is negative. By‘accentuating the pOsitive, I am
asklng you to seek the reclamation and recycllng appreaches
in the practlcal and efficient ways so that by leglslatlon
‘yeu ceuld help to clear ‘up the litter and pollution.

1 One is this: If you requlred that all centalners be
recyclable, that T don't think anyone could argue withs
whether they are returnable, at least that they are recyclable.

Number two: If you will require all plastlcs to be
clearly marked and identified by the three basic cempenents
S0 that they can be eas11y separated and reclaimed.

And the third is to give maximum support to local and
regional reclamation operations.

And it would take a full day of hearings to even touch
the ‘studies that need to be done on the potentlels ef
rec¢lamation and recycling.

Now, gentlemen, could you give me your questions and
let me try to give you any answers that I can?

 ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: First of all, in Long Branch they
don"t'recyele plastic containers, do they? -

. MR. SEALES: In Long Branch we collect plastics. We
have not recycled‘any of them because we have stored them
until we have goﬁten enough volume to justify processing them
threﬁghm Waste plastic is worth 1 to 8¢ a pound on the present
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market with existing brokers if‘it is pf@pérly separated oﬁt@

As far as cans are concerned -- | -

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Let's deal with plastlcsg What
do you mean by properly separated out? How do you separate
them? ; | :

MR. SEALES: That's just it. At the present time, it
is almost impossible for any but the trained expert to separate
out the three basic types of plastic materials, containers and
otherwise. v

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Then y@u mean t@ say that 1n Long
Branch you, just have a warehouse full of plastics that you
have been collecting f@r over a year?

MR. SEALES: We have two trailers that since February
we have been storing and packing plastic into until we
have accumulated a sufficient volume to make a trial deal
with one of the three major plastic manufacturers that we've
been negotiating with for months, to take a trial run and
see what can be done with unsorted plastic mat@rials@

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: OCh, y@u’d@n“t kn@w‘what can be
done with it vet. .

MR. SEALES: We d@ kn@W; We have found offers if we
have sufficient volume of the separated material. We do not |
have the separated material because we do not have plastic
experts available to volunteer, such as I, c@mpletely unpaid
in conducting these activities. |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: And would you say that you are
the only reclamation center in our State that is actually
saving plastics or even collecting plastics?

MR. SEALES: No. I know of a half dozen others.

How far they've gone into it =-- but out of the nearly 200
reclamation centers operating in the State now, at least a
half dozen of them are following a similar course of stock-
piling plastics to accumulate a sufficient volume for
profitable economic dealings because that is_the point that
all reclamation has to be baSedygnﬂ it has to be profitable
from the sense that the benefits gained must overcome all
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costs involved.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: In setting up your reclamation
center in Long Branch - let me.get this straight, what date
was that when you established it? ‘

MR. SEALES: We started operation on NoVémber 28,»1976,
“after several months of education, training and publicity |
throughout the city.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: How many.days a week is that open?

MR, SEALES: It's open every Saturday from 9 a.m. till
2 p.m., and it has been operating all summer on Wednesday
evenings from 6 to 8 p.m. Andwélthough we reached the point
several mohthswago.of reclaiming and recycling 10% of ouk
total waste load throughout the entire City of 31,000 people,
we haven't begun to scratch the surface.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: That was my next gquestion. I was
going to ask you, what percentage of the usable waste are
you actually getting from the citizens of Long Branch, and
you say it's negligible. v

MR, SEALES: I don't consider 10% negligible, and
neither does anyone else in the Nation, otherwise, I doubt
we would have gotten the 7,000 inquiries that we've received.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You said you barely scratched the
surface, I forgot about the percentage.

Let me ask you a question. What aid or cooperation
did you get from government officials in establishing this
project? Do you get any help from the City of Long Branch
today?

MR. SEALES: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Did 'you get it right from the
beginning?

MR, SEALES: Yes. It would have been impossible to
have launched this program on a broad, continuing, permanent
basis without municipal support.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: And what is the support that they
gave you?

MR, SEALES: They put up $500, the City Council, as
a cash revolving fund so that we could pay cash, on the
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spot to the kids - by "kids", I mean our kids from 6 to 106 -
who brought in this waste material. Originally we were
operating on Saturdays only and the next week we would deliver
the materials to the various recycling plants. We paid a
penny a pound for the scrap glass brought in; we recovered
a penny a pound the following week: we recycled our money,
our revolving fund, as well as the material. We got back the
money to operate the following Saturday. As our volume grew
to the point where we were turning over $500 worth of materials
each week, the City Council authorized the advance of another
$500 into the revolving fund and that is the point where it
stands right now. If the City wanted to close down its
reclamation activities at once, they would be able to recover,
plus or minus about $100 of their original $1,000 because
all the money has gone back to the kids. In some areas there
is a profit made, such as Manasquan. They set up from the
beginning to make a profit for their beautification fund.
They had prices that they paid to the people at approximately
30% below what they received for it and they have achieved,
back in June, over $400 in: profit out of these operations
for the beautification programs throughout Manaéquan@
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSCN: Is that the extent, as far as
Long Branch's cooperation, the appropriation of the two e
$500? Was there any help as far as use of equipment or
manpower, or anything? : /¢4 
MR. SEALES: Yes. " S
ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Would you elaborate on that, p;éase?
MR. SEALES: Certainly. Tt's absolutely necessargf
for continuing municipal support to carry forth withoutfﬁ
reliance on volunteers along. If the municipal backbqﬁe
is there, then the volunteers will come in, but thereﬂWill
always be a more than sufficient mucleus if you've done a
proper organization and education job. The location ‘of the
center in Long Branch is at the Public Works' vard, so we do
have access to the power equipment for handling these
various materials. And when you go up to as high as;30,000
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pounds of glass handled in five hours, and similar amounts
of other materials, you've got to have some power equipment.

Now, the important thing is -- and, also, the City, of
course, has furnished the transportation to the reclamation
centers. But this, .again, does.  not conatitute’ additional
expense to the City. For example, all of our garbage has to
be transported to the landfill site which is 36 miles, round
trip distance, from Long Branch --

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Excuse me. Do you have municipal
garbage collection?

MR. SEALES: Yes, we do. Municipal garbage collection
started in.Febrﬁary of this year because of the exorbitanti;,
ever-increasing, single—bidwgarbage contractors' demands.

All right. So it's 36 miles round trip to our landfill
site. When our city trucks carry the glass that has been
collected by volunteers to the nearestuglass factory, it is
exactly 36 miles round trip. There hasn't been one extra
nickel spent on transporation of that waste material to
reclaim it. In fact, the City has saved the cost of picking
up,and collection of those tins, of thousands of pounds of
materials each week. They have been brought in by volunteers.
- The same applies to the other materials. Now paper is only
an 18 mile round trip. So the 20,000 pounds of paper that
we reclaim each week - we're even cutting in half the trans-
portation cost of delivering that paper.

Now each area has a different problem, a different set
of circumstances, different needs, different ocutlets for
waste materials, and it has to be studied. That is why I ran
weekly symposiums at City Hall in Long Branch for forty weeks.
We had hundreds of delegations throughout the State and Nation.
And it's those, like Mrs. Carml Graff from West Orange, who
is here right now, the Reclamation Coordinator in your home
town, Mr. Wilson, who have worked with us and gotten the
benefit of the experience and study that all of us, all these
months, have put into this, who have now gone forward with

suricessful reclamation programs.
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ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black? L

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: First of all, Mr. Seales, I would
like to extend my COngratulétiQns to yvou for youxr efforts and
the efforts that have gone forth in Long Branchgyandfj‘think
that municipality certainly deserves a lot of credit for
cooperating in this manner. I am so well impressed by vour
going operation that I wonder if you would be kind enough to
give me your address so that I may advise municipalities in
my district of your activities and, if they see their way
clear, I would hope that they would contact you for assistance.

MR, SEALES: Thank you. I would be very glad to.

The easiest and most simple way is to contact me through the
office of the Mayor of Long Branch, Henry R. Cioffi, without
whose fullest support this pilat program would never have
worked. And, since I am unpaid and a volunteer, the Mayor
provides his own office for me to use.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: The number?

MR. SEALES: 222-7000 extension 21, area code 201.

I've gotten mail and calls with every name, every department,
but they all get to me.' Now, after those 40 weeks that we
ran the symposiums where everyone came to Long Branch, we put
the show on the road. Tonight, the Regional Reclamation
Conference in West Orange; last week it was Dover Townships;
before that, Berkeley Heights.

The only help that has been given is from industry and
business and their professional groups. Believe you me, when
the chips are down, they'll be there helping, going out of
their way to do everything they can to help local groups and
any municipality: that's interested in this. We have in
Monmouth County, the non-profit Monmouth ECO Center, since
the burden of responding to all the ingquiries from everywhere,
- on reclamation and recycling, has grown so great, they are
making arrangements to take over the burden from me by trying
to respond, as far as possible, to these inquiries and furnish
materials, and so on. And if those who are interested and
concerned with reclamation and recycling want to organize in
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their own communities - if you will get hold of me in Long
Branch, we will set up a meeting or we will come to your
meeting and bring whatever speakers and whatever information
you might want, and do our best to help you.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Thank you, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr, Seales, along the same line,
rather than having it wvolunteer in nature, - you're doing an
excellent job and I want to commend you also - would it not
be better if the State of New Jersey got a little bit more
involved in it, as far as disseminating information and so
forth? ) ‘

MR. SEALES: We'd love that. We have not called on the
State of New Jersey for any financial help, and I would like
to point this out. In three years of research, prior to
starting last year, even preparing for this, the primary
purpose was to find out why all previous attempts had failed
for permanent, economical, broad reclamation programs. And
when we started this national.pilot.program in Long Branch,
last year, we started on such a simple "hands and knees"
"approach - we used old scraps of lumber to build bins so that
there would be no cost there. We intended to prove, and I
think we have, what we have done there can be done by anyone,
anywhere, under any circumstances.

ASSEMBLYMAN- WILSON: ' Assemblyman Kiehn?

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I would just like to .say, sir, 'that
'yéur testimony has been very interesting and educational to.me
because I'm a representative of Union County and I don't know
whether you've read about some of the problems they are having
with garbage disposal;'particularly in Linden, and I surely
will refer your name to our Freeholder in Union County who 1is
handling this matter. Thank you.

MR. SEALES: Thank you, sir.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: The only point I want to make is, -

T think Mr. Wilson will set up a meeting with Mr. Sullivan's

Department in the name of this Committee - that these

experiences that you've had, the expertise that you've acquired
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in actually doing the job should be brought into this and,
possibly, from the Department of. Environmental Pr@tecti@hw
we can get (a) appropriations so as to carry this into |
every community in the State; and (b) the legislation that
is necessary. I think you have done very, very‘well, indeed,
and the people owe a great debt to you. . R

MR. SEALES: Thank you, sir. v

I might mention this. As far as regional reclamation
is concerned, that is the eventual only answer and there
again we have pioneered. Starting in February of this year,
we brought in other communities, one by one, in regional
efforts because it's impossible, especially for the smaller
communities, to operate efficiently and economically,
especially in transportation of the various materials. So
one by one others have joined with usyuntil, to some extent
or another on various materials, we:are now working jointly
with 17 different communities in our an area. So, we know
when it comes to regional reformation activities we also have
the proven experience ready tO go forward from. And we are
very hopeful that the experience, not only ours but of others
who have done such a wonderful job throughout the State, can
be utilized.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: So do I. Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Fayﬂ you know, knew
what I was alluding to because I feel that the State of New
Jersey, the gov&rnmént, should be involved more in helping you.
You've done an excellent job, as far as volunteers, but I think
it is now the responsibility of the State to cooperate with
the local municipalities and use our reSQQrces and not have,
you know, a fly-by-night outfit, I mean where you have to rely
on a $500 appropriation and/another appropriation. I think
that gavernment throughout the State should become m@re‘invalved
and this Committee will see what we can do. | |

Thank you. ‘ ﬁ B , S ‘ :

MR, SEALES: And, Mr. Wilson, if.you will C@nSid@r the
possibility of a second hearing devoted to the positive and that
is just exactly what you gentlemen are talking about now, the
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suggestions not only from'ourselvesvbutvall the others who
have pioneered and have had the experience.
~ Thank you, sir. , |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you.

Howard Chester, Executive Secretary of the Stone,
Glass and Clay Coordinating Committee.

HOWARD P. CHE S TE R: Mr. Chairman, my name
is Howard Chester. I am Executive Secretary for the Stone,
Glass and Clay Coordinating Committee, which is a Committee
composed of sixvinternational unions who are affiliated with
the AFL-CIO and joined together to cooperate on mutual problems.
‘We have a combined membership of 240,000 workers, and we have
 active locals in almost all of the fifty states.

' With your permission, Mr. Chairman, I would appreciate
the opportunity to introduce to you the International Vice
President of one of the affected Unions, Mr. William McClOsky,
Vice President of the Glass Bottle Blowers and: also an
Executive Board Member and Vice President of the New Jersey
State AFL-CIO. | | |

In the State of New Jersey, approximately 17,000 workers
in this industry are represented by the Glass Bottle Blowers
Association, with an additional 2,000 workers represented by
the American Flint Glass Workers Union, so we are talking
about 19,000 workers, in the glass industry albneﬂ directly
affected and concerned with the legislation being considered
today. ' _

In addition to this strong basic industry in New
Jersey, our Committee members represént workers in other
imp@rtant industries located in this State, for example fine
china dinnerware, plumbing fixtures, ceramic tile represented
by the International Brothérhood of Potters; plastics by the
United Glass and Ceramic Workers and the Glass Bottle
Blowers Association, paint, gypsum board and plaster
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by the United Cement, Lime &4Gypsum Workers--so we have a vital
concern for the Qelfare of>our”meﬁbérs in the State 6f NeQ}éér$éy
as well as the remaininc 49 States--whethe:iit beiinrthe:area‘

of restrictive lecislation, %oreién,imports——or;és,in this case
legislation to han non-returnable beverage containers.’

It is our conviction that‘legislation“of this typé, such as
AP212, is not the solutién to the problem; in faCt we believe
passace of such’a bill would have disastrous conseaquences hy the
loss of jobs of a oreat number of the wquefs in thé class container
industry,vas well as the can. and piastic industries, with severe
consequences to the economy 6f the State'bf New Jersey,'

We have more than enough unemployment in this State as well
as our Nation and to add eQen mdre'unemployment by‘this kind of
lecislation would certainly not be in the best interest of the
Staté of New Jersey or our Nétibn.

This is borne out by President Nixon's‘most recent messace
in conjunction with the second annuai report'of the Qounéil on
Environmental Quality, under the heading "A Sense of Realism",
in speakino of decisions on the environment, he states, and I
auote "The effects of such decisions on our domestic economic
concerns-—jobs,’priées, foreiogn competitioh-—réquire explicit
and rigorous analyses to permit us to maintain a healthy economy
while we seek a heélthy environmént; It is essentiél tﬁat we have

both. It is simplistic to seek ecological perfection at the cost
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bankrupting the very tax-paying enterprises which must pay for
the social advances the nation seeks." end of cuote.
We believe the President's message on realism is clear and

that we should not "legislate away" jobs, especially in light

" of this industry, and others, in conjunction with the Federal

Government leading £he way to a more practical solution through
research, new products and recycling which will increase employ-
ment.

A concrete exaﬁple of what can be accomplished with cooperation
between Federal, State and City governments, along with Industry
is provided 5y the forward looking City of Franklin, Ohio, who
faced the problem of solid waste and moved to build the first
recycling plant that will take unsorted household garbage, and .
automatically process it tq reclaim glass, metals and paper
making fibers. The plant was built with a 2/3 grant from the
U.S. Environmenfal Protective Agency and officially dedicated

August 11, 1971.

Now, Mr. Chairman, I have the Souvenir Edltlon, and I think
I spoke to you about it when you were visiting the recycllng plants
in Millville and Bridgeton. I would like to leave it with you be-
cause it entails the many concerns that have moved into Franklin,
Ohio, to use this material that has been recycled through the
Franklin Solid Waste Plant.

I think you will find it quite interesting, and if I might
leave that with you, I would appreciate the opportunity. (Hands
to Committee.)
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We respectfully submit that the industry and the government
(Federal, State and City) are moving to constructive solutions
to the solid waste problem--that legislation to ban or require
mandatory deposits would result in a serious loss of jobs in the
beverage container industry, so we are strongly opposed to restrict-
ive legislation; and in support of the positive and practical

solution of recycling, conserving our natural resources and

improving the quality of our environment.

In conclusion, on behalf of the Glass Bottle Blowers Associa-
tion and The American Flint Glass Workers Union, two of the member
Unions of our Committee, I want to thank you for this opportunity
to express our views on this extremely important subject. We
hope that you will give favorable consideration to these views

in your deliberations on the proposed legislation.

Thank you, Mr. Chairman, and w stand ready to answer .
quéstions.

Mr. McClosky is well acquainted with the problems in
production and with employment in the industry, and stands ready
to answer any questions with regard to that.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I would like to address one question, sir,
and that is, realizing you have been here throughout the morning
and heard all of the testimony that preceded, I was wondering if
you would care to elaborate on the general impact of this legisla-
tion, if enacted, upon the employment situation.

MR. CHESTER: I would like to refer that question, Assemblyman
Black, if you would, to Mr. McClosky. He has discussed this job
situation with me and he knows it in more detail. So, with your

permission.
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MR. McCLOSKY: Thank you very much, Assemblyman Black. .
I w1ll be very happy to answer the question.

First, I might point this out to you and your colleagues
on this Committee. I think in the State of New Jersey we
ought to take a look at the history of the employment situati@n
and what the glass industry and the glass companies have done
for the State of New Jersey.

In Wharton, New Jersey, several years back, into your
State and my State here, moved a company by the name of
Thatcher Glass Company to pick up the slack of the unemploy-
ment that we had at that time. I think we proceeded then into
Carteret, New Jersey, and there was an expansion of a plant
of the Metro Glass Company in Carteret. We go into Brockway

Glass Company out at,Fréehold, New Jersey, which, incidentally,

has just put another tank into operation out there; and we
have the Owens Illinois Company in North Bergen. |

- Now a statement has been made here this morning by
my colleague in the State Labor Movement in reference to

10,000 jobs. I say to you gentlemen, this cannot be taken

lightly because, very frankly, productivity and the jobs that
would be gobbled up with this A-2212, by the elimination of
the non-returnable container, would be in the neighborhood
that he said. '

Prior to coming into this Chamber, I was interviewed

‘here by one of your stations and I said approximately 40%.

Now, we encourage, in the Glass Bottle Blowers

Association, many companies to come to this State, and they

. come to this State not to cloud the issue with a solid waste
" problem, not to cloud this issue here, but to give people an

opportunity to work for a living, hopefully then that we could
clear up this welfare program that we have not only in this
State but in the Nation.

Gentlemen, this will have an awful impact upon our peOple@
You heard Mr. Chester expound upon the plastic situation. Yes,
gentlemen, we have plastic workers in this town here and they
just recently moved in. I refer now to Continental Can
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Company; I refer to the Owens-Illinois Company: I refer to
the T. C. Wheaton Company. And we are very, very concerned.
But I don't want you to think, Assemblymen,'that we have no
consideratiOn_er this problem because we have. President
Emeritus, Lee W. Minton, of my International Union, has been
a member and is still a member of the National Center for
Research Recovery, Inc.: he has also been appointed on the
committee appointed by President Nixon to review this whole
situation. And, gentlemen, you heard this morning the
figure given by the Honorable Sandman, with regard to the
amount of money that has been appropriated, and I know your
desire and I know your wish to get that_m@ney moving but not
more so than mine. But you know there has to be a study and
the study, I think encompasses what Mr. Chester talked about
in that Franklin situation. But I can assure you, as
Legislators of the State of New Jersey, that I will endeavor
to help in any way that I can in my office with President
Emeritus Minton - I am sure of his caoperatign - to see that
the necessary funds come into the State of New Jersey in order
to be able to implement and move this program forward.

_ Gentlemen, we don't only think about ecology but we
also think about economics. ' ‘

I am going to ask my colleague, Mr. Moore, to give you
a copy of this, and I want to point out to you that we also
think about other types of litter, other than glass and metal,
because we say on this little thing here (referring to litter
bag) "Help, help, help keep America beautiful." And this
little one here, I am sure you will agree with me, won't hold
a tin can, it won't hold a bottle, it won't hold very many, but
it will hold a lot of gum wrappers, it will hold a lot of
cigarette packs, it will hold a lot of refuse that's in a car,
and that's costly when we talk about refuse pickup.

I also want to tell you gentlemen of the cooperation
of men who will come here after me, the steelworkers, the
industry is here that we represent and they will tell you
that what we say, as labor men, is not kidding. Mr. Minton
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is  joined with I.-W. Abel on this Nati@nal Center for Solid
Waste Dlsposalo I have always sald that New Jersey ‘has been
a first in many things, it has been good for the people, and
I respectfully request, gentlemena that this blll not be
enacted to be first to put people on the welfare rells and
on unemployment. 4 _

- I hope that answers your question. It may have_been
long but I had to encompass that.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much Mr. McCl@sky@

MR. McCLOSKY: Thank YOu. ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Carocle Grafg Please state for
the record your name and that of your,asscciation@
CAROLE G RA F: I am Carole Graf, Administrator-
Coordinator. of the West Orange Anti-Pollution Society.

. ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: And who is the young gentleman?
; MRS. GRAFT: Peter Glick, a student from Mountain High
School, and a worker at our reclamatien center@

I am here today to tell YOu about our reclamation
program and also to testify that I advocate total reclamation
- of all solid waste, including plastics.

Our reclamation center is very young, ten weeks old,
but 1t“s extremely active. Response has been great from the
citizens of West Orange and neighboring towns to bring us
their selid waste for cash. You can see the success of our
center by the grand tdtal figure on the summary report which
I have submitted. However,bour center is manned strietly by
volunteers, | a few adults and high school students, and we
realize that. programs such as ours cannot remain on a
volunteer basis. The responsibility for recycling solid
waste must be assumed bybthe municipal,vc@unty and state
officials. v “

As to your questions, I respectfully submit a
petition which we have recently passed to the people who are
concerned about our environment and who feel the urgency
to recycle all of our scolid waste. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Graf:, how much ceeperatien
did you get from your local government in order to establish
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this reclamation center?

MRS. GRAF:. Very good cooperation. They gave ug a $500
grant to start our program, which is constantly replenished
by money that we get from selling .glass, tin and!paper and
aluminum. And they also have supplied us with trucks. They
empty the bins - we have six bins located at the center where
we store six types of solid waste, and the town has emptied
the bins whenever necessary. They cooperate with us really
quite fully. We are quite satisfied.. | ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Mrs. Graf, T have one question
on Yyour general opinion of the success of the program. Has
it proven to be successful?

MRS. GRAF: I think it has been very successful, since
we've only been in Operation two months, and you can. see
from these figures (Summary Report - see p. 167 ) we have taken
in 94,425 pounds of glass alone, This past Saturday we toock
in 12,000 pounds of glass in four hours.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: This then loocks, to you, to be a
fine example of a successful program. ‘

MRS. GRAF: Well, I think there is a need for something
like this and the response from our citizens proves that they
will cooperate if they're educated, you know, well, paid too,
I guess, because they're coming. to 'get cash.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: One other thing. I gave my copy
of your report to the Stenographer, so could you let me have
another one? ' :

MRS. GRAF: Sure.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: All right, thank you very much.

We appreciate your coming down to testify.
We are now going to take just a five minute press break.

(Recess)
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(After‘recess)
. ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mrs. Elizabeth Salett. Please
state your name for the record. |
ELIZABETH SALETT: My name is Elizabeth Salett
and I am President of the Trenton Environmental Coalition.
On behalf of the Coalition, I wish to place our organization
strongly in favor of the proposed legislation.
| I am sure this Committee must be aware, as are all
thinkihg' persons, of the great e0@1ogical dangers facing our
State and our nation. Enough statistics and studies have
,demonstrated‘that‘unless all of us take concerted action to
‘reverse the pollution of these last decades, we can look forward
to a future of despair, disease and p@SSibly the death of our
society as we know it today.
- But, as I said, there is no need to recite these
gl@omy predlct1©nsu I assume that we are here t@day to dis-
cuss Sp@@lflc actions and remedial measures. Where do we go
from here? .
As we understand it, the assumption behind Asgsembly
Bill No. 2212 is that by bannlng the n@n-returnable beV@rage
‘VCthalnersg lelng a minimum refund value and imposing
penalties for non-compliance, individuals would be more likely
to redeem rather than discard their containers. We would
support this assumption. It is our experience that individuals
and families without the benefit of refunds or c@mpensatign
of any kind will save and hold for collection glass containers.
And they will do this in significant numbers. \
- Cur experlence in Trenton is most relevant to the /
p@lnt of individual initiative and resp©m81b111ty®
The Trenton Environmental Coalition is made up of
representatives of the League of Women Voters, the Trenton
municipal>g©vernment, the Urban Rodent and Insect Control
‘Program, some of the civic associations, representatives of
the City Council, the Chamber of Commerce, Goodwill Industries,
REAP - an ecology newsletter, Giordano Waste Material Company,
students, as well as other groups and interested individuals.
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The Coalition haS»beghhresponsible‘for initiating New Jersey's
first municipally operated glass recycling"pfogram,'baséd on weekly
curbside pick-ups. The program stérted'June.22, 1971 in a‘15 square
block area .in the Western sectiobn of the City and another 15 squate
bloclk area in the Model Cities section., A truck was furnished by the
Trenton Department‘ﬁf Public Works and a driver and L, men were provided
through Operation Mainstream of UPI, the city's Community Action Agency.
A second truck and additional men were furnished by the Urban Roden! and
Insect Control Program. Prior to the first pickup, several sets of
flyers were distributed to residents of each area - and they were asked
to blaco their glass at the curb on a specified morning (either Monday
or Tuesday). The men on the truck sort the bottles by éolor and when
necessary remove the metal rings. The glass is then taken to the Marine
Terminal where 1t is stored until enough has accumulated -- approximately
7 S5 barrels of crushed gléss -- to be trucked to Brockkay Glass Company .
in Freehold where it is‘recycled. The program is now coverting approxi-

mately 60 square blocks of the city and our long-range goal is to
become city-wide. |

There were those who told us before we atarted that we could not

mobilize enough people to save their glass to make a weekly curbside

: ’
pickup worthwhile ~- yet in Trenton, with the cooperation of the city
government and the Urban Rodent and Insect Control Program, we have .

succeeded in collecting approximately 17 tons of glass in the space of -

92



two months by covering uS square blocks of the,city and by picking up
glass from. the curbside on a weddy basis. |

There were others who told us that pedple in the cities do not
care enough and cannot be edugated sufficiently tokmake a recjcling
project numerlcally 31gnificant -- yet Trenton is a City -- and we
estimate that approximately 20% of the residents living within the
pickup areas are‘partiCipating in the program on a regular basis. Let
us not forget that our glass-recycling project required residents to
separate their glass from the rest of their garbage, to wash it-and
remove the metal rlngs left on the beverage bottles and to place the
glass at the curbside on a non-garbage day. Partlclpatlon in the
project requires some effort andlinconvenience on the part of the consume:
and we:interpret this effort as evidehce that large numbers of peosple
care a great deal about the continued polluting ef our environment and
the 1ncrea51ng volume of our disposable solid wastes.
| If people from all sectlons of the city are willing to separate
and collect glass when no refund is offered, then it seems clear that
large numbers of people are willing to go to some inconvenience in order
to reduce the volume of garbage produced by our "throw away" socikty .
Let us net delude ourselves, however, it will certainly take education
and much public information to change peoples' habits - but I think our
task is both p0331b1e and certainly necessary.

There were still others who told us that few people outside the
pilot pickup areas would voluntarily take their glass to a central
collection peint.Yét'hundrede_ef people‘eot only from Trenton but from
ali over Mercer County and neigbboriﬁg;Pennsylvania are bringing their

glass daily to the Marine Terminal to be recycled.
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But recycling is not thé“l©n9~range'anSWer;‘ First,
collecting and recycling of glass and other items is
enormously expensive to the municipality. It requires ad-
ditional trucks, large numbers of men, large storage areas,
as well as a great deal of public education. Secondly,
there is nothing in it for the consumer and in the long term,
unless he gets a refund, he will not continue to put his glass
out on the curbside. Thirdly, it is very haxd, if not im-
possible, to maihtain the interest of the c@nsumer'tg separate
and save glass for recycling.

There are those manufacturers who will say that they
do not want to be penalized for throwing away containers
while @tﬁer manufacturers - non-beverage ones - would continue
to use disposable containers. However, it is the beverage
containers that most blatantly despoil our environment. When
did you last see a ketchup bottle or 2 baby f@@d bottle on the
street corner or on the highway or in our parks - not recently,
I suspect@ But it was no doubt quite recently that you saw a
non-returnable Pepsi bottle or a soda can littering the street
or the sidewalk. ’

Before closing, T would like to suggest a few changes
in Assembly Bill No. 2212 as it now reads: '

1. Rather than specifying 5¢ as the minimum refund
value, it might be well to consider specifying a percentage
of the wholesale value as the refund value. With inflation
as it is now, we might soon discover that 5¢ no longer provides
enough of an incentive to return a container.

2. The Department of Envir@nmental Protection should be
mentioned as the admlnlstratlve agency resp@n51ble for im-
plementat1©n of the blll@ ’ ‘

In summary, let me say again, the public is very deeply
concerned with the steadily increasing level and volume of
non-returnable SQlid,WaStG?‘é manrity of the p@pulati@n will
cooperate with efforts to reduce this mass of garbage: and,
lastly, the time for action and farsightedness: is now, before

it costs us more and more to clean up our land and our
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environment.

Can I answer any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: You mentien that it's the
responsibility of the men on the truck, in the municipal
calléction, that they have to separate the glass andin turn
- take off the metal rings? ‘ ,

MRS. SALETT: Yes. Well, people aren't willing to do
it, or we ask them to do. it and they don't do it often enough.
So, in order to check .and make sure that it is done .properly,
we have to._redo it on the. truck,. which is very time-consuming...

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: That's what I was just thinking,
as far as the cost to the municipality when they have to do that.
What does Trenton have, municipal or private collection?

MRS. SALETT: It's municipal.:

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Then they are municipal employees
that are actually doing this.

MRS. SALETT: They are people from the Community -
Action Agency who do the pick-up in this case. But the
point is that unless the metal rings are removed, the
recycler will not accept the glass, and it's very time-
consuming. and very difficult to do, and it's a real problem
. because they will juét reject it, they will throw the glass
away unless the metal rings are removed or any of the metal
labeling. '

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Do you think it's a valid complaint
of the Chamber of Commerce and some of the other groups who
have said go from 5¢ to a dime, you know, that's 60¢& on a
case of Coke, or this might be regressive and repressive for

those who are on a very limited income?

MRS. SALETT: I'm not sure that I can speak to that
point. I think that if people do get their money back they
certainly would be willing to take the containers back. If
-people in all parts of Trenton, and I really mean all parts
of Trenton, are willing to collect the glass on a weekly
basis, save it and have someone come and pick it up, then I
can't understand why they would not be willing to go to the
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store and get some money for it. When they put it out on
the curb, they're not getting anything for it.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: The point is, we're dealing with
people on a very limited income to begin with and if we - and
I do - accept most of those figures in the near-poverty and
low-poverty level, this is an awful kick to place on what they
buy every week, soda and beer.

MRS, SALETT: Well, I'm not sure why all of this has
to be passed on to the consumer. I don't know that the
additional price has to be.paid entirely by the consumer
since the manufacturers would get their material back and
they would get it back many times because much of the glass
would be reused.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: - There is one part of your statement
where you mention a percentage of the wholesale value. Your
average bottle of soda in the A&P, or one of those stores,
runs about = 20¢ and if you came up with, let's say, 10% that
would be only 2¢&.

MRS. SALETT: Well, it could be a higher percentage.
What I want to avoid is the Coke bottle, or whatever, being
refundable for 2¢, you know going back to where now people
don't think it's worthwhile because our money value decreases.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Do you recommend something higher
than 5¢? o

MRS. SALETT: Higher than 5¢&, at least not specifying
just 5¢ because a year from now or two years from now 5¢
may not really be wortH what it is today, and may not serve
as an incentive any . longer. So, if yvou specify it, you will
get yourself in trouble, I think.

Thank you very much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank vou.

 Mr. Kiddoo.

GORDON  KIDDOO?¢:: I am Gordon Kiddoo. I am
Vice President of Vistron Corporation which is a subsidiary,
the chemicals and plastics subsidiary, of Standard Oil.

Company of Ohio.
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We believe that the proposed legislation under consideration here
is unnecessary and, if enacted, will prove to be ineffective, and costly,
to bottlers,_retailefs, and to the public. We are opposed to restrictive
legislation on packaging and believe that each person should be free to
choose the package he prefers, whether it be made of glass, metal, or
plastic, and should be educated on thg preferred method of disposal or
recycle,

While we support the positions of the can and glass container
industries in opposing this legislation, we do so from a different view-
point. We acknowledge the problems which are the cause of legislative
proposals, such as the one under consideration in New Jersey, and I have

asked to appear here today to tell you of a new development in beverage

packaging which we believe will alleviate many of the problems encountered
in disposing of present beverage containers. The basis for our position
is a new material developed by our company, the first plastic which will
satisfactorily contain carbonated beverages. Development of this plastic
resulted recenfly in an unsolicited environmental commendation for Vistron
by the quough of Roselle Pa;k in Union County, New Jersey.

Plastic beQerage béttles made from this BAREX(R) 210 bottle resin
are to be introduced into the marketplace by Pepsi-Cola later this year..
The bottles will be significantly lighter than thé giass they replace.

For instance? an S-pack of BAREX containers filled with éoft drinks will
weight 35 percent less £haﬁ an 8-pack of disposable'glass. Once the

bottles are emptied, the BAREX bottles weigh 86 percent less than the
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glasé bottles. The BAREX containers will not explode and will not shatter
when dropped; therefore, they cannot cut consumers .or other persons handling
the bottle. The containers can be safely disposed by any current or proposed ’
disposal method.

We believe that we have a superior product, but before introducing -
something as important as BAREX, we had to evaluate its impact on ouf

environment. Our conclusion is that environmentally you can't do better

than BAREX for packaging soft drinks, It can be compacted for nonpolluting
landfill, can be safely and completely burned, can be recycled, and minimizes
the drain on our natural resources. So, let us take a look at the environ-

mental issues and see how BAREX relates to each.

Sanitary Landfill

About 80 percent of the nation's solid wasﬁe is disposed in landfills.
Sanitary landfills involve taking the garbage or solid waste, compacting it,
and then covering it with dirt to prevent the formation of rodent and vermin
breeding grounds, as weil as air and water pollutants. »
There are two types of solid waste in a sanitary landfill operation.
Inert materials which never decqmpose include glass, bricks, cement, and
plastics; degradable materials inclﬁde garbage, leaves, some paper, etc.
It has been stated that a biodegradable container Qoul& be good for the
environment, If 100 percént of the solid waste in a sanitary landfill ~
operation were biodegradable §y bacterial aption, odors, gases, and liquids
to pollute the surrounding land, air, and water woﬁld be.released; In. .

addition, during the slow decomposition process,; the ground would be
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constantly éettling ;nd could not be used fof.commefcial build;ng, férming,
or recreatioﬁgl purpoées for many years.

With inert materials which don't degrade, the land can be ﬁrofitably
reclaimed/for buildiﬁg of farming purposes at an early date. There is no
water or‘ground pollutiﬁn. Botﬁles of BAREX are completely inert, can be

readily compacted, and are well suited for inert landfill.

Incineration

As sites for landfill operations become more difficult to find,
an increasingly important disposal method for solid waste is incineration.
Noncombustibles --- such as glass, metal, and ceramics --- are virtually
unaffected in the process and are still soiid waste after incineration.
Dry paper and most plastics burn satisfactorily. Much of our municipal
trash, however, is gafbage, wet paper, or leaves and grass clippings.

Such materials will not support combustion and incinerators require addi-
tional heat obtained from fuel oil or natural gas. BAREX bottles, on the
other hand, are derived from petroleum and have a high fuel value; their
presence ih trash actually reduces fuel requirements and improves incinerator
péfformance. Tésts by New York University and Midwest Research Institute
have also shown tﬁat; "The presence of BAREX 210 bottles in the waste fed

to an incineratof‘does not result in significant chanées in the composi-

tion of the stack effluents from the incinerator. Also, the ash produced
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from such burns could be easily removed frém the incinerator.” What this

means 1s that there are no changes in emissions to the air with the addi- .
tion of BAREX 210 to the solid wasté,feed of an iﬁcinérétor. Aléo, thé
weight and volume of the solid waste is greétl? reducea, thé éshes are ' .
easily removed, apd the;e are no gobs of melted glass or’unburned cans on
the incinerator grates. In terms of incinerétion, tﬁe BAREX beverage
container behaves just like the plastic-coated.paﬁer milk contéiner, with
the same innocuous products of combustion.

But aiding combustion is not the only benefit of including BAREX
in incinerator waste. In recently-designed incinerators (in Chicago and
Montreal, for instance), the heat produced during combustion is recovered
and used to produce steam or electrical power. Thus, the addition of
BAREX to the incinerator load, due to its high fuel value, produces more: - ‘ .
heat, or power, and makes the operation more economic. Making the crude
oil do double duty, first as'a container and then as fuel in an incinerator

or power plant, makes a lot of sense to us.

Conservation of Natural Resources and Energy

Many pepple belieygrthat this country is using more than its share
of raw materials an# natural resources. It‘is proper to ask about recycling
of BAREX bottles and I'm happy to say that this is feasible. UsedABAREX
beverage bottles can bg g;ound into plgstic chips ;nd thén recyélgd into -
nevalastic containers. | |

We think it's important to recognize, however, that returnable
glass bottles generate more pounds of waste than will nonreturnable BAREX
bottles. Assuming an average life of>five trips for a returnable beverage

bottle (and in the larger communities in the Northeast it's far lower than
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this), the amount of waste generated by returnable glass is
almost three times as great as the total waste generated by dis-
posal of a BAREXEbottle by either burial or‘by incineration.
This .comparison considers the fuel required to heat the watexr
for washing the bottles; it includes the detergent required to
clean the bottles: it dcés not include the quantities of pure’
water that are required for waéhing and rinsing the returnable
bottles and ﬁhen run into»waste in the sewer.

‘The first chart my Associaﬁe, Mr. Brown, has shows that
a retﬁrnable glass bottle must make about 15 trips before the
resulting waste per trip is lower than when using a single
rtrip BAREX beverage bottie -— and the average returnable bottle
no l@nger makes this many round trips. This chart is on the
‘back of the materlal which we have distributed. .(See jo 168)

In comparing the usage of our natural resources for
beverage containers - for both energy and raw materials needs -
the BAREX bottle is also the best choice environmentally. The
results of our study on the second chart show that a BAREX bottle
reqguires a smaller quantity of raw materials and energy than
any other type of beverage containers.

Now, finally, the last point on the environment relating
to non-returnable beverage bottles, and this is the matter of
litter which is of concern to all Americans.

Litter is really 1andscape pollutlon by careless Americans.
Y@u see it on the highways, in parks and on the beaches. The
material is unsightly, sgmetlmes dangerous, and always expensive
to pick up. I must confess, BAREX litters exactly like a metal

can or glass bottle. It will remain as litter until it is *removed.
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Since BAREX bottles can be safely agducowpletely consumed by
incineration, however, we believe that the picnicker will dispose of BAREX
bottles as he will his paper plates and cups and plastic spoons and forks ---
by putting them into his fire before he extinguishes ft. We believe that
the lightweight combustible BAREX bottles are far less likely than metai
and glass containers to be dumped on the ground to offend the next picnicker.

I also want to point out that a recent national study showed that

only a small part of roadside litter consists of nonreturnable beverage

containers. Furthermore, returnable beverage bottles were almost as

numerous as the nb-deposit containers in this survey. Also, soft drink
companies have found that higher refundable deposits on returnable containers
have reduced saies of such packages without incfeasing the fraction of such
containers returned for the depésit. Deéosits simply don't ensure the

return of beverage containers and have not significantly reduced roadside
litter. An effective national coﬁscience must be developed to sélve the
litter problem. Litter can be curbed only by individuals in the American
public concerned about landscape pollution, and by no one else. Legislation

and fines have not proven effective.

SUMMARY
I'd like to summarize the points I've tried to make today:

(1) BAREX plastic bottles give the consumer the light-weight, nonbreaking,

nonexploding disposable beverage container which he seeks.
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(2) BAREX bottles can be easily and safely used in landfills.

(3) BAREX bottles can be completely and safely consumed by incineration ---
the equivalent of a paper container for carbonated beverages.

(4) We believe that the light weight and easy disposability of BAREX
bottles will cause the consumer to dispose of this container in an

acceptable fashion and not by littering.

(5) BAREX offers a more efficient use of our natural resources for
beverage packaging.

(6) We join others in stating our belief that legislation against
no-deposit beverage containers will not effectively reduce littering
-and will impose an unfair economic burden on both retailers and
consumersf In any event, however, we urge that your legislation
not impose this unfair burden upon an environmentally-improved

convenience package, the BAREX plastic beverage bottle.

Thank you, gentlemen.

103



ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman FPay?

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Mr. Kiddoo, this sounds like the
greatest invention since the wheel, as far as new processes
are concerned. If this isyeverything ygu say it is, will
this eventually replace the aluminum can and the other
plastics? ‘

MR. KIDDOO: I hesitate to answer that with so many
representatives of the glass and metal can industries in this
room today, but that's our intention, to get more than our
share of the beveragé container market. |

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: 'And how long has this been tested to
reach all of these conclusions?

MR. KIDDOO: Well, in the marketplace it has been
tested by Pepsi—Cglé in a market test which was conducted in
1970 in Las Vegas. Pepsi-Cola is - on the basis of that test,
we've been cooperating with Pepsi and are producing a sub-
stantial quantityrof material at the present time. Pepsi-Cola
intends to launch into a much larger and I believe a con-
tinuing marketing program based on these. The beverage business
is such a large business, however, it admittedly will be
some time before plastic beverage containers of this type
have any significant impact on the total market. But we
believe that this is the kind of container which is going to
be environmentally imporﬁant and attractive in the future, and
we think that legislation such as this should be carefully
drafted so as not to deter the development of improved
packaging. _

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: I just wondered if they were keg
lined.
| MR. KIDDOO: This one has beer in it and this one has
Pepsi in it.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: - You mentioned in your statement
that you received an unsolicited environmental commendation
from the Borough of Roselle Park. How was that brought
about? It happens to be my area.

MR. KIDDOO: Well, we have been working with major
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container companies and major soft drink companies on this
matter for quite a while. We have published articles in

. the technical press. And somebody who is in Roselle Park
apparently heard about it because one day, in the mail, we
got a letter with an attached commendation from the Borough,
the Council or whatever the governing body is, out of a clear
blue sky. We were pleased but nonetheless surprised.

» ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Will your container affect the
cost of the product that might be placed in there?

MR, KIDDOO: Today this is only a semi-commercial
resin. The bottles today are moré costly than glass or the
metal containers. .

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: They are. ‘

‘ MR. KIDDOO: They are today because it is not a fully
commercial product. We believe that when the product is
fully commercial, within a year or two, we can produce a
very lightweight plastic bottle, such as this, at a price
which is competitive with the%price of the one-way beverage
container of either glass or metal.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: And where will they be manufactured?
in New Jersey? :

MR. KIDDOO: We believe that in time the plastic
bottles will be blown at the bottling plant. We think that's
going to be a development that will take place@.‘We think that
bottles will be made at or in or adjacent to the bottling
plant.itself; It doesn't make a lot of sense to ship a
bulky, but nonetheless lightweight, product, shch as plastic
bottles, all around the country. We think that the resin
which is derived from. petroleum will be made in chemical and
plastic plants that are located.principally near refining and
tetrachemical plants such as those on the Gulf Coast or along
the East Coast. :

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: And you mentioned that it w@uld be
good landfill.

MR. KIDDOO: Yes. It's an inert material.
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ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: In its present state, would you
recommend just throwing the bottles in there?

MR. KIDDOO: Well, ideally, in a landfill operation you
should compact the material so as to get as much material into
a given duip . asopossible. Ordinarilly, this is done by running
a bulldozer back and forth across it. If you run a bull--
dozer across this bottle, it will crush.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: And that will last an indefinite
period? I mean, it will not disintegrate?

MR, KIDDOO: It would. No, it will not.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Just like crushed stone.

MR, KIDDOO: It will be like crushed stone or glass or
an aluminum can in a landfill operation, it will be there for
a long while, forever, from a practical standpoint.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you. '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you, Mr. Kiddoo.

Mr. Moran.

WILLIAM M ORA N: ﬁy name is William Moran. I do
not have a prepared statement, Mr. Chairman.

Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee: My name
iw William Moran. I am Director of the United Steel Workers
of America, covering the State of New Jersey. We have
approximately 30,000 members in the State of New Jersey, with
8500 of those members invalvéd in the container industry.

It is our hope that this Committee, after a study of
this bill, will eliminate it from the legislative coffers
here in Trenton.

Our Union, for a long time, has been interested in the
ecology of our country. We have a vital interest in clean air
because it is members of our Union that pick up silicosis and
other respiratory diseases in the plants throughout this nation
and here in New Jersey, as well as in the mining operations of
our country. So, we have a vital interest in clean air; we
have a very vital interest in clean streamss;and we are bitterly
opposed to the pollution of our communities, our highways, our
cities, but we don't believe that a negative approach is the
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solution to these problems.

It is our feeling that for too many centuries people
have just locked at that garbage heap grow and grow. And I
listened to some of these people here today that would like
" to go back to the old days. I'm never convinced that that's
a good idea. 1I'm not that old but I recall that in our
community - this was before there were too many cars - we
used to carry our refuse to the outer limits of our community
and toss it into some convenient area and this would become,
as a rule, I guess, our town or community dump. Later, the
wagon or truck picked it up at our homes and took it out
and dumped it in the same type of areas.  So, for centuries,
we've been doing the same thing over and over again. Now the
solution to all this is to go ocut and gather glass and cans
and other refuse, on a door to door basis. It's not going to
works: it's impractical. v , . .

I think that Mr. Seale and his Associates should be
commended for their efforts because these people have no
axe to grind anywhere along the line, other than pride in
their community. But pride in the community alone is not
enough.. Sooner or later, the Mr. Seales and the others
will pass on and we will go back to the same old business of
letting our garbage lay around and the litter move around our
streets and our highways. There has to be something m©rev
substantial than this.

In the year of 1971, with all the knowledge that we
have in this country, it seems inconceivable that we can’'t
do something with this 360 to 380 million tons of solid waste.
There are over 50 processes now in our country that we ought
to take a look at. One has been mentioned here - Franklin,
Ohio, a city of 10,000 people. They put up a plant costing
$2,100,000, two-thirds of this paid by the Federal Government.
They're making a profit on getting rid of their waste at this
time. _ |

The aluminum industry of our country has hired an
engineering firm: and at cost of $15 million a community of
200,000 people can get rid of 500 tons of solid waste each
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day.

. The City of Palo Alto in California produces 15,000
kilowatts of electricity daily by getting rid of 400,000 tons
of solid waste daily in their incinerators, modern’ incinerators.

The school W@rcesterfTech;yatmworcester,;MassaChusétt@f
has a grant and their proiject is to look at something different:
their project is to take the organic waste we pick up and try
to get some further use out of it. They are now going to get
from the organic waste that we have various types of oil. Our
refuse is a gold mine, if we want to dig into it. There is
not only tin, aluminum, glass, there is zinc and lead and iron.
And just the other day, while we were negotiating in Washington,
I saw a little article that in one of our midwestern cities
some lady, as woman do, just reached into her purse and took
out a little bit of tissue: and decided to wipe her nose and
she was very close to the wastebasket along the street but
she decided, why should I have to dump that into that basket,
she just tossed it on the street and walked away. About a half
hour later she recalled that she had placed some diamonds that
had been taken out of her ring in a bit of tissue and this
caused her some concern. She went through her purse like mad
and found, to her dismay, that she had tossed the diamonds
in that tissué;right on the street alongside of that garbage
‘can. She hurried back but it was gone. This is just to prove
that you may find anything in our refuse and we may find
diamonds or gold or whatever it may be.

We have companies in this country that deal with sifting
through this. We have several companies here in New York that
try to take old scrap copper and from it they come up with
gold and other metals that sold probably at a higher price than
the copper they picked up.

So our interest is in doing something positive. With
all of these programs that are available to us, I can't .conceive
the Department here in New Jersey taking a negative approach
to a modern problem.

At the University of Maryland, the Bureau of Mines has
another project in which they separate their garbage, shred it,
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burn it; and then sell this too at a profit. I believe that
all of the refuse that they get amounts to - they sell it at
the rate of $12 per ton. I believe they pull it in at $3 per
ton, that's the cost of collecting it and running it through
the process: and, naturally, the same amount that comes in
does not_go out in sale but the salable product gives them an
income of $12 per ton.

Now, to move back to this collection, the returnable
bottle as. against the non-returnable bottle or the returnable
can or container as . against the non-returnable - is there any
rule or regulation involved in this legislation that will
force the storekeeper to take back this bottle?

I can just picture the small grocery store in the
neighborhood that‘d@esn“t have the size of the huge chain
stores; he's very limited in space. If the neighborhood kids
take up a collection of all the returnable bottles in the
neighborhood, is he going to be forced to take these bottles?
Are we going to be able to force the chain stores in this
country to take the returnable bottles? Or will we, in the
community, have to set up some means of collecting these
bottles and thereby add to the cost of our community?

The real fall guy in this type of legislation is the
consumer. Some people say, don't just tax them 5¢, hurt
them a little more, charge them 10¢&. And, as the good
Assemblyman said, why not stop at $50 or $100?

The thing is to hurt the consumer. Well, the consuming
public in this country is 200 million people and, if we try to
.legislate against those 200 million peoplel they re going to
have something to say.

In the modern way.of purchasing and packaglng in this
country, you are going to have to look at thatxconsumer, because
he's the buyer. And you have to make his purchases as convenient
as possible to .get him. We're in a very great competitive
world. We've seen just a little of that this morning, in the
approach of some of these men from business that their container
is better than the others, it's easier to get rid of. So the
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competition in this country is great;>‘The consumer is going
to go to the most convenient method of purchasing and he's -
not interested in being forced to come into a chain store with
bags and bags of returnable bottles. Frankly, he'd rather
toss them into a garbage can; and so would I.- ‘

In our garbage disposal system in this country, it's
about time we got to picking up the garbage at our homes and
getting it into either a city-owned garbage disposal plant or
a privately-owned one, and start the process at that point.
That's the convenient way. I don't have to have- anyone put
an extra load on my back. ' '

In today's world there is enough of a load on each and
every one of us and I just don't agree on going back to ten
vears ago or a hundred yvears ago, or even yesterday. I think
it's always better to look forward and hope that there's a
better tomorrow, rather than loock back on what we think was a
great past. B ’

So, gentlemen, I am hoping - and, incidentally, it has
been said so many times today and covered by so many other
speakers, I didn't want to get into too many of the details,
but this could cost many Jjobs to our steelworkers in the can
industry: it could cost jobs to our already hurt basic steel
industry: it could cost jobs in the aluminum industry and the
other packaging industries in this country. And I don't think
we have to hurt them,any more. And I just don't know how we're
going to convince the American people that, if you tax a beverage
container or a beer container or a milk bottle or a juice can,
you“re not going to move over and tax a can of tomatoes or the
beans or any other container on that shelf. And all the consumer
is going to see is another hidden tax coming our way. And there
is no" sense in saying vou're going to get rid of the super-
marketss they're here to stay and they're going to get bigger.
And we're going to be shipping our products and they're going
to be on the shelves of those stores because the women and the
men of this country demand that they be there. And when there is
a demand by the American public, it's up to American industry to
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supply it. And we have seen here in this country, because
of the inadequacy and the refusal of the American automobile
industry to do something about the consumer's needs in this
country, they've reached out and purchased their small cars
from European and Asiatic countries. . -,

So, it's my feeling that I agree with Mr. Seales.

Let's knock out this negative, westrictive legislati@n and
let's get to some positive legislation for the people of

our State and our country. And we, too, would like to. .appear
back here again when we move to forward-looking legislation.’

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Moran, I am in agreement with
you that in the future this is what we have to do, as far as
developing.a plant maybe similar to the one in Franklin, Ohio,
but, being a.government officialwand ydu a union official,
realistically we know this is not around the corner, it's
going to take a great deal of .government funds to build a
plant of this nature. As a Committee, we are interested in
interim measures, and this is what we have to deal with at
this time, an interim measure, whether it”bemthroﬁgh increased
effort as far as recycling and :sa . forth, but Whét you mentién,
as far as a plant and so forth, that's quite . a little ways in
the future. Look how long it has taken us to even upgrade
our sewage treatment plants in the State of New Jersey. I
think we have to take a realistic approach when we talk about
non-returnable bottles or what to do with them, and so forth,
but I agree with you as far as the plant but that still, I'm
sorry to say, is way off in the future.

MR, MORAN: Well, I don't think it has to be off in
the future. I think, on things that are necessary for the
American people, we usually move slowly, much too slowly.

The funds are available in Washington for some pilot programs

but I thihky‘more than that, that the Legislature here in

New Jersey could start to take a good look at our own State

and perhaps do something, with the‘help of the Federal Government,
if necessary, but without the help of the Federal Government,

also if necessary. And I think that the stop-gap measure
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that you talk about. is in the hands of some pretty good
people, such as Mr. Seales and others. And then these
other areas through@ut'Qur State where they're picking

up bottles and cans and aluminum containers, and so on,
these are temporary measures, these are the temporary measures.
We shouldn't get those too far out in front because pecple's
interest in this will wane after a while. - So, while we have
some stop-gap measures, I think it's absolutely necessary
that we do something about this. We have to get out and
shout from the rooftops about it, I guess, and get this
legislation through, and through in a hurry‘ because it's

360 million tons of garbage that we have today and in maybe
two or three years we're going to double that. And we soon
can bury ourselves in garbage unless we act, and act soon.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Fay?

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: No questions.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: No gquestions.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Moran,

) Mr. Merck. _ ,
ALBERT W. M E R C K: Mr. Chairman, my name is
Albert W. Merck. I reside at Corey Lane, Mendham , New Jersey.
I am a Repubiican nominee for the State Assembly from Morris
County District 10A in this year's election.

I support Assembly Bill 2212. My view of the proposed
legislation is that it is a small but necessary step towards
the eventual recycling of virtually all the reusable materials
which now end up in our sanitary landfills and incinerators.

I am in favor of A-2212 but I believe it can be
improved. If this proposed bill is passed, there is concern,
parficularly among those employed by the glass bottle
manufacturing firms, such as the Thatcher Glass Company of
Wharton, which is in my district. They are concerned that
a reduction in the number of non-returnable containers produced
will result in fewer jobs.

I believe this bill can be improved by first requiring_
an impartial study of the non-returnable container industry.
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to determine the number of persons whose jobs would be
directly affected by the bill, and I would hope this Committee
would obtain such data before reporting the bill out.

Further, the state and local municipalities will receive
both economic and aesthetic benéfits from this legislation. I
recommend that those economic savings be calculated, wherever
possible, and that atportidn of those benefits be appropriated
as a part of this bill to provide for the retraining, relocation,
or possible early retirement of those employees whose jobs
may be affected by actions of this bill.

The Department of Labor and Industry has a very active
interest in the jobs to be provided in the State, and they
should be asked to assist in the estimating of impactron jobs
as well as making arrangements to take care of displaced workers,
if any. The bill should not take effect until these prepara-
tions have been made. ’

I would hope, too, that the Department of Environmental
Protection would offer suggestions in the near future for the
Legislature which will lead to new laws requiring the separa-
"tion of othérirecoverable materials, notably paper products,
and recycling of all of them.

This could spur the creation of many new job opportunities.
It would be logical to place any workers affected by A-2212
in such newly created positions.

- Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: What is your economic plan for these
replaced, unemployed workers? ' : ﬁ '

MR, MERCK: I believe, sir, that we can calculate
certain economic benefits, both to municipalities and to the
State at large, which could result in less litter and less
'solid waste having to be disposed of. If these ecoﬁ@mic,
benefits, which I believe are real, could be assessed, I think
we could logically offset those benefits by appropriating a
portion of them to assist in the retraining and relocation, or
-possibly early retirement, of any workers who might be displaced
should this legislation affect them. In other words, I am

113



proposing that we trade off the benefits‘that we hope tQ
get from the bill to take care of anyone who méy be possibly
adversely affected by the bill. | o

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Well, if these AFL-CIO figures are
accurate, you would have to comeuup.with a program for
approximately 10,000 people. If you can do that, you should
run for the Presidency, not for the Assembly.

MR.’MERCK? Mr. Chairman, I suggested an impartial study
of the effects of these bills.

' ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Assemblyman Black?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I have a fequuestionse

Mr. Merck, do you feel that we would have tobperhaps
come back with the old heavy glass bottles for deposit. or
would we be.able to.go right ahead with the present molds
that are being utilized?

MR, MERCK: I am not gualified to answer that, but my
faith in American ingenuity is such that everything thét
industry produces this year is certain to bevreplaced by
something else very soon.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Well, you see, I asked this question
because I, too, have faith in American industry, although
it's sorely strained at times. I question, when the State of
New Jersey is having difficulty controlling the flow of
narcotics into the State, where we would, first of all, gain the
the addtional people on a state income to identify bottles
that have been sold in New Jersey as bottles that have been
sold in New Jersey. That's point number one. And, secondly,
how would we prevent, if we did not identify thgse bottleé, -
how would we prevent bottles from coming across the bridge
from Pennsylvania,. == bottles that haven't had deposits paid on
them ==, and having pe@plevCQIlect them and receive the deposit?
This has me utterly and\completély amazed. I agree that
perhaps we would need more than the 10,000 people we would put
out of work. We might be able to solve the entire unemployment
probkblem in the State of New Jersey by having all the unemployed
people on the rolls stamp the bottles with a New Jersey stamp
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or stand at the boundaries and check every vehicle coming
into the State.

MR, MERCK: May I comment on that?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Please do. / »

MR, MERCK: I do not have the solution. However, I
would point to our neighboring state of Pennsylvania which has
somé highly restrictive regulations that concern the food
products, and if food products are to come into Pennsylvania
they must meet certain specifications and that must be shown
on each package. I am not sure! that this is transferable
but I notice, in other context, it has been done.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON ¢ Thank you very much, Mr. Merck.

MR, MERCK: Thank you very much,‘kentlemene

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Mr. Guagliardo, United Steelworkers.
J O HN D. GUAGLIARDO: Mr. Chairman, members of
the Committee, ladies and .gentlemen, I .am John Guagliardo,
President of Local 3913, United Steelworkers of America, .-
AFL-CIO, I am employed at the Paterson Plant #48 of Continental
Can Company. I .speak against this bill, A-2212, and take ﬁhis
opportunity and the liberty to express my deep concern in behalf
of the 1300 citizens of my local in our State whom I have the
privilege to represent as President.

Probklems of ecology are far too serious to be treated
on a piecemeal basis, with each of the 50 states going its
own way, and with inadequate research and study being made on
the federal level. I come to you today to ask you to reflect
with me a moment in regard to pending bills and doing away
with bill A-2212. , :

Whereaé, here in our state we are hurrying through the
State Legislature a bill that would bar the wholesale or
retail sale of -- ; :

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON:  Excuse me. I would like to clarify
that. « We're not hurrying through. If we were hurrying it
through, we would not be holding a public hearing. We're
- just having a hearing to get opinions. | ‘

MR. GUAGLIARDO: Well then, you're getting my @pini@ﬁm

¢
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My mistake in saying "hurrying it through." It is brought
forth that you would bar the wholesale or retail sale of
non-returnable containers. Gentlemen, the adoption of such
legislation would wipe out jobs by the thousands at a time of
mass unemployment in our nation and in our State. This would
cause a large scale of unemployment which would outweigh any
benefit that would accrue.

Litter is a problem in all cities, but what everyone
is losing sight of is that neither the container nor the
manufacturer are to blame. Gentlemen, let's use common sense.
The containers do not litter, people do. Those irresponsible
characters who cause this condition in our cities should be
penalized, not the working people producing the containers.

If anythinga Mr. Assemblyman, you all should take action
against those who are guilty of this gross act. To pass this
bill with no regard to its effect would be an easy way. Solid
waste 1s a serious problem in our American cities; it is
getting increasingly worse. However, the principal question
in my mind is, does the bahning of non-returnable cans
accomplish the goals being sought? Look at our highways.

Don‘t we also face this problem of litter? Does this mean
that we will place into legislation a law banning the selling
of cars? Of course, not. It is silly to think of it, for how
can a car litter? It is the individual who does the littering.
So, what has been done? We have imposed a fine for littering
on our highways. Well, Mr. Assemblyman, what is the difference
between the car and the container?

In closing, let me point out a fact which I'm sure you
are all well aware of, on the question of the 5¢ deposit on
non-returnable containers. There is a very great danger in
returnable containers. They will lie around in the department
stores in our communities and create a much greater problem to
the health of our citizens. These returnable containers will
draw roaches, dirt, ants, and many other insects by the
thousands which, in effect, will bring greater danger, and now

we have a health hazard .to our citizens in our communities.
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Gentlemen, someone should consider that factor of
safety to our citizens also. So you can see it is truly not
a simple problem. Recycling is the solution to solid waste
pollution. I am ignorant in this phase of the solution. I'm
sure that there are many experts here who would bring ocut and
have brought out the facts and the feasibility of recycling,
for they have done considerable research in this field.

Another factor that I just thought of. You all know
that we have a tremendous problem in our cities regarding
crime. Our wives, our children, for nickels and dimes, are.
being attacked by people all over the cities. It's not only
in our State, it's all over. For nickels and dimes they are
being attacked. Can you imagine what could happen if
returnable deposits on cans or bottles or any containers,
and I should go out and buy two cases - I go out shopping once
a week,’most everybody does in this country, and.we store
these cans in our cellars because we don't go there every day -
how this would help to increase crime. We're safe today in
our homes because of the fact they'’re our homes. They won't
come into your home, though they do. But imagine if ‘we have
to store these cans in our cellars? We won't even be .safe
in our homes. The police departments now have problems, as it
is. None of us would be safe in our homes. We'd have the
dope addicts and what-not coming into our cellars, breaking
our windows, to get those returnable bottles to get the money
on them. It's not as simple as everybody thinks. There are
a lot of factors in this.

I close by stating, Mr. Chairman and Assemblyman,
please do not forget, containers do not litter, it is the
individual who litters.

Thank you wvery much.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No questions)

Thank you very much, Mr. Guagliardo.

Would the representative from Princeton High School

like to present a statement?
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T O M GOPSIULL: My name is Tom Gopsill. I would
just like to clear something up. You said, representative
from Princeton High School: I'm representing all the high
school students of Princeton. We have three private schools
and two public schools. l ' '

I would like to start with a quate from TRUE Magazine:

"Each of us is not only his brother's keeper, he is
the keeper of his animal and plant brother as well; the
keeper of the air he breathes, the water he drinks and the
soil he stands on. We are all planet-keepers and in all the
universe we have only this one planet to keep."”

Is ecology a fad, a diversion from other national
issues?

People claim that the environment will never be saved .
until man lives in harmony with nature, and they claim this
is impossible. But, isn’'t this the final step? What about
the first step - harmony bwtween man and man, citizen and
industry.

I am a firm believer that before too long industry and
the scientists can be the conservationist's best friend. But
many don't see it this way: instead, they see industry as a
negative, this see this noise, sludge, smog and erosion. But
industry isn't all negative and conservationists can always
say, "you can't do this, you cén“t do that,"” but, instead, the
two must work together for the good of our natural resources.

The young people in this country are for this. The
-Boy Scouts.- there are 5 million of us in this country - are
beginning to unwind with project SOAR. Hundreds of students

are volunteering time at recycling projects across the country.

Also, students are working on paper recycling in schools.
Today we face an issue of returnable containers.
Almost everyone here, that I've heard, spoke favorably on
recycling, whether they were for or against this bill. Yet,
it does no" good to talk and dream about it while bottles
still collect in dump yards and clutter the countryside.
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Recycling, to me, is llke pollutlun of a lake. We
cannot solve the pollution of the lake until we look into
the tributaries. It's the same way with recycling. What
makes up recycling iskthe bottles, the trash, paperﬂ plastics.
We must start somewhere. We can't start right in the middle.
This is what we're working for today. o

Is ecoleogy still a fad? I have signatures here of
525 students, which I gathered yesterday from the Princeton
School System, high school age, and they're all in favor of
this bill. to placé a control on non-returnéble bottles.

The bottles that are behind you. Do you want us to
leave them or do you want us to return them? Think about it.
Then multiply by 200 million. Are returnable bottles still
a trivial quest:.on’>

Thank you very much ,

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: 'Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Yes, I have one question.

Yesterday, you said, you secured 500 signatures?

MR, GOPSILL: 525, right. |

ASSEMBLYMAN‘BLACK: Were éll of the signers of that
petition aware of all the factors that were made evident and
public today, that you overheard?

MR, GOPSILL: Well, I'll admit that I've learned many
things today at this meeting. We talked on Monday and then
I passed the petition around on Tuesday during lunch, and
stated the situation on returnable bottles, which we did talk
about»todayé Some of the things, I do not agree with, about
the stress on‘industry to change their systems to clean bottles,
things of this nature. Well, we have 1,000 kids in the high
school and we .got about 400 from the school just during one
lunch period. Some are against, but most are for.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I was interested in whether or not
you wereuplanning.on advising the fellow students as to what
you heard today, when you. go back. |

MR. GOPSILL: I'm planning on it, yes: and I'm hoping
that you'll pass this legislatidn@ - |
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ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: That's all. Thank y@ujvery much.
Good job. ' o ' '

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: I would like to ask, how old are
you? '

MR. GOPSILL: 17.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: 17. When will you be 182

MR. GOPSILL: This November. ”

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Well, what T just wanted to
mention to you'was the fact that by being here today you
learned a lot about there being different sides to every
issue, and this is the reason for having hearings. And as
you become old enough to vote, this is what the young people
have to keep in mind too, as far as‘candidateso And I think
what you learned today about a bill which seemed so simple,
it's only one page, there are many ramificati@ns, just as
there are when you vote and you should take ygur right to vote
very seriously. |

Glas to have you here.

Mr. Lohrfinck, Secretary to the New Jersey Soft Drink
Association. ’
W. L. LOHBHRFINCIK: Gentlemen, I gpeak for the
New Jersey Soft Drink Association. I want to, first of all,
thank you gentlemen, all of you, for the opportunity to express
our views. I think vou alsoc are to be commended for attempting
to dig out all of the facts in what is really a complex, not
a simple problem. ‘

In the interest of time, I am not going to read this,
I have left copies for you, but I would like to make a point
or two if I may. (See p. 170)

For example, we thoroughly believe in educating people
not to litter, and encouraging recycling. We alSQ feel, based
on some experience, that this’Can be effective, as Henry Seales
has pointed out, and others. We also feel'that in educating
people an effort should be made, and we have made this effort, -
for example: Our organization over the vears has distributed

hundreds of thousands of litter bags to be used in cars and
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automobiles, as a reminder to people not to littler. We have
made available short educationalvfilms that have been used in
schools and civic groups, with the same thought in mind. We
have, through some of our people, run newspaper ads and they
have placards on the back of their trucks, all with the same
point, remindingfpeople not to litter. We have also worked
with an organization which is based in Ohio, Witich distributes
metal litter containers. There are several thousands of

those that havembeen made‘available, some right here in
Trenton, for the purpose of endeavoring to hawve people

keep the streets clean thrbugh the availability of these metal
containers.

And{ finally, if I may, we've noted in some of the
newspaper reports that the Monmouth County Board of Freeholders
is actively considering a regional approach to the ¢ollection,
- shredding and recycling.

Finally, because industry and government are both
seriously concerned with this, we really feel a joint approach
to this can be the answer or at least a step in the right
direction for solving the problem.

Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you wvery much, Mr. Lohrfinck.

Assemblyman Fay, do you have any quest10ns9

~ ASSEMBLYMAN FAY': No., ‘

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you.

William Pearce, . Coca-Cola.Company.

WILLTIAM PEARCE: Gentlemen, thank you for this
opportunity to present our views.

My name is William Pearce. I am Vice President of the
Coco-Cola Bottling Company of New York. It's .getting very
late and much has been said. I have a long statement and only
three very short points.

We operate five productlon and distribution centers in
the State of New Jersey, along with two other independent
Coco-Cola Bottlers and::twowarehouses:; which brings the total
to nine production and distribution centers.

We believe that we make a contribution to the general
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economy . of the State of Né@ Jersey, but, also, as réSp@nsible
business citizens of the State of New Jersey, our Company
shares the concern for the sblid waste disposal problem.
Bottles and cans are part of this problem, and we recognize
full well that al@ng<with all manufacturers and all retailers
and all consumers, we contribute to th@;pXOblém@ Thus, over
the past several years we have established the following
program in an effort to make a contribution to the solution.

First, during 1968 and 1969 we aggressively promoted
the returnable-deposit bottle. At that time it accounted
for over 40% of our total business. This effort consisted of
over $250,000 worth of newspaper advertising plus $50,000 in
point-of-sale advertising. |

Gentlemen, I can assure you that ours is a voice in the
wilderness. In spite of our tremendous promotional effort,
our returnable bottle business has decreased from 40% to less
than 25% of our total business today.

Number two, on December 28, 1970, we increased the
deposit on our returnable bottle from 2¢ to 5¢, the return
rate of which had fallen from 25 trips to 5 trips over the past
decade. We did this because we felt the present state of
awareness and concern may help save, or at least extend the
life of the returnable bottle. ‘

Now, there were preliminary signs that this strategy
might be working. But our records now show that the return
rate has not increased. As a matter of fact, it has fallen
off to the point that our returnable bottle is fast becoming
a one-way bottle. Gentlemen, this fact is tremendously sig-
nificant because I don't believe that there is any bottling
firm in the United States that has expended more time, money
and effort than the Coco-Cola Bottling Company Qf'Néw York in
an effort to sustain the life of a returnable bottle.

Recognizing all these facts, our Company is attempting
to fulfill its responsibility to the public through the
establishment of 18 glass and aluminum can collection and
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recycling centers at our plants in New York and New Jersey.

- These centers opened Saturday, March 20, 1971 and are
open from 10 to 3 p.m. every Saturday. We pay the consumer
10¢ per pound for aluminim and l¢ per pound for glasss and,
of course, 5¢ for returnable bottlies. |

Now, in New Jersey alone, since March 20, we collected
over 3 million pounds of glass and 138,108 pounds of aluminum
and paid the consumers over $60,000 for these cans and bottles.
Our overall payment to the consumer, for all 18 of our col-
lection centers, amounted to over $200,000 for these 26 days
of collection. And we removed over 13 million pounds of glass
and aluminum from the solid waste stream. Our investment is
primarily in promotion ‘and manpower which we estimate will
cost us in excess of $500,000 in 1971.

Gentlemen, we outline these programs not to pat our-
selves on the backg but to .point out that positive steps can be
taken by industry to help solve the solid waste problem on a
short-term basis.

Long-range solutions to the solid waste problem rest
with advanced technclogies and a systems approach to the
collection, disposal, separation, and recycling of materials.

Such systems are now in a testing stage. We believe that they
will be an economic reality in the not-too-distant future.

And T don't want to say any more about the Black-Clawson
facility in Franklin, Ohio, but I had an opportunity to visit
it, and I would suggest that anyone who is deeply concerned
 about environmental problems visit that plant to realize that
the systems approcach is an obtainable goal.

One further comment. Mr. Dennis, in his opening remarks,
stated that the problem is not yesterday: it certainly isn'ts
it has taken us a long time to get where we are with the
problem, and certainly the solution isn't tomorrow. And if we
do have faith in American ingenuity, as has been stated, I
‘think we should give that ingenuity a little time’ to work and
I believe that it will.

Gentlemen, any questions?
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ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Yes. In your five plants in
New Jersey, you probably have the same problem mentioned
earlier about the Canada Dry people, where they sold 600,000
cases and only had a return of 275,000.

MR, PEARCE: I think that you're really referring to
the statement made on the Pepsi Cola experiment.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Well, it was the Canada Dry people
that -—-

MR. PEARCE: Oh, this is the letter you received.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Yes. ,

MR, PEARCE: V¥Yes. What I'm saying is that our trippage
ten vears ago was 20 ftwips and I believe Mr. O0'Neil related
the fact that he felt that this could be an attainable goal.
Well, the fact remains that it is a fantasy goal because today,
with aggressive promotion on returnable bottles, our trippage
is 5 times, and shrinking. What I am saying is that the
consumer 1s paying the 5¢ and throwing the container away.

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: And most of your storage, too, is
outside, isn't it, of the returnable bottles until they're
ready for the cleaning process and refilling?

MR. PEARCE: Is the storage outside?

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEFHN: Yes.

MR, PEARCE: No, sir. On returnable bottles, it's a
prétty good cycle. In other words, they're coming in and
going out. ’

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: T know I did pass - I'm not
sure it was a Coke plant, but I did pass one of the plants.
and I noticed cases of --

MR. PEARCE: Well, now you did. You're referring to our
plant up on Route 1, and those are cases that we have a tre-
mendous investment in and they're just sitting there. A
million dollar investment cases and they're sitting in our
plants, they're sitting on the outside and we have no use
for them because the overwhelming process of the consumer. and
the retailer has just brought us down to a segment of business
that is relatively small.
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ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Mr. Pearce, as a corporate officer
of a national corporation, I hope that you are as upset and
angered, and I hope everybody in the unions, everybody in the
ecology groups are,as I am over themcredibilityugfoup of
the Federal Govérnment»appropriating.$4 million for a problem
like this. And you paid out more to the consumers, your one
company -paid out more to the consumers for these returns than
willwprobably_bémspent by the Federal deernment,and State
Government on this crisis. So, cbviocusly, the priorities |
that everybody here is involved with and upset about, - the
- people to.go to is certainly our Federal officials, as well
as our State officials. ,
| MR, PEARCE: There has been much discuSsi@nvon that
today and I really believe that this is .going to resolve
itself because there are members of the Soft Drink Industry -
and I'm sure one of my colleagues will bring this out - working .
very closely with the Federal Government on this. project and
the Recovery Act. It has just taken a little time. This is
a relatively new agency and there is a lot of work td be d@he@

ASSEMBLYMAN FAY: Thank you.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK? I would simply like to add a comment
to what you have just said, sir. The four hundred, plus,
million put forthy::; I am sure will be put forth over a
period of time and it takes time to .develop a. program and
qualify for this money. I think you've done an exc@llent‘jOb
and I certainly commend the Coco~Cola Company, and I am very
thankful for this report. |

MR, PEARCE: Thank you.

I would like to make one comment on the light side. I
certainly want to commend all my.neighbors. from Princeton: and,
very sincerely, they've done a tremendous job in their
recycling effort:; but I also want to say, I do have a son in
high school and I know he._supports the. recycling. program but
I'11 have to check and see if his name is on that list.
(Laughter)‘ |

ASSEMBLYMAN KIEHN: Thank you very much.
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Is Mr. Scally here?
J OHN F. SCALLY: My name is John F. Scally.
I am Vice President of New Jersey Royal Crown, which is an
affiliate of New York Seven-Up, and the New York Royal Crown
Bottling Company. We serve a twenty county area in New York
and New Jersey with a population of 17 million.

In speaking before you today, I am going to eliminate
some of my testimony in order to be brief.-

The legislative proposal before you today has as its
avowed objective a reversion by our industry to returnable
type packaging. The necessity of such a return would clearly
and simply put our company out of business. Let me explain.

After doing everything possible to preserve the return-
able bottle, including increasing the deposit to 3¢ and 7¢
per bottle, we were forced to convert to the non-returnable
glass bottle and the metal cans as a matter of economic
survival. We did so in response to consumer pressure. The
customer said to us: "There are more than ten thousand items
for sale in retail markets today and you soft drink people and
beer people are the only ones who charge a deposit and put us
to the inconvenience of storing dirty bottles and carrying them
back to the stores for you. Well, we are just not going to do
it anymore.” And they didn’t: not even on the bottles that
carried a 7¢ deposit. The consumer made it economically
impossible for us to use returnable packaging. We sold off
all the bottles that we had left at half or less than half
their value. We sold off or were forced to junk the production
machinery for returnables, and then went to great expense to
install new eguipment to produce non-returnable bottles. We
are in that 100% non-returnable position today.

A fowced return to returnable bottles would thus, in
effect, put our company out of business. The reasons Why
the proposed ban on non-returnable bottles and cans would put
our company out of business are clearly detailed in a lettex
written by the President of our Company, Sidney P. Mudd, to
Senator Bernard C. Smith, Chairman of the Senate Committee on
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Conservation and Recreation of the State of New York.

Rather than read the letter here, I have attached it
to copies of the testimony which I left with you today. I
can tell you what it says in three short sentences. (See p.182)

| 1. A forced change to returnable packaging would
cost my company alone approximately $21,111,000.00 in the
first year of such a change.

2. A forced change would make obsolete approximately
$1,150,000.00 worth of present modern equipment.

3. .The cost of conversion is utterly beyond the total
resources of this company. Not even our total annual gross
receipts equal $21 million.

We share your concern on the problems of litter and
solid waste, and, we as an industry, pledge our cooperation
to work with government to bring the problem to a quick and
logical solution.

Gentlemen, in speaking before you today against the
proposed bill on banning non-returnable bottles and cans,
we are not engaged in some version of local lobbying or
some appeal for a self-serving favor. We are quite clearly
fighting'for our continued existance in New Jersey. We want
to be certain that you wuderstand that very clearly. In the
name of the 500 families who depend on our company for a
livelihood, we ask that you reject this proposed bill and thus
permit us, and others, to remain in business.

Thank you very much. Any questions?

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any guestions?

Thank you very much, Mr. Scally.

Mr. Chikola.

PETER CHIZKOLA: My name is Peter Chikola and
I am President of the Chikola Beverage Company of Wilkes-Barre,
Pennsylvania, and we're bottlers of soft drinks. It's a family
company, started By my father and his brothers in 1911. I
bring this out to point out that we actually bottle soft drinks:
we're not just a distributor. We're also members of the National
Soft Drink Association.
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I wish to thank Assemblyman Dennis, Co-Sponsor of
the bill under consideration, for asking me to c@ﬁe‘dQWh :
to Trenton today and present my~viewp©ints on Assembly Bill
2212. 2nd I also wish to ﬁhank‘Mrss L@is Grayson and Mrs.
Stanton Waterman who are citizens of the‘State @f New Jersey
who, likewise, asked me to come down.

., I'm sort of a wild duck in the soft drink business

because I'm a soft drink bottler and I'm a proponent of
the returnable deposit bottles instead of the metal cans and
throwaway beverage cgntainers for soda and other beverages.

There has been a lot said about recyclingitoday on
both sides of the issue, and I would like to point out that
a returnable soft drink bottle is'basically - it can be
recycled and reused as high as 50 times:; and that the
returnable bottle system is a time-proven systemiof recycling
and it's a system that has been in effect in the soft drink
industry for 70 ox 80 yvears. These returnable bottles can
be brought back to the local bottling plant and reused, as I
say, as hiogh as 50 times, and then, when no longer serviceable,
they .can be broken into cullet at the bottling plant and
returned to the glass factory to be melted into new bottles
or.glassphalt roads or building blocks, or what-have-you.
And I submit that this is the ultimate solution to the
environmental pollution in the form of a massive litter
problem and garbage solid waste éxpl@si@n caused by the advent
and use of the metal can and throwaway b@ttléd beverage
container. : ‘ |

And I might add that this is a recent addition to the
American scene. These containers have really only taken
hold in the last three or four years. And the present day
bottlers, the proponents, in fact the entire industry has
found that they have maneuvered themselves to the horns of
a dilemma concerning the use of these c@ntaihersa But the
drive toward single-use, throwaway containers is still con-
tinuing, - this is my opinion - in the b@ttling:industry@
This is common knowledge within the industry that they are
a great threat to the ecoldgy. And I say that\this drive is
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not the result of consumer demand but has been pushed by
giant companies in the container, supermarket, and some of
the large bottling companies in the industry.

And, as a point of réference, the Glass Container
Manufacturing Institute in 1969, I believe, used in
promotional literature to all bottlers that they were spending
$6 million to convince the American people that they should
buy the beer and soda in this type of container.

Soft Drink Industry publications and‘oﬁhermpublications
available in Washington, the Department of Commerce, have
shown that the projected growth in the use of these throw-
away containers would go from.using 2 billion containers
annually under the returnable bottle system of distribution -
all that we, as industry, would have to buy would be replace-
ment containers, these containers that are; as I stated before,
no longer serviceable and would be culled out and destroyed
within the bottling plant.

To go to a system of 100% throwaways - and this is the
direction this industry is _going into, and there has been talk
that this would have been accomplished.by 1975 orvl980, and I
‘believe they would have made it if it wasn't for Earth Day of
1970. I think this was a turning point. And I don't believe
that the throwaway container within the scft drink industry
is considered the way of the future. It has caused consider-
able problems and a lot of misgivings throughout the entire
industry. There are other bottlers in the soft drink business
in this country who feel as I do.

| I want to point out that throwaway containers certainly
do not bear their true economic cost and their environmental
cost as a way of doing business,; since we are now trying to
shift the burden of recovery of our containers from the private
sector on to gevernment at all levels,; starting with your
lowest level of municipality up to state and federal.

I have been told by various people in government - people
from the Governor's Office in the State of,Michigan told me
that they spent, andrthéy kept‘accuréte records on this, $17
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million just picking up the litter.from the State portion
of the highway, and they do not have control of ok responsi-
bility for the entire State - $17 million in one state, just’
picking up from the state highway system. And. the remark
was made by the Governor out théere that this $17 million of
taxpayers' money could certainly be placed to better use than
picking up beer and soda containers.
Last November, at our annual convention of the National
Soft Drink Association, which was held in Philadelphia this .
year, I submitted a resolution which .read: . '
"Resolved, that the National Soft Drink Association
recognize - . the many environmental problems facing
America todéy and pledges to do its part in solving them:
that this Association take a sedret ballot survey, by mail,
of all bottlers in the Country as to their willingness to
institute an industrywide v@luntary ban on the sale of soft
drinks in nonreturnable containers. 2And, further, I ask 5
that the results of this survey be made known to all ‘
members of the National Soft Drink Association, as well as
non-member bottlers, and that action, if needed, be taken
accordingly.” : -
| I didn't ask that they take a position now; all I
asked them to do was to survey the membership and also the -
non-member bottlers of the industry, and\they refused to
do this. My resolution was presented to the Resolution
Committee and it was rejected: it wasn't brought to the
floor for a vote by the bottlers. : ?
In the northeastern section of Pennsylvania, I have .
been supporting the returnable bottle, and I have been

getting out and telling the people the advantages, the .
ecological advantages as well as the consumer economics .
involved, - since they are required to pay 20 to 25%

more when they buy their beverages in the pollution causing
container. And my program, or at least by getting out and
educating the people, asking them, has‘béen very, vVery
successful. The northeastern section of Pennsylvania is

still 95% returnables. And we had some problems up there
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with the consumer not being able to buy them at the
supermarkets. They had signed that after a certain date
they would no longer‘sell'themc, And they put Mrs. H@uéewife
on notice that if you want to purchase soft drinks from
them it had to be in a can or throwaway bottle. Due to
prodding by consumer and variocus housewife groups they.
reversed their position and it is now possible, in most of
these stroes, to purchase soft drinks in returnable con-
tainers.

In closing, I want to point out one other factor,
which only a member of the Soft Drink Industry can be
aware of. It is extremely difficult to be able to purchase
returnable deposit bottles from the glass industry in this
country today. I've had a very, very difficult time. In
fact, two weeks ago, I called two of your glass companies
down in the State of New Jersey and they told me they are
no longer making returnable bottles because there is no
demand for them. ,

So, I feel very, very strongly, since the container
industry is trying to sell the people the idea of taking
their containers back to some remote center, recycling
center, - They've got to carry them back -- these are
the same people who are saying that consumers won't return
their soft drink bottles back to the store;

One of the problems we've had in the industry, and
I don't want to get into the behind-the-scenes battling
and the reasons for it, I don't think it's pertinent to
this discussion - was that the industry was locked into
the 2¢ and 5¢ deposit up until -- in 99% of this country,
up until last year. It's only with the advent of all this
discussion about ban the can laws and mandatory depcsit
laws that the deposit structure moved away from 2¢ to
a nickel. _

We, in the section of Pennsylvania that I come from,
in April went to 5¢ on a small size soda bottle, up to 16
ounces, "and 10¢ on anything larger. The impact on the
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market - we haven't lost any sales, it's not hurting
anybody's pocketbook. They are bringing the bottles back. .
T don't think anyone in that section of the State throws
away a soda bottle today. And it used to be that you would
see a lot of Coco-Cola, my bottles, all returnable soda -
bottles that were worth 2¢, strewn along highwavs. I
noticed that kids would buy them and wouldn't even exert
the effort to take them back to the store, they would leave
them out on the sidewalk. With this higher deposit, this
5¢ and 10¢, I find. this seems to be the key for getting oux
bottles back as we never had before. I think it's the
answer, gentlemen.

You may say, and I've heard the arguments, why pick
on the soda business: vou're not going to tax the ketchup
jar or the pickel bottle. Well, I submit that we as an
industry are used to working with the returnable,dePOSit _
system and we are geared to this system. There are some -
bottlers, and I've heard some testim@ny today where they've
committed themselves 100% to the throwaway container. As .
a2 businessman, I say they moved a little too fast on an
unproven item. And it is . going to cause problems, a return
to the returnable. But I also submit, if we don't do it
as an industry, if we don't seize the initiative, people
outside of the industry, mainly the housewife and the
ecologist and people interested in the environment, are
going to do it for us.

That's all I have to say, gentlemen. Are there any

guestions? .
- ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: How big is your operation?
MR, CHIKOLA: I have a apacity - and I am only v
going to speak of capacity because I don't want to divulge -

what I'm doing, T don't believe any businessman should do

this - 1,000 cases a day.of quart bottles. I'm not .
fly-by-night. We've been in this business. Our bottling

machinery, we just purchased it, new. As a rating between

my plant and 3300 bottlers in this country, I would say
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I would rank in the upper oneithird in size.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: So your testimony, to sum. it up,
- is that you feel that the industry is so locked in, the soda
industry and the drink industry, breweries, and so forth,
and also the glass industry, that they've converted into
this type of machinery that manufactures one-way bottles
and it's too costly for them to retract.

MR. CHIKOLA: Not really. I think they can get back.
In fact, in certain states, I can buy - I've gone on public
record as a Eottling company and we've committed ourselves
to a company policy and refused to fill throwaway containers.
We've lost some accounts. People have said that they're
going to go with the tide. That's how they feel. We just
drop them. We hate to lose - any businessman hates to lose
sales:.and lose an account, but there weren!t that many and
it hasn't hurt us.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Why is it that you have not con-
verted? Is it because of the additional cost of the
machinery? .

MR. CHIKOLA: No. I can use the same equipment that
I use to fill the returnable bottles to £ill the throw-
aWay bottles. I would have to subject tﬁe throwaway con-
tainer in the State of Pennsylvania to the same treatment
at the beginning of our production line as I do with the

' returnable. The State has some pretty strict sanitary
laws, and so forth. In some areas they are allowing them
to buy a rinser, just to give the containers, as they come
from the container manufacturer, a simple water rinse or a
shot of air and they are able to fill them. In Pennsylvania,
they must be submitted to the same sanitary requirements,
going through a caustic solution for a certain amount of
time in water heated to a certain number of degrees. So,
from the standpoint of production, I have the capability
of going into them, if this answers your question, and it's
simply a matter of company policy and our feeling on this
entire issue that we have not. |
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ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: - What percentage of vour bottles,

say during the year, are not returned? v

/ MR. CHIKOLA: I feel that we're getting our bottles
back to 45 fillings and I anticipate it to go higher now
that we've gone to a higher deposit. We had problems with
the 2¢ dep@Sitm They were using these things as throwaway
containers. And this entire problem of people tthWing
returnables away seemed to come with the advent of the can
and the throwaway bottle, then we started to educate the
consumer to drink and drop or drink and throwaway. I say
this is where the industry has itself on the horns of a
dilemma. |

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Well, which costs the consumer.
more, throwaways?

MR, CHIKOLA: Beer, soda and throwaway bottle soda,
ves. ’

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: How much more?

MR. CHIKOLA: Twenty to twenty-five percent more
for the same product. If it's Coco-Cola in a can or
throwaway bottle; the same ounce per ounce, would cost
more in.a can or throwaway bottle, of if it's Seven-Up, or
if it's my product. The reason for this is, the reuse
of the container. A throwaway container roughly costs, a
can, in the neighborhood of $50 a thousand. They may be
lower based én volume consideration but I think we can use
a 5¢ per can or 5¢ per throwaway as a relationship here.

A returnable deposit c@ntain@r costs, based on its lowest
price, based on Volume consideration, in the neighborhood
of 10¢. The consumer pays that 5¢ when he buys it and
uses it one time. He only pays a rehtal charge - Schmidt's
Brewery is now advertising the rental bottle campaign - you
only pay a prorated charge every time the bottle is used.
And, of course, the more times a bottle is used, the less
the cost. _

Any other questions? ;

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: T have several guestions.
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With regard to volume, you mentioned 1,000 cases
per day, general volume. What, roughly, is your turn-
around? What do you anticipate your turnaround to be?

MR, CHIKOLA: My turnover? My bottle usage?

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: No. Your turnaround. Bottle
after bottle back, timewise.

MR, CHIKOLA: We're getting them back, especially
since we've gone to this higher deposit.® The first real
indicator you.get is - our trucks go out, say with 150 to
200 cases, and they come back with 150 to 200 cases empties.
I won't be able to calculate this until the end of the
accgunting term and the end of the year. But I have very
strong indications that we're just not losing the returnable
bottles.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: You mentioned quarts. Is the
major part of your business in quarts or is it in a smaller
size? a six-pack size?

MR, CHIKOLA: Again, I don't want tc'get into that.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Oh, I'm sorry.

- MR, CHIKOLA: There has been a trend, for some reason
that's unexplainable to me, - I'm delighted with it because
it's more profitable -~ away from my quart size to my smaller
bottle size which is becoming a higher percentage of my
total sales.

‘ ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I don't know the brand name, sir,
T haven't checked the list, but I'm wondering if it includes
a whole range of flavors.

MR, CHIKOLA: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: It includes the full range?

MR. CHIKOLA: Yes. We are an independent soft drink
bottler. ,

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I have a number oquuestiQns here
but they all pertain to business and I don't want to ask them.

You mentioned that a number of people asked you, over
a period of time, to go into a throwaway type container and
you did not see fit to, and I was wondering why they seemed
to desire to have you go into a throwaway type container.
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MR. CHIKOLA: Because the other companies were and
they decided they did not want to handle returnables - I'm
talking about retailers now, the storekeeper. They were
just going to handle the major brands and all of their
soft drinks would be in either a can or throwaway bottle,
and they did not want to handle the empty container.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Would it appear to you that the
consumer indicated his preference to the retailer for a
throwaway rather than a returnable?
MR. CHIKOLA: Well, in one instance which pops up
in my mind, an account that changed hands and immediately
upon the new ownership, the new owners, within a month,
decided they were going to convert, and it was an account
where there was no problem with bottle returns and they did
a very nice business. The woman who operated this particular
store had no problem. She was just the opposite. She had
no cans or throwaway bottles. ‘ .
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: I'm wondering if possibly - I
know when my wife goes to the store she reads the labels N
and determines what the quantity is and what the price is
of the article, and I feel that perhaps the consumer has
dictated that they prefer the convenience of the throwaway
versus the inconvenience of the returns simply because the
statement has been made that you get either a lower volume
of merchandise in a throwaway container or you have the
opportunity of buying returnable material at a lower price -
materials packaged in a returnable container. So I am
wondering, therefore, if they are willing to sacrifice ¥
volume, let us say, and pay a higher premium at the present )
time, how are we going to chahge their thinking by attempting .

to force them to break the habit of putting the bottles in .
the trash can and resume the habit of bringing the bottles
back? . - : : .

MR. CHIKOLA: You'll have to rephrase your question.
You lost me somewhere along there.
ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: ‘All right. I'm trying to convince
136




myself in my own mind that --

MR, CHIKOLA: That the consumer is demanding this
thing? Well, I can just give you instances of the super-
market, of what I feel the trend back toc returnables is in
this area. Even though there was a strong merchandising,
advertising and just plain push by the peocple who wanted
these containers to be hit; the supermarket people, as I
indicated, had committed themselves to strictly selling
soft drinks in throwaway containers, both the can and the
bottle. And they have since had to reverse their position
because of consumer demand, and education as to the harm,
plus the fact that I think they did it as a matter of
tactic so that the consumer couldn't determine that the
can was going to be higher priced. They removed them, one,
two, three, and that was it. I think it was & tactic on
their part so that the housewife could not make this
‘comparison, this price comparison. And I think the fact
that they had to reverse themselves and replace returnable
bottles back on the shelf, of all brands, is significant,

- really. This was an outgrowth of consumer demand.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: Have you given any thought to
the results of the Pepsi-Cola situation in New York?

MR. CHIKOLA: Again, I've seen this and I've heard of
it and I've read it in the industry press. Again, bear in
mind what I said, it seemed to be very, very strange that
say from 1938 or 1936, or 1932, when the average man in this
country was making $35 and $40 a week, a 2¢ deposit was a ’
sufficient monetary value. And with the inflation of the
dollar, to continue up to 1970 and even intto 1971 with a 2¢
deposit, even though all the indicators within the industry
and from the standpoint of business the deposit should have
been raised 15 years ago. And I think this is what should
have been done and not use the fact that you weren't getting
your returnable bottles back as justification to go to the

throwaway containers.
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- ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: And one other question on

something I would like to have clarified.

You mentioned a $S17 million figure, I believe, in
Michigan to pick up beer and soda containers. I assume
that was the total price on the entire operation of clearing
up state roads?.

MR. CHIKOLA: No, this was a cost. This was a cost
figure of what they spent. I presume labor, trucks and
so on.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: FPor all litter.

MR. CHIKOLA: For the State of Michigan.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: For all types of litter.

MR. CHIKOLA: Litter pickup.

ASSEMBLYMAN BLACK: That's all the questions I have.

MR, CHIKOLA: I have two things I would like to-
enter into the record. Congressman Joseph Vigorito, a
Congressman from Erie. Pennsylvania - he's not my Congressman
but he has introduced a bill in Congress to outlaw the can
and throwaway bottle for beer and soda in interstate commerce
in this country. It”s'a‘press release. It's dated but it
has some facts which I think you would be interested in.
It shows that based on a survey they took, 64% of the
Americans surveyed indicated that they would approve of a
law prohibiting the sale of soft drinks and beer iﬁ non-
returnable, throwaway containers. And it also has some
amendments, some literature, some facts and figures on
various aspects of the situation. I don't want to get into
it because it counters some testimony given by other members
of the business. Also I obtained from Congressman Vigorito
‘a2 study entitled The Effect on Jobs of the Trend Toward Non-
returnable Containers in the Beer and Soft Drink Industries.
And it outlines that the beer industry, which was the
first to get into the can and throwaway bottle, how the
total number of breweries declined and a significant figure
is that employment in the beer industry dropped from 71,700
in 1959 to 60g500 in 1967, or a decline in total employment
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of 15.6%. So I would like to leave these with you
gentlemen to be entered in the record. (See p. 189)

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: All right. Thank you very much.

We are going to have one witness.  As you can see,
our agenda is full. We can't possibly reach everyone. We
are going to continue the hearing next Thursday at 10:i15.

I would appreciate it if everybody would remain in
their seats. We have one more witness.

I am announcing the hearing now rather than at the
end. We have quite a list of witnesses and it's just
impossible for us to reach them all. So it will be next
Thursday, September 30, at 10:15 in the Assembly Chamber.

Mrs. Kathleen Kananen.

RKATHLEEN KAI\TAFNEN: My name isKathleen
Kananen. I am representing two _groups today.

First, I would like to read a statement from the
Cherry Hill Environmental Action Committee, and then I
will read a statement from my own group.

(Reading) The Directors of Cherry Hill Environmental
Action Committee, representing more than 200 families in
Cherry Hill Township, have agreed to foster and support
legislation banning the use of throwaway containers composed
of substances that do not readily break down to harmless
natural components in our bio-system, and requiring
mandatory recycling of all solid waste materials exempted
from such laws, by means of separated collection where
possible and mechanical separation when necessary. We,
therefore, wish to express our support of the proposed legis-
lation that would require all glass, plastic, and aluminum
containers be returned for a 5¢ deposit to outlets that
would in turn distribute them to packers and bottlers for
reuse. :

We believe that efficient meth@ds of collection and
return, performed by industry or independently operated
. specialists, could relieve any burden on the retailer and
reduce costs to the industries involved far below present

estimates.
139



We believe that consumers will return deposit con-
tainers if the collection points are as convenient as
their regularly used retail stores. At present, people
often go out of their way to purchase goods in returnable
containers and the inconvenience is doubled when they are
ready to be returned.

The proposed legislation does not discriminate against
a particular product, corporation, or industry offering
advantages to its campetitiono Instead, it requires those
who profit from the exploitation of irreplaceable natural
resources to manage them most effectively with the least
possible cost to the nation and the world as a whole.

We commend the authors of this legislation and urge
its early passage into law.

This is signed by Paul M. Coffman.

(Reading) The Pompeston Environmental Committee
would like to present its findings on Assembly Bill No.
2212, a bill requiring returnable beverage containers.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: TIs this one from David Kananen?

MRS. KANANEN: Yes.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: ALl right. I just want to keep
track of it.

MRS, KANANEN: ({Reading) 1. For seven months we
have been conducting a recycling program for glass. metal,
and paper. Our survey shows a response of one-third the
households in Cinnaminson, Palmyra, and Riverton indicating
a willingness of these people to go to the trouble to
recyle their beverage containers. Recycling is not the
most efficient or lucrative method of handling large volumes
of beverage container materials: therefore, all the par-
ticipating citizens have expressed a desire for the return
of deposit beverage containers.

2. The quality of our environment is a very real
problem which is being hampered by the problems of solid
waste disposal. The returnable container would reduce the
bulk of the solid waste of New Jersey by‘500 million tons
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pexr yéar, adding years to the life of our existing land-
fills, and lessening the eyesore of litter along our
streets. :

3. The members of the Pompeston Environmental _
Committee are concerned about the use of our earth's natural
resources .and by the reuse of beverage containers feel that
the amount of raw materials used to produce them would be
reduced. Nonreturnable containers encourage the exploita-
tion and waste of natural resources by the manufacturers
and the consumer.

It has been only 4 years since.the exit of the
returnable bottle from the South Jersey area. Aside from
what manufacturers and retailers lead us to believe, there
are other areas of our Country where the people willingly
use returnable bottles. We feel the public is ready and
willing to pay for a sane use of our resources.

4., Due to the short notice of this hearing we were
able to survey only a few households in our community, but
of the ones contacted over three-fourths were in favor of
deposit beverage containers. Attached are 50 signatures
stating a desire for deposit beverage containers.

We commend the conscientious authors of this
legislation and we urge that the Assembly consider A-2212
as a ste§ forward for a saner use of our natural resources.

ASSEMBLYMAN WILSON: Any questions? (No gquestions)

Thank you very much for your testimony.

The hearing is adjourned until September 30 at 10:15.

(Hearing adjourned)
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INTRODUCTION

This report represents a
1971 survey of bottle handling
activities and costs incurred by eight of the
leading supermarket chains in Southern California.
The first objective of this survey was to identify the
activities and costs involved with the handling of
returnable soft drink bottles. The second objective
was to measure these activities and provide suffi-
cient detailed support for any Marketing Chain to
review and compare its operating costs and pro-
cedures with those of leading supermarket chains.

The center of this study, Los Angeles and QOrange
Counties, was an ideal location. The ciimate and at-
mosphere of Southern California offers heavy year-
round activity for the soft drink industry. With 23
supermarket chains, none having more than 8% of
anestimated $3.4 billion food sales market,
Los Angeles has been described
as the most compet-
itive area in this
country.
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The basic plan foiiowed by each of the participating chains
required the identification of four major cost areas.

1. Labor Cost

2. Equipment Cost

3. Storage Cost

4. Inventory Cost

Identification of Labor Costs

Each chain sclected several sites for measurement of
store labor activities. The selected sites represented the
various supermarket procedures for handiing returnable
soft drink bottles. {Many chains had two or more pro-
cedures and the primary objective in selection was to
identify all activities involved with returnable .bottles.)
In addition to store labor, the accounting activities &sso-

ff\‘a ity

3 &

“ciated with handling of invoice credits was identified for -

measurement by several chains.

ldentification of Storage and
Inventory Cos‘ts

Each chain determined the average space occupied by
returnable bottles and shelis as weli as the average dollars
tied up in deposits. Deposits included full bottles, empty
botties and shelis.

Identification of Equipment Costs

The cost of using special bottle racks or shopping carts

for temporary storage and transportation was identified

by each supermarket chain.
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‘Identification of Extra Costs

In addition to the four preceding costs, these extra costs were identi-
fied but were found to be difficult to measure. Determining their cost
would have required more than the time alloted for the survey.

NOOSA WN -

11

14.

. Loss due to breakage.

. loss due to theft.

. Uncoilected deposits.

. Refunds paid for odd bottle brands or non-deposit bottles.

. Maintenance and occupancy costs other than lease cost.

. Inventory taxes paid on deposit bottles.

. Time spent in supervising or delegating responsibility for bottle

hangling activities.

. Profits that couia be generated from alternate use of deposit money.
- 9. Injuries dueto broken botties.
10.

Additional register costs for deposit and refund rings.

. Loss due to improper counting of empty bottles.
12.
13.

Errors in verifying empty botties picked up by drivers. -

Use of additioral equipment in handling bottles (extra -grocery
carts, hand trucks, paliets, pallet jacks, etc.)

Customer complaints of foreign matter found in full returnable
bottles.
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COMPUTATIC

Methods and Tools Used in
Calculating Labor Ccsts

Three different methods were used to arrive at labor costs.
In most cases, time studies were made by observing the
actual occurrence of the activity. In some cases elapsed time
for an activity was obtained by “staging” the task at a train-
ing center. The staging took place whenever the actual
occurrence might not provide representative data or when
an excessive amount of time might be required in collecting
sufficient data. The third method was MTM (Methods Time
Measurement) a pre-determined time data system. MTM
enables the practitioner to determine the normal time re-
quired to perform a task by analyzing the motions inherent
in the activity. The observed activities were timed with the

use of a stop watch. A rating factor was applied to the indi- -

! OF CHAIN LAZOR COST

2

ax
S

vidual performing the activity to compensate for the speed
at which he was working. A 15% allowance was added to
account for personai time, fatigue and minor delays. This
standard time for each activity was then divided by the
number of bottles handled to produce the standard minutes
per bottle.

Calculation of Lakor Rates

The labor rates used for cierks, boxboys and comptometer
operators include a base hourly rate plus fringe benefits and
other payroll costs directly attributable to each employee.
The following table should illustrate the composition and
method for determining labor rates. The rates do not include
premium pay such as overtime or shift premiums. Realis-
tically, the rates used should be slightly higher.

Comp.

LABOR COMPOSITION Opr. | Clerk | Boxboy
A. Regular hours worked {(*1) 1920 | 1880 | 1920
B. Regular earnings (*2) $ .S $
C. Vacation Pay $ $ S
D. Holiday Pay $ $ $
£. Sick Pay $ $ $

Sub-Total (*3) $ $ $
F. FILC.A. ) S $
G. S.D.L $ $ $
K. FU.L $ $ S
. Health and Welfare $ $ $
J. Workman’'s Compensation , $ S S
K. Total Earnings plus Additional Payroil Costs $ ) $
L. Hourly Rate nlus Additional Payro!l Costs {*4) $ S S

*1 (2080 Hours minus Vacation, Holidays and Sick Hours)
*2 (FHours worked times base hourly rate)
*3 (Used for calculation of Payroil Taxes and Workman'’s

Compensation)

*4 (Total Earnings (K) divided by hours worked)
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Description of Labor Activities

The labor charts foilowing this chapter represent store
and accounting costs incurred by each supermarket
chain. The foliowing descriptions should aid in com-
paring activities. '

Accounting Costs

The bottle refunds at most stores are not identified
separately inthe accounting operation; they are totaled
with other refund and overrings. It was determined
that if no returnable bottles were handied, there would
be no measurabie change for accounting labor in 'sum-
marizing store level detail. Invoices, however, are
verified by a comptometer operator. The accounting
cost for invoice verification was isoiated by timing the
activities that could be identified with returnable bot-
tles on each invoice and determining the average num-
ber of bottles per invoice. Dividing the standard min-
utes per invoice by thie average number of bottles per
invoice we arrived at the base for accounting cost
per bottie.

Clerk Ringing Deposits

Deposits were collected through the checkstand or at
a separate liquor department. Deposits are inciuded in

WVIPUTATION OF ©

HAIN LABCR COSTS

saies dollar figures and no attempt is made to account
for the deposit separately. Several methods were used
to determine the time involved with this activity. Liquor
depariments and checkstands were timed by observ-
ing the actual occurrence of deposit collection. In
addition, this activity was simulated and timed at a
training center.

Clerk Refunding Depcsits

Refunds were made at both the checkstands and
separate liqguor departments. When the separate liquor
department was used, all bottle refunds were entered
on the refund key. At the checkstand, the procedure
varied with the type of register. Class 5 registers have
a separate key for reccrding bottle refunds. These
registers require inserting a special form into the
register to record the transaction. On other than the
Ciass 5 register, the refunds were entered on the re-
fund key and recorded manually by the checker on a
tally sheet. Another procedure involved the prepara-
tion and issuance of aCredit Slip 16 the customer turn-
ing in bottles. With this method bottles were accepted
at a specifically designated area, not the checkstand.
Times were obtained during actual occurrence and
through a simulation of the activity.
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COMPUTATION OF CHAIN LABOR COST

Boxboy Racking Empty Bottles

The time required for placing empty bottles in the rack
was established by actual occurrence of the activity
and by MTM (Methods-Time-Measurement). The ac-
“tions involve a boxboy transferring loose bottles and
emply six packs from the checkstand to the empty
bottle rack and then returning to the checkstand.

Moving Fuil Rack to Bottle Sorting Area

In most chains this required pushing tottle racks from
the checkstand area to the back room. Several liquor
departments had the advantage of & bottle sorting and
storage area close by.

Clearing of Bottle Storages Area

This is a general housekeeping activity and was timed
by observing the actual occurrence of the activity.

~ Sorting of'BottILes from Rack

All sorting times wera determined by observing the

actual event. Included inthis activity is the time needed

to transfer homogeneous six-packs to proper storage
cases and return; the time needed to sort and transfer

- mixed. six-packs to proper cases and return; the time
. needed to transfer single bottles (small and large) to

proper storage cases and return; the time needed to
coliect empty shells from storage.

Moving Empty Rack to Front

The activity timed was reiurning the empty bottle racks _

to the checkstand area.

Verifying Empty Bottle Pick Up
with Beverage Driver

Only the clerks time involved in transfer-
ring the empty bottles to the driver was
measured. It was assumed that all other
activities between the clerk and the driver
occur regardless of whether the beverage is in deposit
or no return bottles.

/)
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ALPHA EETA

LABCR Hours Per | Hourly| Cost Fer
, Bottle Rate Bottie

ACCOUNTING COSTS . ?38&7’? 5.380C | .CCG03S
CLERK RINGING DEPOSITS 00858 | 5.33C | .GCOB11
CLERK REFUNDING DEPOSITS .0001846 5.330 | .6C0S84
BOXBOY RACKING EMPTIES 00051568 | 2.904 | .c01488
MOVING FULL RACK TO BOTTLE STORAGE AREA .CO0C890 | 2.804 | .0C0200
CLEARING OF BOTTLE STORAGE AREA .0001750 | 2.904 | .0CC=ELE
SCORTING OF BOTTLES FROM RACK .00078386 | 2.804 | .002283
MOVING EMPTY RACK TO FRONT .0000523 | 2.904 | .C001562
CHECKING EMPTIES TO DRIVER .0001495 | 5.330 ] .000797

TOTAL LABOR COST PER BOTTLE 006982 |

™

n

e

RALPHS
e Hours Per | Hot s

LABOR.- . T
STCRE BOOKKEEPER .0000481 | 5.273 | .000254
ACCOUNTING COSTS .0CCC036 | 5.38C | .000019
CLERK RINGING DEPOSIT .COCCsBE | 5.273 | .000B05

CLERK REFUNDING DEFPOSITS CC02223 | 5273 | CC1172 |

BOXBOY RACKING EMPTIES incl ahove
MOVING FULL RACK TC BOTTLE STORAGE AREA 0002295 | 2.850 | .000654
CLEARING OF BCTTLE STORAGE AREA Inci. beiow

SORTING CF BOTTLES FROM RACK 0013156 | 2.850 | .C0374¢8
MOVING EMPTY RACK TO FRONT CCC2285 | 2.850 | .OLGEE4
CHECKING EMPTIES TO DRIVER .0000815 | 5.273 CC430

TOTAL LABOR COST PER BOTTLE

007437
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ECYS FOOD GIANT ~ LUCKY - L

Hours Per | Hourly | Cost Per | Hours Fer | Hourly | Cost Per | Hours Per | Hourly ‘Cost Per 2

Bottle Rate Bottle Bottle Rate Bottle: Bottle Rate Bottle
.0005073*| 5.380 | .00CC35 1.0000073 ! 5.280 1.000033 {.0000033 | 5513 | .0C0018
CQCREs8"| 5.342 | C0Go172 5.220 1 .000500 |.C0GCSs 5.31S | .030510 |
L8885 | 2.345 | 002031 5220 1.002458 [.0001846 | 5.3121 .000882
incl. sbove 2.8C3 : .001458 | 0005158 | 2.935 | .CO1514
.,0001.427 2.846 | .000420 2.8086 | .000284 {.00C0873 |:2.635 | .0C0256
.COC1333 | 2.845 | .C00383 {.C001711 | 2.806 | .0C0480 .1.00008856 | 2.935 | .0C0175
.000gege28 | 2.94 002801 |.CO12313 | 2.805 1 .003455 {.0007345 | 2.835 | .002158
Q000733 | 2.846 | .O0C0218 1.COC0697 | 2.808 1 000195 1.0001073 | 2.935 | .0CC315
.L0001485%] 5.342 | .C00799 |{.0001495*| 5,220 | .c00730 {.0000800 | 5.319 | .000319

‘ 007011 | .008679 o -.006245
SHOPPIKG BAG THRIFTIVIART ' 'VGNS

Hcurs Per Hour!y' Cost Per | Hours Per | Hourly Cost Per . | Hours Per 'Hour«'y -Cost Per

Botile Hate Bcttle Bottiz Rate Botitle Bottle | Rate Bottle .
.0000073’ 5.380 1. .050033 1.COO0G73%1 5420 .00CC40 |.CO001 10 | 5.600 | .0CDOE2
.CCO08B5"; 5.347 | .0CG51Z | 0000858 5.37¢ | .000515 |.0002256 | 5.380-; .00i1209 \

1 0007738 | 5.347 | .004138 |.0001845 | 5.379 |.000993 1.0002716| 5.360 | .001456 -
0000780 | 5.347 | .C00417 |00C51€E8 | 2.843 | 001518 |.G003652 | 2.934 | .001071 ]
O0C0478 | B5.347 | .C00255 |.0003500 | 2.943 | .001148 [.0001514 | 2.934 | .000444 %
0000513 | 5.347 | .00C274 |.0001800 | 2.843 | .000559 |.0000375 | 2.934 | 000110 ¢

_1_00375‘2‘25 5.%47 | .004024 ! CO10600 | 2.843 1 .002843 10008453 | 2.934 | .002480 ;
0000463 | 5.347 | .CLC0Oz4a8 1.0003800 {2943 1.001148 [.OCO1G8B3 | 2.934 | .C0L=1R
0000374 | 5.347 | .GOC199 1.00CCEO0D | 5.379 1.0003223 |.0003249 | 5.360 | .001741 ;

’ .010106 | 009187 1.008891 :
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Equipment costs refer to the cost ¢f special
bottle racks or shopping carts used as tem-
porary storage for empty bottles prior to
the sorting operation. The costs were cal-
culated by amortizing the total equipment

cost over the -estimated life using straight
line depreciation with no salvage value.

The survey includes a variety of racks in

‘several different sizes and shapes.

STORE - CHAIN BOTTLES EQUIPMENT

CHAIN cost/menth cost/year handied/yr cost/bottie
ALPHA BETA 3.0504 6442.44 13,861,780 000485

BOYS 2.8400 1093.68 5,400,C00 000203
FOOD GIANT 5.0000’ 3500.00 21,444,732 .0001 82
LUCKY 7.2840 6214.49 13,164.272 .Cu«.n 72
BALPHMS 2.5C000 1825.00 14,421,533 000131
SHOPPING EAS 2.8040 £E£2.40 8,366,848 c&o187
THRIFTIMART 4.7350 £208.23 4,667,£78 .LUCEBS
VONS 2.3400 2808.00 18,668,312 .L0CO150
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Stores were selected at random and the
storage areas allocated for empty bottles,
shells, and bottle racks were measured. In
most cases the storage cost was determined
by dividing the lease cost by the total store

square footage and multiplying the result by
the average allocated bottles storage space.
Pro rata costs for heat, light and other util-

ities, plus taxes and etc. were not included

in these costs.

MO. LEASE

SQUARE FEET _ TOTAL YEARLY BOTTLES STORAGE
CHAIN per store cost/sq.’ft‘. cost/chain handled/year | cost/bottle
S $ $

ELFPHA BETA 162.80 141647 48,702.931 13,861,760.| .003513
EQVYS 303.75 .0850 10,734.530 5,400,000 .001988
FGCD ClANY 328.50 1366 42,537.820 | 21,444,735 | .001591
LUCKY 579.50 53875 75,973.310 13,164,272 0058771
RALFHS 7532.00 .2075** 118,123.110 14,421,633 .008191
SHOPPING DAC 273.00 2233 - 38,5676.600 8,356,848 004372
THIIFTINIART 187.33 1877** 27,890.720 4,867,578 005730
VO 157.98 .1682 31,501.850 18,669,312 .001709
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Stores were selected at random and the
value of the quarterly inventory was deter-
mined. This figure included the doliar value
invested by the store in full returnable bot-
tles, empty returnable bottles, and both full
and empty shells. An average of the store
dollar value was determined and-a judge-

ment made that this represented the typical
investment by each store within the chain.
It was presumed that 10% of the investment
would be an equitable representation of the
cost of this money not available for more
productive use.

| INVENTORY -

VALUE TOTAL INV. cost/year BOTTLES INVENTORY

CHAIN ~ per stere value/chain (10%) handled/ysar cost/bottle
ALPHA EBET 274.37 45288.12 4328912 13,861,760 .000348
EDYS 710.03 22010.83 2201.093 5,400,000 000408
FOOD GIANT 1273.50 82777.50 8277.750 21,444,735 .000386
LUCKY - 870.00 47570.00 4757.000 13,164,272 .0C036e1

RALPHS 815.00 51345.00 5134.500 14,421,533 0003586
SHOPPIMNG BAG £28.09 31404.50  3140.450 8,368,848 .CC0375
THRIFTINART 229.16 16960.80 1696.080 4,867,578 .(GC0343
VORS 467.80 45780.60 4678.0C0O 18,669,312 000251
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FOOD SHOPPING _
BOYS ‘GIANT LUCKY BALPHS BAG THRIFTIMA‘RT VONS
LABOR 37.859 | 207,564 | 82,211 | 107,253 | 84,5565 | 44,718 | 165,969
EQUIP. 1,096 | 3900 | 6214| 1,890 1562 | 4,208 | 2808
INV. - 2203 | 8278 | 4757| 5,i35| 3138 | 1695 | 4,678
STORAGE 10,735 | 42,688 | 75,973 | 118,123 | 36,577 | 27.851 | 31,906
51,893 | 262,430 {169,166 | 232,401 | 125,832 | 78,513 |205,38;
LGl L 28 LLP5T 6 /)J/ /SO0 Sosbot

25/ 30
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T ANRSTNE B2
OTTLE

’ A;;:'*AA s0vs ;g:::' LUCKY RALF"HS SHOB:F:;NG THRIFTIMART VONS
LABOR |.006982 | 007011 | .009679 | .006245 | .007437 | 010106 |.009187 |.008891
EQUIP. | .000465 | .000203 | 000182 .000472 | .000131 000187 |.000865 | 000150
INV. .000348 | 000408 | .000386 | .000361 | 000356 | 000375 |.000348 |.000251
STORAGE | .003513 | .001988 | .001991 | .005771 | .008191 | .004372 |.005730 | .001709
011308 | .008610| 012238 | 012848 | 016115 | 015040 |.016130 |.011001
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Thefinal
phase cf assem-
biing this material into
printed form was completed
by Alpha Beta Acme Markets, Inc., but
the scope and magnitude of this study could
not have been accomplished without the tre-
mendous support received from the super-
market chains participating. We wish to
extend our sincere thanks to everyone con-
tributing to this survey and hope the material
presented will benefit the industry.

if there are any. questions concerning. the
material you may contact:

Philippe E.J. Cote., Supervisor, Systems
Development Group, Aipha Beta Acme
Markets, Inc., 777 South Har-
bor Bouleverd, La Ha-
bra, California
80631
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Hearings on "Non-Returnable Beverage Containers"
before the
Committee on Air and Water Pollution and Public Health
New Jersey General Assembly - Trenton, N. J.
‘ September 22, 1971

STATEMENT OF HON. CHARLES W. SANDMAN, JR., A REPRESENTATIVE
IN THE UNITED STATES CONGRESS FROM NEW JERSEY (Second)

MR. SANDMAN. Mr. Chairman and members of this distinguished con-
mittee, I am Charles W. Sandman, Jr., Member of Congress representing
New Jersey's Second Congressional District comprising of the counties of
Cape May, Atlantic, Cumberland and Salem.

I served in the State Senate in this capital for ten years repre-
senting Cape May County., During that time, I participated in many public
hearings such as this so it is evident that I know how important these
hearings are z2nd what great weight they cast upon the fate of important
legislation, and this is the reason why I journeyed all the way from
Washington to be here. Since I must return to fhe United States Capitol
not later than 1 P. M., I shall be brief.

Mr. Chairman, the bill under‘considerétioh - namely, Assembly Bill
2212 which procposes the State ban on nén—refundable beverage containers
is impractical, unworkable, and cannot possibly achieve its intended goal.
For these and other reasons, I an here to oppose it on behalf of more |
than 410,000 constituents in the four counties that I represent.

I shall not dwell ubon the various intricacies apd conflicting
language in the legislation that will undcubtedly invite lengthy and
costly litigation. I will confine my remarks to the heart of the issue.

Disponsal of solid and liquid waste is a major problem that has been
allowed to multiply over the years. The entire nation is alarmed over
what is happening to the environment and everyone has taken up the
cudgel in a fight against pollution of all kinds.

Congress 'in 1969 created the Council on Environmental Quality and
more recently the Environmental Protection Agency to stimulate tech-
nology and establish national priorities of methods to solve the waste
disposal problems. The objective of this bill, I am sure, is worthwhile
and certainly aimed in the direction of establishing a better way to

control waste and litter.
(MORE)
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In the last three years, the Federal Government ~on the advice

of the Nation's top.expertsf— has,decided that the answer to this

kind of a problem lies in the salvage andirecycling.

" You cannot 1egis1ate3the ﬁbjects,of litter,out of existence and
think that you have in any way eliminated that problem. The objective
here is not to diséontiﬁué the use of the ﬁoh—réturnablé bottle. The
objectiVe is to keep the non-returhablé bottle from béihg thrown ﬁpon
the publicbstreéts or in the streams or ahywherevwhéfé it should not be.
In this effort we should be concerned with the violator who places the
used bottle in a place where it should not be. |

You cannot penalize litter -~ you must penalize the litter-bug.
The method suggested by Assembly Bill 2212 in banning the non-
refundable container so as to keep it from being a part of the State’s

litter is an exercise in futility. ‘It is parallel to another very silly

proposition. ' If you are going to cure the litter problem by eliminating
the non-refundable container, you could under a similar methcd solve
New Jersey's massive sewage problem by moving 7% million people out of
the State., Under the same theory, you would have no sewage.

Imposing a deposit will not alleviate the. problem, If you want
to solve thes solid waste problem this way, you would have to deal with
containers of 311 kinds not those just made by glass or tin cans. It
would have to .2pply to all containers and I would like the sponsors of
this bill to. tell me what retail merchant is willing to pay to every
child who comes to his store a nickel for every used tin can; a nickel
for every throw-away bottle; a nickel for every ﬁlastic:container; a
nickel for every cardboard container especially since you know that most
of these containers are made across the Delaware River.

And you know from your childhood what difficulty you had in getting
- a nickel back for a soda bottle and merchants surely did not want to
take it back unless he knew you had bought it from him. How is anybody
going to know where the tin cans and bottles and all the other things
caﬁe from,

At the same time, there is a great deal of information available
that provés thatireturnable containers are littered on the highways and
the streams in precisely the same proportions as are throw-away containers.

( MORE)
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Another interesting argument is the fact that only 5% of all of
the litter in the whole State of New Jersey pertains to these containers
and only 2%%‘of the State's litter pertains to the glass non-returnable
bottle; but an alarming 57% of the State's litter pile is discarded
paper products, including nevsprint. If the theory of A-2212 has any
merit, why doesn't the same bill impose a 5% deposit for every newspaper
bought from newsboys with the hope that newspapers will not litter the
State?

Of course, such an approach is ridiculous. It could never be
enforced any more than A-2212 can be. Here again, the answer to dis-
carded newsprint is the same as the answer to discarded beverage con-
tainers: salvage and rccycling.

Before we leave this point,‘it may be worthy of mention that many
- of the g:eat news media, such as The New York Times, have already |
supported this kind of proposal. I wonder if they would support ahvv
amendment to this proposal which would place a 5¢ deposit . on every copy
of The Few York Times?

New Jersey's glass industry, almost all of which is located in‘my
Congressionai District, happens to be the largest of its kind in the
world and I am, of course, interested in the plight of the 30,000
fanilies tﬁat earn their livelihoed from the glass indusfrye ‘I am, of
course, inveranlind in the determination of the glassworkers’® unions to
save jqbs‘in the industry; I an, of course, interested in the plants
themzelves and the thousands of people who invest in them. I am
intersted in the great amount that the glass industry contributes to the
economy at every level of government and so shouldvthis committee.

But with all that combinea,‘I still would not sacrifice the
environment in which we live and I have a long legislative record in
the field of protecting the environment. |

If I thought that A-2212 was the answer or that it could legiti-
mately improve the litter problem, I would be here speaking for it.

lotwithstanding all of the economical disadvantages that couid
happen, however, I am absolutely convinced the bill is imbractical and
unwerkable.

I participated in the'enéétMSnt of the Resources Recovery Act

of 1970 which authorized $460 million of Federal money for the next

(MORE)
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three years to 'revolutionize solid waste resources, recovery,
technology and methods, This dct provides for grants of up to 75%

of Federal funds to municipalities and regions to develop and construct
advance systems of resource recovery. - These efforts are just beginning
to bear fruit. Again, let metpdint out this money became available only
because the Congress of the United State s has already decided the best
way to handle the waste problem is by salvage and recycling.

Littering, of course, is a behavioral problem. It is a disgusting
habit which is’already outlawed but not strictly enforced, States and
municipalities all over the'Nation have already commenced more strict
enforcement against the litterbug. And for the most part, it is
succeeding - at least on the public highways.

We can do much more in this field by public relations, education
and good law enforcement than we can in banning every article that can
be the subject of litter. The non-returnable bottle can be produced for
less than half the cost of other types of containers. This is a tre-
mendous savings that is passed on to the consumer.

Let me call to your attention what happened to consumers in New
York City, where consumers forfeited more than a half million dollars in
deposits when Pepsi Colavvoluntarily put a 5¢ deposit on 14% million of
its 16 ounce bottles. Within one year, 11 million of the returnable
bottles disappeared from circulation. The money lost came from the
pockets of the consumers. And what happened to the bottles? Eleven
out of every 14} bottles found their way into the same garbage cans as
the non-returnables. This :n itself is proof that A-2212 cannot achieve
the result for which it is designed.

Glass recycling is in its infancy but it is growing by leaps and
bounds. Nationally, in the July through September quarter of last yeaf,
42 million glass containers were recycled. In the succeeding quarter
ending December 31, 1970, the quantity.recycled rose to 65 million. In
the first quarter of 1971, 96 million and in the second quarter of 1971,
175 million. The quantity: recycled in the last quarter as compared to
the quarter a year ago quadrupled.

Dyring the recent Congressional recess, I met with major employérs

in my District about the unemployment problem. I was happy to learn
(M ORE)
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from the four major glass companies in my District that they are each
involved in massive glass recycling programs., l :

And I may say to you publicly that I am very proﬁd of Qhat the
four major glass companies in the Second Cbngressionél District:aré
doing in this respect. They are working'with all kimls of civic groups;
they are buying bottles back and paying $20.00 a ton, more money than it
costs to start from raw materials. They have special times set aside
when the Weighmaster is available to receive discarded bottles. This
is a far more intelligent way to address ourselves to the problem at hand.

In conclusion, I think it is worthwhile to relate an incident
which hapééned in the House of Representatives which is so pertinent to
what you are attempting to do here. In January of this year, I informed
every Member of the New Jersey Legislature of my bill introduced in
Congress at that time to regulate dumping of wastes in the ocean and
coastal waters of the Nation., I urged you then to act promptly to enact
similar regulations adjusted to State jurisdiction. You responded aqd
did précisely that,

I am pleased to say that the United States House of Representatives
passed, by a vote of 308 to 3, the Marine Protection Research and
Sanctuaries Act of 1971. It is now before the United States Senate and
has the wholehearted support of President Nixon.

This bill follows the concept of my bill which is predicated upon
a Federal permit.

However, the bill presented to the floor for a vote had a very
unusual provision in it. A provision that would have stripped the fifty
states of the union from having state jurisdiction over anything per-
taining to the dumping of refuse in the ocean and tidal waters throughout
the Nation.

The actual language of the bill said and I quote:

""No state shall adopt or enforce any regulation relating to

any activity regulated by this title."

If the original bill was enacted, the law that you enacted at my
request would be ineffective as would the laws of 31 other states. After
a lengthy floor debate, the amendment which I offered to the bill was

adopted. The amendment, now known as the Sandman Amendment, stated:

(MORE)
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"Nothing in this Act shall be construed as preempting

any state, federal territory, or commonwealth, or

subdivision thereof from imposing any requirement or

liability,"

The amazing thing of it all is the fact that such a simple amend-
ment already protected by the Federal Conétitution passed the United
States House of Representatives by only a single vote. That is how
serious the threat is. ‘

The advocates of preempting the jurisdiction of the‘states argued
among other things that states are sglow to react and that when they do
-~ they over-react. They claim that because environmental legislation
is such an "apple pie'" issue, states would ramrod poorly written and
inadequate laws on emotional and political popularity grounds.

I resent those claims and said so on the floor of the House of
Representatives. I still have profound respect for the members of the
state legislatures and their ability to do a good job. I defend the
ability of state legislators such as yourselves,

Please do not let me down by the hasty and ill advised enactment

of Assembly Bill 2212,

Charles W. Sandman, Jr,
Member of Congress
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WEST ORANGE ANTI-POLLUTION SOCIETY

SUMMARY RFEPORT

Below nre figures in POUNDS of the solid waste whlch were PAID TOR since
tlic opening of our Reclamatlion Center on July 10th, 1971. Mere Tliures
represent aopproximately 98L PAID customerg, ‘

Dete ulass Paper & Cordboard Tin 3Bi-Metal Aluminum Peid Oub

L s

July 10 3,864 4,489 284 432 156 5 75.86
July 17 7,091 4,958 319 564 489 154,92
July 24 6,941 . 5,825 150 818 387 103,71
July %L 65240 . ‘15 5,176 252 705 180 1007
Aug. T 5,802- | 4,560 - 642 422 100,62
Mg, 14 6965 o . 6,733 201 636 204 117,49
Aug. 21 7,418 8,504 361 439 136 10%.0%
Mg, 28 6,449 3,800 357 363 373 115,65
Sept. 11 5,735  4,8%3 86 1,220 145 0,05
Sevt. 18 12,136 4,246 220 705 829 108,69
T0TALS 68,701 53,173 2,232 6,524 3,321 1,075.50

CRAND TOTALS & PERCENTAGES OF PAID OUT & DONATED GLASS, PAPER & AU LN *

. Total from July 10. Betimated Totel —~ . T
. to August 21 . from July 10 to . % Paid . S Ton
. .. Septe 18 .___out e
Glass « 61,130 1lbs. or « 94,425.8 1bs. or -  T3% . 209
. 7045 tons o 47.2 tons - .
Pener e 56,640 1lbs. or + 95,796 1lbs. or . 56% . 445
. 28.3% tons - 47,9 tong - .
Muwalnum  +  2,322,5 lbs. or -+ 3,806.1 lbs. or -  85% R
. 1.1 ton . ‘ 1.94 ton - .
PROFIT thru August 21lst = Pold Out Recelved Profit
$770.20 $1,143.42 B372.62

Above amounts exclude one check from Whippany Peper Board snd two checks
Lfrom tmericeon Cen Co.

*Tin, Bi-Metrl hrve been excluded from this chert becruse of out-strnding
chieck o,

TR R YT 2
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WASTE GENERATED PER BOTTLE PER TRIP

OUNCES OF WASTE
PER BOTTLE PER TRIP

30—
28—
26—
24—
22‘—-—

20—~ RETURNABLE GLASS,

WITH WATER FOR
WASH & RINSE

168

RETURNABLE GLASS,
WITHOUT WATER FOR
 WASH & RINSE

N JALL BAREX DUMPED
o L] . I L | l | 1X80% OF BAREX INCINERATED
| 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 0

TRIPS PER BOTTLE



POUNDS OF RAW MATERIALS USED FOR CONTAINERS

POUNDS PER ,
CONTAINER
PER TRIP &

0.6 —

ONE WAY CONTAINERS

T

0.4 | _
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RETURNABLE GLASS METAL CAN BAREX
GLASS (5 TRIPS)

TYPE OF CONTAINER



THE NEW JERSEY SOFT DRINK ASSOCIATION

My name is W. L. Lohrfinck, and I serve as Secretary for The New

Jersey Soft Drink Association. We appreciate_the ogportunlt to ,
express our views on the nroposed_ Assembly Bill 2212. We note -
it appears that governing officials are ahnroaching the litter

and solid waste problems on a fact-finding basis, for which we : .
commend them.

The soft drink packaging industry, from its beginning until about .
a half-dozen years ago, used only returnable bottles. The use
of non-returnable bottles and cans came about largely as the
result of the consumers growing reluctance to return the con-
tainers. The 2¢ deposit about covered the cost of the bottle
originally. Over the years the cost of this same bottle has risen .
to about 8-9¢. Some bottlers increased the devosit to 5¢, and

more in some instances, but even this move did not produce the

hoped~for results.

We recognize that while our cans and bottles are accountable for
a very small part of the total waste, nevertheless they do con-
tribute to the overall problem. We have endeavored and still are
engaged in efforts to discharge our responsibility.

We believe educating people not to litter, and encouraging re-
cycling, can be increasingly effective until such time as regional
bulkprocessing equipment is available. Backing up that belief,
our people have taken steps along educational lines to remind
people not to litter by: :
1 - distributing hundreds of thousands of litter bags for
cars and trucks, - I
- made available short educational films to schools and
civic groups, ‘ : .
3 - thru newspaper ads and placards oh trucks,
L - by working with an Ohio-based comvany, providing metal
litter containers numbering thousands, located in many
New Jersey towns and communities,
5 - cooperating with glass and can companies in establishing
recycling collection depots.

N

The effect of banning the use of non-returnable containers could

be disastrous. It would, we fear, actually put out of business

those D}ants which because of the demands of the market place, ' .
are equipped to-produce only non-returnable containers. Because

of their inability to secure the many millions of additional dol-

lagﬁ.necessaaytgoghthelcapital investment for bottles, cases, and .
machinery. i e closing of these plant
b nnd tax Soh. the g , P s would be the loss of ]
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For your information we submit some statistics for our industry,
as follows: The figures are, we believe, minimum rather than
maximum, and are figured on an annual basis.

Total number of emvloyees \?)DK?] /"\

Total Dollar payroll 2 A loen—S"9 8%4«/«.4{,
Total Dollar Investment ér?- e N

Total Purchases, goods and services /dif} ‘9 ~———-81>5L-'n

Total Taxes paid : _;‘.:% L 3/)'{ —y

We interpret the paragranh referring to a 5¢ refund as meaning a
devosit on a returnable bottle. If only returnable bottles were
permitted, we believe the bottling companies would of necessity,
have to charge a devosit of 8 or 9¢ on a small bottle, and

probably 1l4¢ on a large family size. Hence, an increase to the
consumer. The increase in labor costs of collecting, and return--
ing these containers would also have to be absorbed by the consumer.

Most to be regretted we believe is the fact that neither avproach
will produce the improvement we all desire. For reason based on
experience to date, the consumer discards the package in so many
instances and this includes wine bottles, paper cups, etc. In
addition, if only returnable bottles were permitted, it would
actually increase the weight of the solid waste because returnable
bottles are heavier (contain more glass) than non-returnables.

We note newspaper reports that the Monmouth County Board of Free-
holdersis-actively considering a regional approach to collection,
shredding, and recycling. '

Finally, because industry and government are equally concerned
with the problem, may I respectfully suggest the appointment of
a joint committee to carefully gather all the necessary facts
and then be in a position to present a united recommendation for
our state? The State of Pennsylvania, and others, have decided -
upon this course of action. '

Respectfully submitted,

W. L. Lohrfinck, Secretary

n~WﬁwffﬂEm9in“ﬁ¥
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STATEMENT TO BE DELIVERED AT PUBI.TIC HEARING OF ASSEMBLY BILI. NO. 2212

NEW JERSEY ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS

SEPTEMBER 22, 1971

THE COCA-COLA BOTTLING COMPANY OF NEW YORK, INC.

My name is William Pearce. I am Vice President of The
Coca-Cola Bottling Company of New York. I wish to thank the
General Assembly of the State of New Jersey for this oppor-
tunity to present our views relative to Assembly Bill No. 2212.

Our main office is located at 425 East 34th Street in Manhattan.
Our products, Coca-Cola, Fresca, Tab, Sprite, Fanta flavors

and Dr Pepper are bottled, canned and distributed out of twenty-
two plants and warehouses located in the New Jersey-New York
area. More specifically, five or these plants are located in
New Jersey - in Paterson, North Newark, South Newark, North
Brunswick and Asbury Park.

Additionally, The Coca-Cola Bottling Company of South Jersey,
operating a plant and two warehouses out of Atlantic City,

and The Philadelphia Coca-Cola Bottling Company operating a
plant in Moorestown, complete the Coca-Cola and allied product
distribution system for the State of New Jersey.

These nine Coca-Cola production and distribution centers in New
Jersey employ 856 employees, representing an annual payroll of
$7,940,000. These plants representing an investment of $11,806,000
paid the State of New Jersey $647,000 in taxes during 1971.
Purchases of goods and services exceeded $23,500,000,

We believe that from an economic viewpoint these figures need no
further amplification,with the exception that any legislation

enacted to require a mandatory deposit or ban cans and non-returnable
bottles would reduce them appreciably, place an undue burden on

the consumer and the retailer - and most importantly, accomplish

very little in solving the solid waste and litter problem to any
meaningful degree. I have listed below a number of facts to

support this statement. '
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As responsible business citizens of the State of New Jersey, our
Company shares concern for the solid waste disposal problem.
Bottles and cans are a part of this problem....and we recognize
full well that along with all manufacturers, and all retailers
and all consumers, we contribute to the problem. Thus, over the
past several years we have established the following program in
an effort to make a contribution to the solution.

During 1968 and 1969 we aggressively promoted the re-
turnable-deposit bottle. At that time it accounted
for over 40% of our total business. This effort con-
sisted of over $250,000 worth of newspaper advertising
plus $50,000 in point-of-sale advertising with the
phrase 'Money Back Bottles' imprinted on all cartons.
Ours was a voice in the wilderness. Why? Because of
the countervailing social and economic pressures work-
ing on retailers, on consumers, on industry, on city
government - indeed - on the very life style of our
society. In spite of our tremendous promotional effort,
our returnable bottle business has decreased from 40%
to less than 257 of our total business.

On December 28, 1970, we increased the deposit on our
returnable bottle, the return rate of which had fallen
from 25 trips to 5 trips over the past decade. We did
this because we felt the present state of awareness and
concern may help save, or at least extend the life of
the returnable bottle and that higher deposit value may
encourage the consumer to return it rather than throw
it away. ’

There were preliminary signs that this strategy might be
working. But our records now show that return rate has
not increased. As a matter of fact, it has fallen off

to the point that our returmable bottle is fast becoming
a one-way bottle. Gentlemen, this fact is tremendously
significant because no soft drink company in this country
has expended more money, time and effort than we have, to
sustain the life of the returnable bottle.

Recognizing all of these facts, our Company is attempting
to fulfill its responsibility to the public through the
establishment of 18 glass and aluminum can collection

and recycling centers at our plants in the New York -

New Jersey area. In New Jersey we collect in our plants
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in Paterson, North Newark, North Brunswick and Asbury
Park., Additionally, the Moorestown Coca-Cola Bottling
Company also has a collection program under way.

These centers opened Saturday, March 20, 1971 and are
open from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. every Saturday. We
pay the consumer 10¢ per pound for aluminum and 1¢ per
pound for glass; and, of course, 5¢ for returnable
bottles.

We are hearten by the consumer response as endorsed by
the following results for the past 26 Saturdays.

NR Glass Aluminum Cans Returnable
Date # Bottles # Tons # Cans # Tons Bottles
March 20 24,402,228 6,114 10,162,720 254 584,500
thru
Sept. 11

In New Jersey alone during this period we collected
3,786,000 pounds of glass and 138,108 pounds of

aluminum and paid the consumers over $60,000 for these
cans and bottles. Our overall payment to the consumer,
for all 18 of our collection centers,amounted to over
$200,000 for these 26 collection days. We, of course,
sell the glass and aluminum to the manufacturers for

the same rate per pound that we pay out. Our investment
is primarily in promotion and manpower which we estimate
will cost us in excess of $500,000 for 1971.

We know we cannot solve the whole problem facing us all,
but we earnestly feel that our recycling program and
others like it can indeed have an impact on the cans
and bottles in the solid waste stream.

We outline these programs not to pat ourselves on the back, but
to point out that positive steps can be taken by industry to help
solve the solid waste problem on a short-term basis.

Long range solutions to the solid waste problem rest with advanced
technologies and a systems approach to the collection, disposal,
separation, and recycling of materials. Such systems, we understand,
are now in a toesting stage. We believe that they will be an economic
reality in the not-too-distant future.
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These systems will take money and lots of it. However, if
everyone involved from raw material producer to wholesaler, to -
retailer, to consumer, were to pay an equitable share, the cost
would not be burdensome on any segment.

In this regard, we wish to go on record as having no objection

to paying our fair share, but we feel that to be equitable, any
legislation should cover all materials and all elements of solid
waste. Anything short of this we feel is discriminatory, and
would not achieve the basic objective of reducing the solid waste
load by a meaningful degree. With all due respect to the repre-
sentatives of the press, we think newspapers should be included,
as should magazines, mattresses, appliances, textiles....in short,
everything from A to Z which contributes to the problem.

We oppose any and all bills which would either ban, tax, or impose
mandatory deposits on soft drink containers. Such legislation

is discriminatory and would seriously hurt our industry....not to
mention the loss of jobs and payroll, and the reduction of federal,
state, and city taxes. All this would happen without really getting
at the basic intent of solving the litter and solid waste problems
facing our environment.

Thank you.
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Statement
by
John T. Séally, Vice President
New Jcrsey Royai Crown Bcft]ing Co., Inc.
before members of
The State Acermhly nt New 1evaoy
on
The proposed bill to ban non-returnable
bottles and cans
September 22, 1971

Trenton, N, J.
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My name is John P, Scally., L am Vieo #Fvoo o STONew derney oy
Crown Boltlirp ﬂo.,’which is an affiliatc of (ne dig Vork Sever-thn
Bottling Co,, and the New York Royal Crown Vor@ling fo.. Ve scrve a
twenty county area in New York and New Jercoy with a population of 17

million.

Our compsne enployGes 404 persons presently. This number increasos
to approx%mafe]yvﬁoo with the arrival of the warm season of the year.
AN 3 - .

The toal wages raid in the calendar year »%9:/C were $5,554,417,00.
Effect on New Jersey Royal Crown

The legislative proposal before you today has as its avowed cbjective
a reversion by our industry to returnable type packaging. The necessity
of such & return would clearly and simply pul our company ouf of business.

Permit me to explain.

After déing everything to preserve the returnable.bottle, including
inéreasing the deposit to 3¢ and 7¢ per bottle, we were forced to convert
to the non-returnable glass bottle and the metal cans as a matter of
cconomic survival, We did so in response to consumer pressurve which
exﬁressed itself in these words: "There are more than ten thousand food
and drink items for sale in retail markets and you soft drink ( and beer )
people are the only ones Qho charge a deposit and put us to the inconvenience
of storing dirty bottles and carrying them back to the stores for.yog&’ Well,

W

we are just not going to do it anymore.'" And they didn't, ©Not even on the

boctles thab carried a 7¢ deposit, The coasurer mads it aconcwicall,
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»
Tmnoseihle o s to use returnable wach-~ a0 We gald off oo il
woo nad o dben oo Loty e Toss Dhan hoda UReds o ve e Vool

forced to juuh wbe production machinery for reiurnables, and then weut
to great expense o install new equipment Lo produce non-roturnablew,

We are in that 700% non-returnable position teday,

A forced return today to veturnablc boltles wm@ld thus, in effccl,
put our companv out of business, The ressons why tﬂc preposed ban on
non-reurnsiiLe ngttlcs.nnd cans vould put ChlL company oul of busimgsx
are clearly detailed in a letter written bw iae President of our company

Sidney P, Mudd, *o Senator Bernard C. Smith, Chairman of the Senate

Commitice on Conservation and Recreation of New York State,

Rather than rcad the letter here, I have attached it to copies of
thicec Foaebdfmesywr whict sori il ke Lred = maifn o i b ooy et ran sdvads T e

in three short sentences.,

1. A forced change to returnables would cost my company alone

approximately $21,111,000.00 in the first year of such a change.

v2. A forced change would make obsolete approximately $1,150,000,00

worth of present modern machinery.

3. The cost of conversion is utterly beyond the total resources
of this company. Not even our total annual gross receipts equal $21,000,000,00,

We would cecasc to exist,
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1 e G
. e DAl te tulr oo 5o O¢ dees 2 on oail bowvernoe o o3
i propheed ball o To pul o sooor LUg dori 2l on apl bewvooise RN R
vonld Jr offecr cverease the price of thooo hov vaces by 4o oo s
chi weeh
fhodsands of ol food and drini aved tebhio g oalvay
crefusvehls coatalvers, the consun sery Peosdes i foavit
&8s and ooy boitles and coarvying than Loos (o tore fo IO S

She cithoy seitibes to ovne of the nen-deposiv competing bevereages ov clel i

Lo throw Do vonoeilt bottles away.

Effect on the Retailer

I the proposed bill were to be enacted into law. the offeci wn PRYe
retaiiers' cost of doivg business in New Jevsey would cery he g e

sibstantially. The rederuiion of all beverage bottles, the sorting, the
breaskage, the storage and svrveillance, and the checking of returns to routd

salesmen and warehouses would mean new expenditures and increased opcrating

expence, These increased costs would most certainly be passed to the coun-

sumer, With most supermarkets operating at 17 or less profit on sales, thevae
is no other way to handle increased costs. DBeyond this, there would ineviitably

be a drop in sales volume for all food stores y"a reversion to returnable

bottles were compulsary and non-returnable bottles and cans were banned.

Consider further the food warehouses which deliver to focd stores in
many states. They would have to demand special packaging from manufaciturcrs

for specific resale in the State of New Jersey. Manufacturers and food storce
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DO e wisand Gy s Do Hho in Lo de sl
packesing belny, returned through [cod cvireus and wevehouses. Moo

ailer cost, and *ho ona vesuli, ivcroessed

manuiacturer cost, more vel

cost Lo CHe COomgT.

Soiid wasiiv disposal is a world prouics W

are nod trosolve it by panichking ond b
paccaglug aud material cone o
cmerye fyver the primitive through the availsability of food and diinl,

the Wealthiul Landling and stornyof it and ihe valuable time saved by

them for more important pursuits,

Solid waste disposal is

level by municipal sevvices.

be equipped with modern machinery mow being developed that will sepavate
all recycleable material glass, metal and paper. Industry must be
.:- g ) L
prepared to do that recycling with the expectation of a reasonable profit.
We share your concern on the problems of litter and solid waste,

ne

and, we as an industry, pledge our cooperation to work with goverrme

to bring the problem to a quick and logical solution.

Gentlemen, in speaking before you today against the proposed bill on
banning non-returnable bottles and cans, we are not engaged in some version

of local lobbying or some appeal for a self-serving favor.
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We ave goiits cleariy

Jersey., We wanw to be certain that you vuuorsitoms

name of the 500 f.milies who ‘depend on our coipany for a Iivelihooc

5, and others,

ask that you rejeut‘this proposed'bill and thus per

to remain in business,
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NEW YORK SEVEN-UP
Bottling Co., Inc.

The Honorable Bernard C. Smith
Chairman, Senate Committee on
Conservation and Recreation
Senate Chambers '
Albany, New York

Dear Senator Smith:

, Having completed the travels of which I spoke in an
earlier letter to you, I am able to respond in detail to the
questions which you asked of me through Vic Coudella..

In recalling my statements to you when we visited
in your office on March 17, and as developed in my testimony
before the Joint Legislative Committee later that morning, you
have questioned why a ban on non-returnable bottles and cans
would put this company out of business. You have asked,
through Vic, why we can't convert our plants:; if we could
convert them, what it would cost, and, finally,.how the in-
vestment could be amortized.

Senator, in response, let me say simply that a forced
return to returnable bottle packaging would put us out of
business because the cost would be beyond our means. Let me
detail that cost for you so that you may have the answer to
your basic question. What I detail for you will apply in
greater or less degree to all bottlers in New York faced with
the same circumstances.

Expenditures Required To Convert To Returnable Bottle

Packaging from the Present Packaging of Non-Returnable
Bottles and Cans
A. Production Machinery and Eguipment

l. Three additional bottling lines to provide in
bottles the equivalent of present can sales

Each at $750,000 ' $2,250,000

2, To convert present non-returnable bottle
lines to returnable bottle

a) Two bottler sterilizers

Each at $80,000 160,000

b) Four empty-bottle inspectors

Each at $12,500 50,000

c) Four ease-packers.

Each at $25.000 100,000

d) Twelve carton-openers
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Each at $3,500 42,000

3. Two bottle-sorters. Each at $50,000 100,000
4. Eight additional fork-1ift trucks for

material handling. Each at $7,500 ‘ 60,000

| Total $2,762,000

B. Packaging Materials

l. Returnable bottles required in flrst vear
of production only:

3,000,000 cases at $2.50 per case $7,500.000

2. Wooden cases requlred 1n flrst year
of productlon only.

1,500,000 cases at $1.60 per case 2,400,000

3. Caxdboard cartons required in flrst
year of productlon only.

20,000,000 at $50 per thousand 1,000,000

Total $10,000,000

C. Water and Electric Current

1. Water consumption would quadruple
in return to sterilization of
returnable bottles:

12 month increase at $12,000 per month o 144,000
2. Electricity consumption would double

with usage of increased equipment to
handle returnable bottles:

12 months increase at $6,000 per month 72,000
Total $ 216,000

D. Delivery Trucks

Because of the sorting and handling of
returnable bottles the delivery fleet
would increase by 60%

90 trucks at an annual rental of $5,000
- per truck¥* - 450,000

* A portion of our fleet is leased:
another portion is owned. This figure
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supposes all additional trucks
would be leased. New trucks cost
between $9,999 and $10,000 ’

E. Transportation of Production and Materials
Trucking equipment and manpower to operate
. would have to be tripled if all packaging
were in returnable bottles:

Additional cost, including fringe benefits

F. Manpower Requirement

1. Production personnel
(fringe benefits included)

a) Three new bottling lines:
36 employees at $10,000

b) Additional men needed on
present lines if converted:

12 employees at $10,000

c) Additional supervision:
3 employees at $15,000

2. Warehouse and loadiné pérsonnel
(including fringe benefits)

Manpower would have to be doubled:
additional cost

3. Sales and delivery personnel
(includes fringe benefits)

a) Additional service-salesmen
required: :

90 men at $15,000 each

b) Additional supervision
required:

9 men at $20,000 each

c) Additional division managers
required:

2 men at $27,000 each
e ' Total
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900,000

360,000

120,000

45,000

420,000

1,350,000

180,000

54,000

$2,529,000
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H.

Real Estate

1.

New Rochelle plant

Additicon of two bottling lines and the
storage and handling of returnable
bottles would force total warehousing
and loading and storage of trucks to
move to a new facility:

Cost of land and construction

New York City plant

This facility could not possibly
handle a conversion to returnable
bottles because of space limitations.
A new facility would be essential for
production, warehou51ng and distribu-
tion:

Estimated cost of $3,000,000 less
$1,000,000 value of present facility
leaves additional cost of

Warehouses in Garden City, Medford
and Newburgh, New York and Rochelle
Park, New Jersev.

These areas would have to be nearly
doubled in size:

52,000 sq. ft. at rental of $2.00
per sq. ft. ’

Total

Obsolescense of Present Machinery

To revert to returnables would cause present
production machinery to become obsolete:

l. Three bottle-warmers at.$20,000 each
2. Three bottle-rinsers at $10,000 each
3.  Three labelers at $20,000 each

4. One complete canning line presently

‘being installed at approximate cost of

_Total‘

$ 1,250,000

2,000,000

104,000

$3,354,000

60,000
30,000

60,000

1,000,000

Summary of Required Expenditures
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A. Production Machinery and Equipment | $72;762;OOO

B. Packaging Materials A . 10,000,000
C. Water and Electric Current: | j . 216,000
D. Delivery Trucks = “/ o | ‘ . 450,000
E. Transportation of Production and Materials t 900, 000
F. Manpower Requirement | | | 2,529,000
G. Real Estate 3,354,000

Total $21,111,000
H. Obsolescence of Present Machinery 1,150,000

Senator, practical person that I know you to be, I
am confident that I do not have to burden you with further
explanation once you have been acquainted with the adee
facts. I can best repeat the obvious: to render obsolete
$1,150,000 worth of new machinery and then find another
$21,111,000 with which to convert to,returnable bottles, a
figure in excess of our total annual grdés Sales,‘iS‘beyond us.

This is to say nothing regarding the impossibility of
accomplishing all needed changes in buildings, machinery,
equipment and manpower in a reasonable time period.

Senator, the facts compel us to a single conclusion,
the one you heard from me in your office, the one stated
in the testimony before the Commlttee and the one with which
this letter began: a forced return to packaglng in returnable
bottles would purely and s1mply put this company out of business.

I know the problem which you face and I face it squarely
with you. I know also that the livelihood of five hundred
families, for whom I am singularly responsible as president of
this company, depends in great part on how well these facts
are made known to you and. your fellow leglslators.

May I repeat in 01031ng that the answer to litter is
educatlon and enforcement. The answer to solid-waste management
is a systems approach to municipal collection and separation
coupled with industrial re=cycling. Time, energy and money
are most definitely required. All are being urgently expended now.
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Please do not move to destroy this company and many others while
true solutions are on the way.

I am grateful to you, Senator Smith, for your request
for this information. With every best wish.

Sincerely,

Sidney P. Mudd
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"HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES ~
WASHINGTON. D. C. 20515

FOR RELEASE - . TUESDAY A.M. © MAY b, 9T2

(202) 225-5406

PLEASE OBSERVE RELEASE DATE

WASHINGTON -~ "For the first time we have the statistics which show that the over-
whelming majority of this nation's citizens want to ban throw-away beverage containers
and would prefer returnable bottles and cans which do not litter our country's 1andscape,"
it was revealed here this morning by U.S. Congressman Joseph P, Vigorito in making public
the results of the fifst,nationwide survey on the question of whether one-way beverage
containers should be banned.

At a press conference in the House of Representatives Caucus Room Vigorito released
to the news media the results of a specially commissidned survey which showed that 64%
of all Americans "approvedvof‘a law prohibiting. the éale of soft drinks and beer in non-
returnable or throw-away containers" while only 26% were opposed to such a ban. The

‘survey was conducted by one of the most reputable polling organizations in the country,
Opinion Research Corp. of Princeton, N.J.

"Up to now those of us concerned about the environment have believed that people
are willing to return their bevé#age bottles and cans raﬁher than throwing them away.
Bottlers hﬁve said the opposite; that people were too convenience-oriented and preferred
one-way containers, Now, for the first time, we have statistic proof which proves
beyond a doubt that if our citizens were given the option;ﬁthey would choose the
returnable soft drink and beer containers. The problem is that the bottlers and super-

merkets, by not carrying returnables, deny them this choice," Vigorito said.

(more)
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"Bottlers and supermarkets are not\concerned“with ﬁhe coﬂvenien?e of.the CONSUNE Pee
they are concerned sbout their own convenience. We must reverse this trend. The con=
sumer must demand what he feels is best. They must point out that th%z?iturndble
‘bottles, not only degreades our countryaide but also increases the cost of the product
contained in it."

Vigoritc said that the favorable results of the éurvey would greatly enhhnée the
effort being made ﬁy himself and 40 cosponsors to’push'through Ccngress his bill to ban
all throw-away soft drink and beer bottles and cans. The-iggiélation has received
nation-wide attention and similar bills have been intrbdﬁcéd and p#ssed'in several
counties and states ccross the country.

The Congressmean noted that the state of Oregon Hpuée of Representatives has passed
a version of the bill and it is currently pending beforebthe>Staxe's Senate.  The Gover-
nor of Michigan, William Milliken, has also coﬁe out in favoiVOf a ban and the City of
Bowie and the County of Howard, both in Maryland, have also passed bans on throw-away
hottles u.nd cens, |

Vigorito also noted that the nationwide survey taken by Opinion*Reséﬁfch Corp.
reflected similar more localized surveys taken by private Arganizaxions and firms, A
poll taken by Allied Supermerkets, Inc,, a concern which*bperaﬁes’87 supérﬁgrkets in
Michigan, showed that 67% of théir customers would buv in returnaﬁle bottles if they
vere available., The same perceuntage favored a statewidekban.on throw-avays. A survey
teken by a groéery chain in Portland, Oregon, also showed that T8% of those polled
favored baaning all one-way containers, A 'Minheé.polisL ‘survey indicated 70%\01‘ the

citizens in that areea supported a total ban on non-réturhdbleé;
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FACTS ON NONRETURNABLE BEVERAGE CONTAINERS

l. Shipments of beer and ‘soi‘t drinks. in t?xrow-away bottles and cans in 19701
Soft Drinks '“"""-6,000,000,000 9,000,000,000 15,000,000,000
Beer 6,230,000,000 15,100,000,000 21,330,000,000
| 7 36,330,000,000
2. Shipments and use of glass containers will more than double in the ten year
period from 1966~1976, especially since nonreturnsble gl#ss containeis of
beer and soft drinks are replacing returnables.
. L |
3. The soft drink industry will produce 82% of all soft drinks in nonreturnable
containers by the year 1975. The brewery industry will far exceed that pace,
and will produce and sell practically wll products in nonretwrnable containers
by 1972,
4, The con#umer loses three ways as a result of today's packaging:

a. he pays more for a disposable container than for a reusable one.
b. he has to pay to have the one-way container collected for disposal,

c. he must pay again when the container does not degrade but lives to foul
our environment.

(more)
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It is estimated that Americans could save $705,000,000 per year (based on prices
in the Washington, D.C. area) if they purchased all soft drinks in returnable,
money-back containers. If all beer were puréhase'd in returnai:le, noney-back
containers, the consumer could save an additional $840,000,000, making a total
saving to the American citizen-of $1.5 billion., This could reach $k billion

annually by 1975 if current trends continue.

Collection and disposal of waste materials presently cost the taxpayer $4.5

billion annually, and the tota.ll is growing each year.

The consumer can save if he buys his beverages in returnable bottles:

Soft Drinks - In Washington, D.C. In Richmond, Va,
12-0z. throw-away cans 6 for 8¢ . 6 for 83¢
12-0z returnable bottles 6 for‘69¢ | 6 for 59¢
savings per carton ‘ 20¢ 2u¢

Beer -
12-0z. throw-away cans 6 for $1.23 6 for $1.25
12-0z returnable bottles . 6 for $ .78 6 for $ .95
savings per carton | bs¢ | 30¢

(more)
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A quote directly from a Coca-Cola Bottling Company advertisement in Birmingham:
"Besides making the worLd a cleaner place to live in, money-back
bottles save us money by keeping our production costs downr And
they save you money because Coke in returnable bottles is your

best value."

- If the company saves money and the consumer saves money, why aren't the bottiers

using more returnable bottles?

A one mile stretch of highway in Kansas had a total of 930 beer cans, pop bottles,
beer bottles, and beer cartons. Of the total litter, beer and soft drink bottles
comprise anywhere from 3 to 8%, depending on whose figures you use. This may not
sound like much until you realize that bottles and cans don't burn, It then takes
on a much different picture because the average city burns its trash. The residue
consists of 60 to 80% glass and metal. Sanitation‘people‘complain about the

molten glass which clogs up their incinerators.

Problem with solid waste incineration: In another typical situation where one
ton of packaging material is incinerated a residue of T05 pounds remains. Of this

amount 637 pounds or 90% comes from glass and metal containers.

(more)
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In Detroit alone the sanitation department reports that it costs them $4,000 each
day to dispose of bottles. Based on a five day week, this amounts to over s
$1,000,000 per year. In addition, the cost of picking up litter (as distinct from

reguler refuse collection) is estimated to be over $5OO million annually.

If present incinerators can't handle the problem, we have to find a plé.ce to dump
them. But where? President Nixon doesn't want us to dump them in the ocean. 014
mines are filling up and many cities are running out of space for landfills. lFor
example, Sen Francisco weLnted to haul its trash to Nevada; naturally Nevada said
no. Where are we going to put the ever growing quantities of bottles and cans?
And if the 37 billion throw-awey containers now grow to 100 billion in 1975 our

problem is going to be three times as bad! _ _ (-

A survey conducted by Allied Supermarkets, which operate 87 supermarkets in
Michigan, showed 67% of their customers would buy in returnable bottles if they
were available, and additionally, the same percentage said they favored a state- o

wide ban on nonreturnables. . ¢

One of the arguments of the bottlers against r;%urnable containers is ;tpat retail‘
outlets do not like to take the time to handle them for return to the bottler.
This argurent is false., The National Federation of Independent Business, San Mateo, i
Calif., took a poll Hand the results showed that 62% of the business proprietors
favored the proposed ban on one-way containers, while only 27% opposed it. The
Federation ha:?. 287,166 members across the country.

(more) ' B
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Most small to medium-sized bottlers favor returnsbles and say it would not impose

, a
a hardship on the industry to switch-back to lOO/returnables, and that prices would
not rise as a result. Several beer company executives have said the same thing. It

is the large companies which oppose the ban on throw-aways.

A poll in the Twin Cities metropolitan area, a Minneapolis Star Metro Poll, indicated

that 70% of the persons said they favor a total ban on the no-return

interviewed :
bottles and cans. In the same poll 88% said they would be willing to return bottles
and cans for reuse rather than throwing them out. Eleven percent were unwilling and

one percent were undecided.

A survey in Portland, Oregon, by a grocery store chain shows that 78% of the shoppers
interviewed said they were in favor of banning all one-way containers. A bill to ban

non-returnables has passed the Oregon House and is now pending before the Senate.

Some unions are taking a very forward-looking position on this matter. The United

Autoworkers Local in Pontiac, Mich., collected 2,500 signatures on petitions urging
Oakland County to ban nonreturnables. The Michigan Tourist Council favors # ban.

Gov. Milliken of Michigan has said: "I will propose a phaseout of nonreturnable

malt beverage and soda pop bottles and cans in the state leading to an eventual ban."

The 1969 soft drink sales established a per capita consumption of 30.2 gallons, or

approximately U483.2 eight-ounce equivalents per person per year.

- 30 -
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' : . THE EFFECT ON JOBS OF THE TREND TOWARD
NON-RETURNABLE CONTAINERS IN THE BEER AND SOFT DRTNK INDUSTRIES "

The switch-over from returnable, money-back bottles to throw-away containers in

‘the beer industry has been paralleled by a sharp decline in the number of breweries .

with a consequent loss of jobs and corresponding decline in payrolls.
Figures from the U. S. Department of Commerce show that the number of breweries

in this country dropped from 262 in 1958 to 188 in 1967, a decline of 28.3%. Recently,

a representative of the U. S. Brewers Association estimated there were now less than

80 brewing companies.

The nunber of persons employed by breweries dropped from 71,700 in 1958 to

60,500 in 1967, a decline of 15.6%. Based on the average wage rate of $8,714 in 1967,

the 11,200 job dezcline amounted to a payroll loss 6f $97,596,800.

It is estimated tﬂatveven larger repercussions will occur in the soft drink indus-
try -- if the switch to throw-aways ébntinues. va the currenf tfend continues, experts .
predict that by 1975, ali soft drinks will be sold in non-returnable containers. 1In
1967 there were 3,403 soft drink bottling plants in this country employing 123,400
persons with a total payroll of $727,106,000. | B >

If the trénd to throw-aways in the soft drink industry pafal;els the beer industry,

" which it has to date, a decline of 28.37% in the number of plants would amount to a drop

in plants of 936, or a new total of 2,440 planté. The number of employees, with a 15.6%
decline. would fall to 104,150. Using the 1967 payroll figure of $5,892, the total

loss in payroll would be $113,421,000 yearly.

A complete switch to throw-aways would also affect employment in food stores and’ .

other establishments selling soft drinks. Food chains estimate that it takes between

1/4 and 1/2 of a man to physically handle the sorting and related work connected with

(Over)
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returnables. There were, in 1967, 218,130 food stores in this country. Estimating

that around 90% were handling returnables at that time and using the minimum manpower
need of 1/4 man, the number of jobs comes to 50,000. Using $6,000 as an average wage

base, the payroll loss would be $300,000,000 yearly.

Combining the three different sets of figures, the effect on jobs and salaries

from the tiend toward non-returnable containers in the beer and soft drink industries

comes to a possible job loss of 80,450 persons and a payroll loss of $511,017,800

yearly minimum. In addition, there are thousands of warehousing jobs which would be

adversely affected by.a complete switch-over to non—feturnables.

For a plant comparison betweén the beer industry, now almost wholly éommitted to
throw-aways and the soft drink industry still selling a large volume of retufnaBles,
Miller Erewing Company and the Seven-Up Bottling Company distribute approximately thé

same volume of products on a national basis. Mlller does it from three breweries.

Seven-Up does it from 487 franchise bottlers. The September ilssue of Outlook, a

publication of Owens-Illinois (largest producer of glass bottles in the country), said,

"One of the natlon's biggest soft drink manufacturers has more than 1,000 local bottling

plants today -- but officials of that company predict that 10 years from now they'll

have less than 100 -- serving the entire country."

Sources:

1) 1967 Census of Manufacturers, the U. S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of
the Census.

2) 1970 Drewers Almanac —- The Brewing Industry in the United States, United
States Brewers Association, Inc.

3) 1969 Sales Survey of the Soft Drink Industry, National Soft Drink Association.

4) Outlook, September, 1970.
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PRESIDENT VICE-PRESIDENT TREASURER SECRETARY

JOSEPH J. SAKER ALLEN I. BILDNER MEYER BURGSTEIN : HOWARD MILLER
FOODERAMA SHOP-RITE KINGS SUPERMARKETS UNITED FOODTOWN FOOD FAIR

JAMES M. NEILLAND %w )erdey gooc[ Couna/

Executive Director

2100 E. STATE ST. U TRENTON, N. J. 08619 o (609) 586-6390
DIRECTORS

ALLEN |. BILDNER

Kings
MES’fi'lS‘éEfili'nN (Statenent by Janes s Neilland, Executive Director of
L o 1oson New Jersey Food Council, testifying before the New Jersey
JOHN EDSTROM Assenbly Comnittee on Air & Water Pollution & Public
PRI ANGUZZA Health Wednesday, September 22, 1971, during Public Hear-
EDxiﬁéﬁgLD ing on A-2212, an Act to restrict the use of non-return-
Progressive Shop.Rite able beverage containers.)

THOMAS INFUSINO
Nutley Park Shop-Rite
STANLEY P. KAUFELT
Mayfair Foodtown
SIDNEY LeBOW . N
LeBow’s Foodtown Mr. Chairman, nembers of the Conmittee:
JOSEPH H. McCARTHY
First National

HOWARD MILLER My name is James M. Neilland. I an the executive
Food Fair

JAMES M. NEILLAND ‘ . - o
New Jersey Food Council director of New Jersey Food Council which represents the

WILLIAM K. ROTERT, JR.
Grand Union . . o N

JOSEPH J. SAKER Garden State food industry, its employees and its custoners.
Foodarama Shop-Rite

LARRY SHAPIRO
Staff/Good Deal

NICHOLAS SUMAS
Village Shop-Rite . e .

FRANK TUCKER - First, let me conmend you for your decision to conduct
Supermarkets General i

LEO WILSON . . . . .
Stop Convenience hearings on A-2212, which proposes highly-questionable restric-

LOU ZARET
Hills-Great Eastern . . '

tions on the packaging and sale of cormmon consuner beverages.

EX-OFFICIO :
ASSEMBLYMAN Additionally, each of you is to be comnmended for your willing-
JOSEPH AZZOLINA

Food Circus Foodtown ness to give of your valuable time to be here today to hear

the taestinony of this bill.

Today, virtually every American citizen -- both private and corporate --
is tremendously concerned with the many dangers to our environment caused,
primarily, by techmological advances but conpounded by a handful of unthinking

or uncaring individuals.
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Because of this grave concern, we are often tenpted to cure the disease
with the wrong medicine, with a medicine which appears to pronise instant
health and happiness, with a nedicine which appears so easy to dispense and

so easy to swallow.

Morphine, I night renin:l you,is a tremendous weapon in the fight agqinst
excrutiating pain. But I'nm certain all of you know the terrible consequences

which await the patient who becones addicted to morphine.

I firnly believe that it is in this light we tust ponder that which
A-2212 could possibly do to benefit our environnent and that which it nost

certainly will do to harn those who live within this environment.

I an thoroughly convinced that the concern Qf all Americans for a cleaner
and healthier environment begins at home, with tﬁé roons in which we reside,
with the food and water we consune, with the clothes we wear, with every-
thing that comes into our hones and with the land imnediately surrounding our

hoties.

I an thoroughly convinced that our concern extends beyond these irmediate
borders. We want clean air at work and at play. We want clean water, not
only for our own use but for the use of our unknown neighbors. We want
beautiful and clean highways and unblenished landscapes. We want our cars
and our nerves free fron unhealthy noise.

As a proud citizen of what I believe to be the greatest and most progres-
sive nation in the history of mankind, I an not afraid to believe that, sone

day, we can have all of this.

199



But let me remind you that penicillin was not developed by injecting
mold into suffering patients. Dedicated men and women worked with that de-

cayed substance and brought progtgss;

Today, 200 million Americans cohsume untold millions of gallons of bev-
erages of all types:. And these beverages are brought into their homes in

containers of all types.

Unquestionably, these thoughts bring to mind tremendous magnitude in
terns of netal, glass and plastic which may serve a useful purpose but which,

at present, are doomed to the waste pile:

But, if with one bold move, we could elimninate from our lives every
single ounce of that metal, that glass, that plastic, we would not have

scratched the surface of the task of cleaning up our enviromment.

I am sure you will hear nuch today concerning the doclimented studies
conducted by the National Acadeny of 8cierice in cooperation with the National
Academy of Engiheering Highway Research Board and by the Federal Bureau of
Solid Waste Management. Their studies prove, beyond the shadow of a doubt,
that these packaging materials constitute the,smallest part of roadside litter

and an even smaller part of our solid waste.

And of course, neither this bill nor any other piece of legislation you
and I could envision is going to elinminate éach and every ounce of that metal,

that glass and that plastic.

And I subnit to you that this nation does not want it eliminated.
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The beverages we consurie today have become so nuch a part of our lives,
so nuch a part of our diets, that our desire for then is very close to beconing

a need for then.

The citizens of this nation, with our ever-increasing concern for the
environnent in thch we live, want clean héones. And so I subnuit to you that,
" no matter how these beveragos aré packaged, we arc going to continue purchas-
ing themn. And, because wc¢ want clean hones, we are not going to tolerate
stockpiles of used and dirty cans, used and dirty bottles and used and dirty

plastic containers while they await a trip back to our favorite grocery store.

I will not be happy -- and you will not be happy -~ throwing away a con-
siderable humber of nickels each and every week of our lives. But I will do
it and you will do it becausec we cah afford it to preserve the cleanliness of

our hones.

But will all the citizens of New Jersey be able to afford such cleanliness
when suddenly, by the passage of this bill, the cost of such cleanliness will

nake it a luxury?

New Jersey is known nationwide for nany things, sone of which we are not
very proud. But we are known,too, for our very genuine concern for the poor
and the underprivileged. Enactment of this bill would go in the face of this

concern.
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If you and I enjoy the pleasure of a cold beer or a cold soft drink
while we relax at home; if you and I enjoy a glass of fruit juice in the
norning, can we fail to recognize that such sinple pleasures constitute per-

haps the major pleasure for hundreds of thousands of citizmns in this state?

Do we really want to increase the cost of that pleasure for those citizens?

Do we really want to insist that those citizens be forced to live in even
unhealthier dwellings than they do at present because they will have to save
those cans and bottles in order to hold down the cost of their beverages?

Mr. Chairman, memnbers of the Committee:

I don't want this. I cannot believe you want it.

Frahkly, I fihd it very difficult to believe that the sponsors of this

Bill want it either,

But the Bill is before us and, rightfully, you are giving it a thorough
airing. Let us look then at some additional reasons why this Bill is bad
legislation and only appears to be the golden cure for the ills of our en-

vironnent.

Let us assume, for the moment, that all of New Jersey citizens could

afford to pay the higher grocery bills which this bill would cause.
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Let us assume, for the moment; that all of New Jersey's citizens would
save their cans, their bottles and their plastics and at the end of each week

they would bring these tons of containers back to their favorite grocery store.

1f we would not be happy while these used and dirty containers sat in our
hones, how much joy will we share in the knowledge that the food we purchase
cones from the same narketplace which must serve as a storage yard for thou-

sands and thousands of attractions for insects and rodents?

Through years of effort and dedication, New Jersey has developed outstand-
ing standards of sanitation for the marketing of food. Our health codes, I
an sure, rank among the best in the nation. And the nen and women involved
with food distribution in New Jersey score top grades in living up to these

standards.

Can they really be expected to continue under the conditions which would

be imposed by A-22127
I know -- and you know ~- they cannot.

Having, for the nonment, accepted the inﬁossible assunptions that all New
Jersey citizens can‘afford higher grocery bills and all New Jersey citizens
would return these containers to reduce their grocery bills, let us, for the
nonent, try to accept one more inpossible assunption. Let us assume, for the
nonent, that New Jersey's food industry énd its thousands of employees could
continue to deliver the highest quality food at the lowest possible prices
while forced to work in and aroﬁnd an avalanche of used and dirty beverage

containers.
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What else will we have accomplished with this bill?

We will héve singled out the Eevé?age industry as the culprit which caused
al; of our litter problems and all of our solid waste disposal problems. We
will have ignored the‘fact that 59.5 per cent of‘roadsidé 1ifter is paper.

We will have ignored.the fact that less thén 6.7 per cent ofvour Solid waste

results from the containers which will be affected by this bill.

We will have said to the citizens of this state that now, despite all
of the hardships and inconvenience and despite all of the unhealthy conditions
we have caused for you, we are inproving your environment.

Mr. Chaimman, nembers of the Conmittee:

We don't really want to tell such a bold-faced lie, do we?

Let us turn finally to some very important questiohs concerning the

Constitution of this great natioh of ours.

Does that docunent, which is the foundation and strength of our nation,
really permit us to single out the beverage industry and our beverage con-

tainers for such restrictive legislation as is proposed in A-22127
Can we say, in good conscience, that we need not concern ourselves with
the nountains of paper waste and with the mountains of glass and metal and

plastic which package so nmany other products we consune?
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Can we really require a five-cent deposit on a beverage container without
nandating the same deposit for the cans and bottles and plastics which package

our fruits, our yegetables, our detergents and so many other necessities?

And will our Constitution really pernit us to interfere with interstate
cotmnerce by dictating the type or the costs of containers which cross state

lines to enter New Jersey?
I trust you will answer with a resounding 'NO‘!

I can offer only one concluding thought to ny feelings concerning this

Bill.

It is not the worst piece of legislation I have ever reviewed.

There is a nunicipality im this nation which, at this very noment, is
considering an ordinance which would make it a criminal offense to have in one's

possession a non-returnable beverage container.

The governing fathers in that municipality apparently feel that the

innocent beverage container merits the same treatmnent as heroin or a deadly

weapon.

Once again, let ne cornend you for your willingness to review this leg-
islation. Let ne hope that I will be able to comnend you for your decision
to bury it. Thank you very much for the opportunity to present ny views on
it.
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STATELENT GIVEN SEPTEASER 22, 1971, AT THE
PUBLIC_ HEAXING HELD BY TH= NEW_JERSEY ASSEMBLY
COMMITTEE ON AIR AND WATER POLLUTION AKD_PUSLIC
HEALTH, BY MXS. EEJRY J. HERSEY, JR., CHAIRVAN
OF THE COMMUNITY IMPROVEMENT PROJEZCT COMMITTEE, .
THE WOMAN'S CLUB_OF CHATHAM.
APPROVED BY MRS. RICHARD LUM, PRESIDEWNT.

Mr. Chairman, members of the Committee and ladles >

and gentlemen:

I am Mrs, Henéy J. Hersey, speaking for the
Community Improvement Projept Committee 6f The Woman's Club of
Chatham, New Jersey. The group which I represent is in favor
of the enactment of Assembly Bill Number 2212,

All of us, whether we are housewilves, manufactureré
and disbensers of bevérages, managers of stores or super-
markets, or politicians, share in our free society a common
interesﬁ and conce}n for the quallity éf our environment. This
blll provides a step toward our environmental improvement.

In 6ﬁr cdmmunity of 9,500 beoéle, we have watched .
the dedicated efforts of two voluntary organizatlions: the ‘ .
Chatham Environmental Qommittee and}the Passaic River Restoration

Foundation. As successful as these groups have been in focusing
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publlic attention on the need for the collection and recycling
of glass bottles and cans and eyidence that a large part of
River |
‘the cleaned up‘debris from the Passalc/consists of cans and
bottles, it 1s apparent that their dedi;ated'efforts need the
public and‘legislative support which the passage»of this legis-~
lation would provide. It has been estimated tﬁat these local
organizatlons average about 8 to 10 tons monthly on returnable
materials and lelected debris. This, of course,‘is but- a drop
in the bucket for what must be done. We musi have bo@h the
financial incentlive and public-gontrol which this legislation
makes posslble 1f we are tq encourage the re-use‘of beverage
contalners and lessen the "throw-aways."
We congratulate the sponsors of this bill for
recognizipg the need for this legislation.
(l)‘ ;t will helﬁ to lighten the load of our
monunental amount of so0lid wastes now being génerated by our

densly populated state.
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(2) It wili lessen the pressure on our/diminishing
natural réaources‘by encouraging'a palicy of re-use.
(3) Itkwill help to reduce the mounting public
cost of litter élean-up of highways;bparks,\and waterways.
Cans and bottleé/are the main 1hgrédients for creating this
part of our gross hatidﬁal prbduct. It is estimated that
even our state highway clean-up costs over %600;000.00
annﬁélly.
With the passagé of thié;biil, New JerSey wou;d
Join enlightened actioh taken and béing cdnsidéred in bther
states. Oregon haé’récentlf passed similar legislation;
communities and one coﬁnty in Maryland hafe foiioWéd suit;
bills afe now being considered 1h Pennsyl#ania and Michigan.
wb'are not unmindful of the ihconvéniences that
the passage of thls bill will mean for all of us, but the

alternative to its enactment would mean a further degrading of
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our environment.  We are, therefore, ready to assume this
inconvenicnce,

The nationwide public opinion poll conducted by
Opinicn Research Corporation, Princeton, New Jersey,
supporis ithls decielon. 64% of ali Anericans approved a
law ?rohibiting the sale of soft drinks and beer in non-
‘returnatlic or throw-away botﬁles. 26% did not want this
inconveniehce. ‘A Minneapolis sﬁrvey indicates 70%'of its
ciltizens supported a total ban on non-returnables. .

As Edward Cérpenter has‘said in his book;r

"Toward Democracy," only that people can thrive that loves
its land and swears to make 1t beautiful.

Thank you for your attentlon.
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September 21, 1971
hkingoes, N.J.

STATEMENT ON ASSEMBLY BILi, 2212

E.A.Laport, Chairman, EAST AMWELL COWSHhVATION COM&[%P[OM

GLASS BEVARAGE CONTAIMNDL:S

For many years the beverage industry, production and distribution,
prospered very well with returnable bottles. Then phey discovered
that they could make more money sellihg glasé than what was inside
‘the bottles. Because a few lazy people néver'bothered to return
deposit bottles, the entire public has been forced to pay for

the no-return bbttles. The accumulation of waste glass by this
practice has become a national ‘disposal problem, even with token
recycling in some places, Unless one has worked on a recycling

team he cannot aﬁpreciaté the magniﬁude of this waste glaSs problem,
Even so, only about one per cent of bottles are brought for recycling.

Glass refuse lasts forever whether buried or thrown on the land.

BI-METAL BEVERAGE CANS o ’ . o
This is one of the most ébominable items‘yetx énd:éllﬂforbthe
momentary convenience of quick opening. A typical beer can weighs

2 ounces and occupies a space of 26,6 cubic inches. It takes 16,000
to weigh a ton, for whicﬁ the DELIVERED salvage’vaiﬁe is $10. A

ton of bi-metal cans in randon loading is at least 18 cubic yards.
'No one can afford to transport this volume to a salvager for the
present salvage value., Recycling bi-metal cans is obviously
impracticable economically, even with volunteer labor, Furthermore,
to be recycled, the cansvmust not be deformed. The social price

of this type can in the environment is much too high to justify
its existence. There are other acceptable substitutes for the

bi-metal can that are far less objectionable. The ordinary can is

. bad enough the way they are strewn over the landscapes.

e

I urge adoption of A-2212 ‘as written E;Ldnmmvuxﬁ(1~ zithym?L
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Written testimony for:
Assembly Committee on Air and Water Pollution and Public Health

'The Chatham Environment Committee was formed to promote
the conservatioh of our resources and encourage recycling.

We strongly support the bill requiring a deposit on
beverage containers. ' }

The throw-away era must end. This is the most densely
populated state in the country. We must not wait until our
population grows biggér and our solid waste problems are
insurmountable. Let us have this legislation now, while
people still remember what a returnable bottle is - Thanks to
Coca Cola and a limited number of other companies. This is a
good time to start. People are aware and well motivated now.
They have heard how Americans use more than their share of the
earth's resources. They have seen how in towns all over New
Jersey there are groups involved in recycling paper, aluminum
and glass. Wé, as one of these groups, voluntarily put in long,
hard hours collecting other people's discards, trying to demon-
strate to industry and government that we don't want to bury
this stuff in a landfill, we don't want one-way bottles and
cans. People can be re-educated to bring their bottles back,
and this legislation is the first necessary step.

Will returnable bottles cost more to manufacture?
Probably, but they are used an average of 14 times. In our
town of almost 10,000 people, we discard at least 600 tons of
glass a year. Reusing glass will have an immediate impact
by reducing the weight and volume of our trash.

Isn't recycling as good as returning? No. Even if
we collected all of it, the old glass is only 30% of the new
glass bottle. We can't argue that the glass factories are
using up all the sand, silica is an abundant resource - but
what can we do with the rest of the old glass? They've tried,.
but haven't found a good market for it. Finally, why should
we expend valuable power to recycle bottles when we can easily
reuse them?
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Industry, through advertising and public relations, has
created a throw-away culture 1n this country - from paper
cups in the bathroom to f01l pans in the kitchen. We have
been told that it's cleaner, Healthier, more convenient, to
have plastic bags, multiple packaging, and no‘feturn bottles.
We often hear that Pepsi Cola couldn'’ t get people to brlng
bottles back even with a 25¢ dep051t@ Why° Because everything
else was in a no deposit - no return container and people
had lost the habit. Industry has given us free containers,
and we buy them, but we forget that we have to pay the
garbage man to carry it away, and we just now have awakened
to the fact that there is no good place for him to take it.
‘We CAN returh it. Advertising and the media have a powerful
influence, and can be used to reshape our thinking and change
our habits before we are buried in the refuse of a convenience-
oriented culture. This will not happen by itself. Legislation
is needed now.
Respectfully submitted, Mrs. Genevieve Minton, Pres.,

Chatham Environment Committee
57 Chandler Rd. Chatham, N.J.
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September 21, 1971

STATEMENT OF JEAN F. JUDGE, DIRECTOR OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS, THE
GRAND UNION COMPANY FOR THE HEARING OF THE NEW JERSEY ASSEMBLY
COMMITTEE ON AIR & WATER POLLUTION, SEPTEMBER 22, 1971. . -

As a person long involved in working with consumers as a consumer

educator and for the past year serving as a consumer voice at the: -
management level of a supermarket chain, the Grand ‘Union Company, ‘

I am well aware of, and sensitive to, the environmental concerns .

of many consumers. As an environmentally concerned citizen myself,

I believe that meaningful steps need to be taken to clean up our

environment. I 'believe this is the goal of enlightened, environ-

mentalists consumers, industry leaders and legislators. To achieve .
it and to guard against future pollution, I feel we need to develop
the kind of legislation, policies and programs that will not only
clean up our present pollution problems but: also ensure agalnst
future pollution.

I truly believe it is not in the consumer interest to undertake,
no matter how well intended, simple approaches to complex problems
because I believe this merely delays the kind of intelligent, .
meaningful commitment that must be made by all of us if we are
really going to lick pollution. It is because of this genuine
concern that I would like to speak against Assembly Bill A-2212.
Assuming that it is both enacted and enforced by government, its
provisions adhered to by business. and the ‘intent of the law
respected and honored by consumers, a ban on the sale of non-return-
able bottles merely relocates the pollution problem from the home
or the highways to the retail market; it does not solve the problem. -
"Further, the results of a ban such as the one proposed creates the
additional environmental problem of store level sanltary and health
hazards caused by accumulated unclean containers.’
From a consumer point of view, the‘1mmed;ate effect of a ban-on
non-returnables could be increased prices for beverages including -
milk because of the substantial cost of hahdling the returnable
containers at store level. A recent study in Washington, D.C.
indicated that the increased cost caused by such a ban would fall -
most heavily on those least able to bear it, i.e. low income
consumers. These consumers normally do not have access to ready
transportation to return containers and would be apt therefore not
- to collect the bounty on them. Parenthetically, the same low income
citizens do not usually have in-home space to store returnables
without adding an additional sanitary problem to those with which
they must already contend.
>
As a company, Grand Union is attempting to take and support those
steps that will truly contribute to an improved enviromment. 1In
attempting to do this, two problems complicate the effort. The
first of these is attempting to determine what the valid facts .
are on which to base decisions regarding the many ecological
problems confronting us.
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The second complication deterring true progress results from the
diversion of corporate resources to comply with a proliferation of
different municipal, state and federal regulations which, although
well intentioned, are not, in many cases, making any appreciable
impact on the real pollution problem- solid waste disposal. None:
the less, we must comply with these regulations at considerable
cost. ‘

I would therefore respectfully urge that Assembly Bill A-2212 not
be enacted and that responsible New Jersey government, business
and concerned consumers work together in support of those actions
that will truly result in the improvement of our solid waste
collection and disposal systems. I believe. we would all agree
this is the only long term solution that will clean up our environ-
ment and maintain its quality.

v

Thank you.

~ ’

Jean J. Judge
Director of Consumer Affairs
The Grand Union Company
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Re Public Hearing at Trenton before Air & Water Polution etc.
Committee comsidering Ass. Bill # 2212,

I am Nelson Becci president of the N. J. Package Stores Associ-
atdon with offices at 24 Commerce St. Newark, N. J. i appear on
behalf of the package store licensees to voicé_opposition,to Assembly
Bill 2212, We encourage any plan or poiicy which will, in fact,
minimizé the ehvironmental problems facing the state and the nation
if the benefits of\such a plan will not create greater problems than
it will cure. We protest the adoption of any law which may result

in greater rather than lesser hardships to the consumer, labor,

manufacturers, distributors and retailers.

The'history'of the public's beverage purchasing habits show consumers
heedless of costs when buying'soft drinks or other beverages, Sdft
drinkghre bought more often by pre-teen and teenagers and they buy
the more costly metal, plastic or glass disposable or throwaysrather
than the returnable container which is readily available and less
expensive, It is also a matter of record that many consumers will

buy containers with depoéit on bottles and still treat these as
throw-a-ways. | \

The evolution of the glass and metal containers is interesting for it
gives credibiliégrmy comments., When throw-a-way bottles first came
on the scene the cost to tle consﬁmer was much higher than the cost
for the same beverages in deposit bottles, yet théée hon-returnables
soon outsodd the deposif.bottlés° When thése non-returnables added
the easy-to-open screw top the‘great majority of the consuming public
readily accepted the additional cost and abandoned its predecessor,

Practically the same trend followed the metal container, Upon the

introduction of the can into the beverage business its costs to the

(more) - 515



P2 Re A 2212, Hearing;

-

consumer was much higher than thevéoéf of’éontainers bearing deposits
and yet its sales soon outdistahced’depoéit’botfle saies. When thié .
same metal container was later equipped with the easy-to-open flip-
top the great majority willingiy paid»the higher costs forrthis
convenience, This brief hisfory is related for the purpose of showing

that frugality is not an American trait and the added charge suggested

in A 2212 will not encourage the purchaser to return the containers.

A copy of Assembly Bill 2212, which I have in my pbssession, does
not describe its goal but if its purpose is to discourage littering
its éucéess is highly questionable. Most, if not all, such litter
is the result of the thirsty car rider who likes to keep his car
clean but does'nt care much about the streets or highways upon

whiph he drives unless these are in his immediate neighborhood,

The N, J, Package Stores‘Aséociation supports most of the testimony
presented by Container and Beverage Manufacturers and by some others
who have spoken against A 2212. We opposerthis“bill on sadditional
considerations. Many packagé store owners, for whom I speak,will

be forced to lease additional warehousing space, if such is available
in his immediate area, and they will be forced to pay higher insur-
ance rates because of the greater hazzards involved in handling
broken bottles or mutilatéd metal confainers° In addition this bill
plaées an added buﬁden upon certain rétail outlets who because of
their highly traffich@dlocation will be forced to store and pay out
deposit monies on containers they never sold, a highly unreasonable

situation,

Returned containers can be, and usually are, health hazzards., Few

returns are sterilized and those picked ofﬁa?f the Poad by young-
' . MNeock anrR
sters for the collection of deposits cannvthp:pee%ed tombe . starilized,

(more)v: 216
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P. 3 Re A 2212 Hearing

It 'is a matter of record that roaches, bugs etc,, find a haven to

multiply and fhrive on the residue present in the returned containers.

Growlers and paper containers of draft beer, which were permissable
sales items during all the hours taverns were open prior to the passage
of Senate bill ¥2108 (the Hours of sales beer bill) , were never
considered an environmental problem because the growler Was the

beer buyer's repeated companion on his trips to the pub, while the
paper container is readily disposable. With the passage of S 2108

the convenience of the metal or glass container encouraged almost

a complete switch from the draft to the cahned oisbottled beer.'These'
cans and bottles, now legally 301d’on Sunday when traffic is heaviést,

contribute greatly to the very matier under consideration here today.

For all of the aforementioned conclusions the N.J., Package Stores

Association urges this committee and all legislators to withdraw their

//C/// /7 / ﬁe@ét* é&(&f’[zﬂkz/; |

/// ,/zvzx??ygc v/£4;Q7‘//C/d

support for A 2212 in its present form,
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CONSUMERS LEAGUE OF NEW ]ERSEY

FOUNDED IN 1900 : AFFILIATED WITH NATIONAL CONSUMERS LEAGUE

20 CHURCH STREET. MONTCLAIR, N. J. 07042 .« TELEPHQNE 744-6449

Position paper of the CONGUMLRS L:aGUE OF NEW J4RSLY ON Assembly Bill 2212

Just one year ago the CONJSUMERS LLaGU™ OF NEW.JZR3:EY sponsored
a forum entitled"Consumer and Etnvironmental Education for Action."
Representatives from throughout the State were invited to hear about
and to see concrete demonstrations of the ways in which they, as
consumers, could act to reverse the environmental decline of this State.
Since that time we have met with and provided speakers for scores of
organizations anxious to act on this problem. We believe that compre=
hensive, concrete action to r-store and to protect our environment are
both long overdue and urgently needed, ‘

Because of our concern for environmentdl quality we strongly
oppose issembly Bill 2212, We feel that the bill under consideration
not only fails to get at the source of the problem, but also holds little
promise of reducing litter and solid waste garbage, The language of
the bill is so lacking in clurity, and a plan of realistic implementation
8o absent that one can not tell the following:

1. how consumers are to diStinguish between empty containrcrs
from juices and those of other products similurly packaged
i.e, fruit juice & canned soups, vegetables, fruits
( The question is whetiisr the consumer would be expected

to save the 1lid and label as well as the container,)

2. Whether all stores will accept 2ll containers for refund of
deposit or must items be returned to the store from which
they were purchased and how is one to remember this

3+« how stores accepting such a Variety of containers, some for
refill and some for recycling will maintain clean, healthful,
pest-free collection areas -

4., how consumers can avoid long lines while a variety of
containers is checked for return and deposit

It would seem that A2212 would simply cause a price increase
of at least .05 on every beverage with no promise that more containers
would be refilled or recycled. The indiscriminate inclusion of all
beverage containers creates confusion and means that the more affluent
consunmers may simply regard his deposit as a price increase and bear it
while he disposes of the container in his usual waye. It means that
the poor , the elderly,and those in small living quarters,who have no
room for a variety of collection bins that can be emptied only upon a trip
to the market, will either collect and contribute to health and safety
hazards or lose their deposit as they dispose of their containers,

We also feel that A2212 ignores too many consumer facts:

Pirst, an industry that is continually and increasingly packaging
items in large, duplicate, wasteful, non-reusable containers
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" Second, extensive and costly advertising campaigns to promote
markets in so=called convenience food products in individual
portions and disposable containers as well as advertising
campaigns to promote new as well as old beverages in an ever-
changing arrzy of sizes and containers

Third, supermarkets that contribute to sclid waste problems by

the use of plastic bags and wrappers, by the increasing pre-wrapping
of things like a single head of cabbage, the use of double meat

trays, and inefficient and discouraging deposit-return systems

Fourth, a contziner deposit, when applied to coutainers not
eaeily identified, collected, stored or returned does little to
actually get contoiners back to the stores and deposit monies
thus coll:cted, by the stores, have no way of being used for

" reclaiming, collecting, cleaning up litter and public education

We commend the sincere motivation and environmental concern of
the sponsors of ,this bill. However, the present form of this bill would
‘seem to confusgénd turn people away. We therefore recom end the
form=tion of a committee to hold hearings and to devise a step—by%tep
plan for attacking both the causes and effects of litter and solid waste.
To be practical, such a plan should include stages of garbage collection
and recalmatiod until we have operating regional mass reclamation plants,
. To be truly meaningful it must deal with more than collection and re-
cycling and should include an examination of practices of consumers,
retailers, processors, institutions, and goverment.
(For example: the growing use of all-disposable hospitel items with
no evidence that many of these are more economical or more
sanitary; the promotion of individually packaged, dispbable
meals for schools, institutions etc; denying consumers a choice
of returnzble bottles; etc.)

Wie recognize thut etfforts to protect the environment will cause
wome lunconvenierice and coct to everyone. We believe thet an effzsctive,
. proctical ono eguituble plzn, designed to gein popular suprort, can be
achieved if fThose of us expres.ing concern are forced to racosnize our
com .on gtake in the guality of life.

Regpectfully gubmitted,

\7 ilc%&; 2$Z;/ -
A K M/;(

re. He nicki Stochaj, Prexident
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A. 2212, Scptembervzz, 1671 -

STATRIIENT RY: Blla F. Filippone, “rﬁsldont ,
: Bnvironmental Rescarch Associates, Tnc. - :
25 Holmesbrook Road C -
Basking Ridge, New Jorsey - 792" .

T an Ella Filippone, president of Environmental Research Associates,
Inc., a member of the American Economic Association and also of the
Royal Econouic Society of London. '

We are deeply concerned with the quality of life and the changes being
brought about by technology and progress. " However, we feel that ‘
any State action whieh is taken in the environmental senue should taXke
sevaral factors in mind. , -

A, 2212 in thcory sounds like a good idea; howevef, it does present
extenuating problems, which possibly a broader outlook wnhuld alleviate.

First of all, the banning of throw-away bottles and cans is a megative
measure. The alternative to throw-aways would be deposit ccnta.nnrs,
which must be stored both by the distributor and the consumer. ' Thus,
enters the safety factor --- bottles stand1ng around have a tendency
to get broken.

Second, the implementation of this action would for all extent and
" purposes be more costly than the cost of disposing of bottles and : s
cans, since recyeling eoula be made more ‘afficient by a more co- -
o*dlnated offort.

Third, the elinination of throw-aways presents an economic burden on a

portion of the residents of New Jersey. It would be much better if through
State initiation, recycling were developed into a part of our pconomy ' .
~=--not to be done on a voluntary basis, but as part of the routlne of

eeryday disposal and resource supply.

rourth, the legislature should >resant incent*ve legislation to ine
dustry for research geared at changlng our packaging methods so that
we take out of the refuse collections those items whicéh cannot be
recycled. _ , D

The ahilosoﬁhy of envxronmontal qua11ty should bz forward moving and
not backward. It should direct itself to broader, long term concepts
and not this piecemeal approach. ZEnvironmental quality must consider
how it interrclates with other aspects of our economy and then evaluato
its own merits. I belicve in this instance, the benefits would not
inprove the situation substantially, since throw-aways constitute only ' *
a small percentage of our refuse mix and since w2 would be effecting

an existing industry and hampering the potential growth of another.

In addition, if we wore directing this effort toward a commodity, which
could not be recused, I think A. 2212, would have great value, but in
the case of bottles and cans, this is not so.

" Instead of banning throw-aways, this bill shouId be completely revised
so that it educates people toward the better use of these items and
institutes recycling on a wider basis. Thank you.
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Testimony on A-2212, a bill to ban.non-returnable beverage containers.
Hearings held September 22, 1971, before the New Jersey Assembly
Committee on Air and Water Pollution

I am Muriel Gill, New Jersey State Division, American Association of
University Women, Community Chairman, and a member of the State Board. Our
Association has 51 branches and a membership of over 7000 in our State.

Our legislative program for 1971-1972 states that "in time of rapid
change, affecting ocommunity living, we support measures to recycle wastese"

Last year Community Chairmen in branches throughout the state participated
in a program to promote collections of bottles, cans and paper to reduce the
volume of our physical wastes and to reuse them. Representatives from many
branches brought community leaders and municipal officials to long Branch, New
Jersey, to consult about collection programs and returned to their communities
to implement these programs. As a result of these activities, the New Jersey
Division was asked to make a presentation at the International Federation of
Women's Club Triennial meeting in Philadelphia in August. We have established
an informal environmental clearinghouse with women throughout the world through
our membership in the International Federation of University Women. .

This year we are going to issue a questionnaire regardihg the effectiveness
of local collection programs and the expansion of the recycling industry, as a
result of which we hope to improve programs in areas where our branches are most
active.

As individuals many of our members have been active in promoting the idea of
reuse and recycling, of which the bill under consideration today is an example.-
During the months since this bill was introduced, many new corcepts and
priorities have been developed which lead us to question whether this bill is
now suitable for New Jersey with its high population density and whether it
should not now be amended to be made more practical as to time and more applicable
as to our needs and abilities.

We wish to make you aware of our strong interest in the reuse of our

resources and the protection of the environment and of our desire to support
- programs which will carry out this goal.
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STATEMENT IN SUPPORT COF ASSEMSLY BILL #2212

Submitted on September 22, 1971 by Teri Proviaaiero for the
Hightstown-East Windsor Ecoloqy Coalition

I am Teri Provissiero, A resident and home owner of East Windsor,
New Jersey, | am pleased to have the opportunity to speak before
the Committee as a representative of the Hightstown-East Windsor
Ecology Coalition, .

There are numerous reasons why our organization supports this bfl!
#2212, nevertheless, I would like to present .some of them to you.

The contribution that non-returnable containers make to litter all
over this country is nothing that can be overlooked. The Bureau

of Solid Waste and Management in The Role of Packaging in Solid

Waste 1966-1976 said. "Quantitive and oualltative changes In
packaging materials consumption in the 1966-1976 period will fntensify
the litter problem primarily by oroviding greater quantities of
non-returnable beverage containers,:

In Oregon where people buy one million throw away beer and soft
drink containers per day, it has been noted that most of them wind
up as litter, A citizens group, People's Lobby Against Non-Return-
ables conducted a survey picking up litter, In two hours they
picked up 16,850 beer and soft drink throw away contafiners, this
may seem an impressive figure but it only represents twenty four
minutes worth of daily consumption in that st,te. The survey was
conducted under controlled conditions* The results were as follows,

54% of the litter was cans, soft drink and beer containers
outnumbered all others four to ones
174 was class, throw away bottles outnumbered deposit or
returnables five to one
- . 28% was paper, a significant porcontaqe of that was beer and
" 8oft drink contaliner rackaging

Thies, the survey concluded that throw away containers have a 21% -

greater chance of becoming 'i‘ter than deposit or returnable contain-
ers, Although one way hottiss and cans account for S55% of the sales
of soft drinks and beer in Or .inor, they account for 96% of the

container titter.

#Cach of the 141 participants aatnering litter was instructed to
pick up all paper, qlass an7 cans in an assigned area and bring
ft to an assiqned area where hottiac were counted by hand and
volume was established using calit,rated containers., An independent
observer monitored: the counting,
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Keep America Beautiful, Inc., cited that in 1968 nearly 28 million
dollars was spent on the collection of litter from prémary highways
in this nation, They did studies on Indfiana's share of that burden
and reported that it was $5,600,000 worth. 1In addition, the Dept,
of Natural Resources of the State of Indiana profjected on a pop-
ulation basis that Indiana's yearly usage of disnosable cans is
1,130,000,000 and disposable bottles 629,000,000,

A Natfonal Study of Roadside Litter* took randon samples of approx-
Tmately ten hlghway segments, each two tenths of a mile long. They
ifncluded some from twenty-nine states, [t was estimated that
aporoximately one cubfc yard of Iitter was accumulated per month

for each mile of interstate primary highway.®##* The statistics showed
that 32€ of the Iftter collected consisted of cans, glass bottles

and jars. The estimated cost for bott!es and cans(at $5,600,000;

per year for the total collection of litter) clean up is $1,792,000#%+
per year, The State of Indiana alone was estimated spending in

excess of $1,000,000 par year for collection of bottles and cans.

In a letter from the Indiana State Highway Commissfon, Mr, Martin
L. Hayes stated that an "average® of 3750,000 was spent by the
Indiana Highway Commission per year to collect and dispose of
tftter along our state highways, Since bottles and cans comprise
32€ of the total collection, the burden to taxpayers would be in
excess of 1,800,000 per year, :

Glass and metal packaging present two of the worst disposal problems,
particularly when incinerators are used, A typical sftuation where
one ton of oackaging material is incinerated a residue of 705 |Ibs,
remains, of this amount 637 Ibs, or 90% comes from glass and metal
contafners,

The Crusade for a €leaner Environment tells us that it costs 1.5 :
billion dollars per year to get rid of cans, non-returnable bottles
and plastic containers,

The Bureau of Mines tells us that at the present rate we are using
aluminum, our supoly will run out in |38 years, My great grandchiidren
may hold as their most nrecious and valuable possession, an all
alzmlnun beer or soda cam. This possibility strikes a frightening
note,

#Prepared by Ragaarch Triangle [nstitute of N, Carolina sponsored

by Keep America Beautiful, Inc., Research Board develooed specicications
##in the 729 participating states for the calendar period rapreganted

by the pickups

###Thi{g fiqur= is based on a straight adivision of the nationail totai

of Iltter coilection and qualifies as a4 valid estimate only,

(?)
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Last year alone this country spent 3500 OOO 000 to clean up Iitter,
Mr, David D, Dominick, Assistant Administrator of the Federal '
tnvironmental 5rotect|on Agency tells us that we produce more than
R. 3 b1TTTon tons of solld waste a year and it Increases at an
annual rate of four fo six per cent,

Contafner Manufacturers claim their products contfibu}e a refatively
smal | percentage of solid waste to our environment, he percentage

is about 22%, nevertheless, because glass and metal are non-biodegrad-
able they contribute 80% of our permanent |itter,

Asfde from the unsightleness of litter along our roadways, the costs
of disposing of it, the added burden the the taxpayers and the

added pollution it contributes we find still other problema it
causes,.. .

Farmers in Oregon testified in support of the States ban on non-
re{grnables ihey sald that J1tter along the roadsides cost thém
the Ilves of many livestock, The animals would eat pleces of
broken glass and metal which would become |odged in their cheot

causing severe pain and finally killing them,

New Jersey I8 no exception, I spoke to a local farmet and he con-
¥irmed what Oregon Tarmers said. He also added that he has had to
throw out loads of feed because glass and metal particles had become
ground fn with i{t, The blades on his machine have been torn up by
glass and metal particles running thtough. He concluded that there
was about the roadside other forms of |{itter, nevertheless, soft
drink and beer containers predominated,

Small children suffer from cuts and bruises caused by broken glass
and metal, 1've seen children put thelr Tingers and tongues info
the tops of flip=-top cans and come out with gashes, c

It might be cited by some who oppnose this bill that in 1953 the
State of Vermont passed a bill banning one-way bottles which was
unsuyccessful, In fact after four years the bilil was deemed ®"not
effettive® A further look into this bill would show why it inevit-
ably fatiled. '

I) It banned only "malt alcholic heverage containers,®

2) Public awareness of ecological problems in 1953 was relatively
low, .

3) Socfal problems of 1953 could not compare to the problems
we have in 1971, ’

4) The Malt Alchélic beverage companies started Dackaginq their
products in cans,

o (3)
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I'd like to add here, that it was due to fncreased pubifc awareness
the State of Oregon was able to pass fts ban on non-returnables,

An overwhelming mauority of states have such bills pending as our
Assembly Bill #8812, Would this be possible if a sense of public
awareness and urgency were not prevelant? People are ecology minded
today out of necessity,

Container manufacturers would have, we the consumer, bring our
containers to redemption or recycling centers where they would be
melted down {nto new one-ways. They cite surveys that show return-
ables wind up as litter too. The price of everything has increased
greatly today, Perhaps ff there were a proportionate Increase in

the deposit of containers peoole would be more likely to return their
containers,

Perhaps fts time for industry to begin sharing some of the burden,
to share a social obligation. The consumer is isYover taxed® enough
already, natural resources are "over taxed®™ and our minds are

being "over taxed®™ with concern about this mass of garbage we're
being butéedin day by day,

Recycling is not the answer. In my community a group of concerned
citizens supported five recycling days. People were asked to bring
glass, metal and paper items to a specific point where they in turn
would go to outiets that would recycle them, Many peoplie did not
participate feeling that such programs were unrealistic, that uniess
there were Natfonal or State wide bans on non-returnables it would
be purely {dealistic to support recycling days,

In sumnation I'd Ifke to auote something President Nixon said in
1970. "The 1970's absolutely must be the years when America pays
fts debt to....our living environment, It 1s literally now or never,®

As a group of concerned, conscientious citizens we fee| that the
passage of this bfll is a major step in paying that debt,

(4)
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September 16, 1971

Assemblyman Kenneth Wilson _
Chairman of Committee on Air*Water Pollution*Public Health
State House |

Trenton, N.J.

Dear Assemblyman Wilson:

Enclosed YOu will find a'copy of a statement from our
Clean Air Group in Hudson County. I would have been happy to
have delivered it in person, however, the public hearing on
this bill was slated the same day our organization was hav1ng |
a very important conference in Jersey City. ‘

Our organization held a special meeting to discuss
this bill with our membership and executive board. Each and
every person present.hailed this bill as one of the most
important pieces of legislature to come out of Trenton in
a very long time. We commend the sponsors and hépe your
Committee will support this bill with as much vigor as we do
in Hudson County. _ , \‘ |

Sometimes we fall into ruts and become talkers about
what we are going to do to clean up old mother earth. We have
no time for talkers, these Assemblymen who sponsored this
excellent bill are doers. You know, if we don't do something
soon we will all have to travel to the moon to get away from
our own wastes that are burying us alive, here on the earth.

I could write a book on Hudson County's Solid Waste
Problems, not so much about her own waste problem but concern-
ing the keg of imported garbage we are sitting on in the
Meadowlands, that threatens to blow us up any day now. We
almost lost part of Hudson County last year when P.J.P. Dump
burned for three whole weeks, polluting the air of three
ceunties, plus Manhattan. So you see we know, first hand,
that we need to take some long range steps immediately to help
reduce sdme of the wastes brought into Hudson. Banning the
non-returnable can, bottle, etc., will help. This is a wonderful
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first step to take to reduce some of;these wastes.

Please suppbrt this bill and tell your fellow committee
members that we in Hudson need their help_ We need it
desperately. ‘

~ Hope all goes well on Wednesday. Let's hope for a
victory for the‘people who are working 24 hours a day to clean

up this environment.
Very truly yours,

Mrs. Warren C. Zapp L
President Hudson County Citizens for Clean Air

BOARD MEMBERS

Dr. Ethel Lawner, Md,

Mr. Theodore Conrad, Engineer

Mr. James Drago, Planner

Mrs. Walter Westling, College Co*ordinate
Dr. Jean Lane, J.C. State College Professor
Mr. Carl Feltz, Architect »

Raymond Bauer, Sanitary Engineer

Mrs. Barbara Eisler, N.J.C.C.A.

Mrs. Rymond Bauer

Mrs. Lois Kosynski, Women's Club Co~ord.
Miss Barbara Cambell, Cit. for Clean Water Co-ord.
Mr. Warren Zapp, Industrial Engineer

Mr. Floyd Schumann, Environmentalist

All the aobe join me in our support of this bill, plus our
entire membership'in‘all twelve municipalities in Hudson County.
WE WANT ASSEMBLY>BILL #2212 PASSED, TODAY,
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STATEMENT FROM HUDSON COUNTY CITIZENS FOR CLEAN AIR
IN SUPPORT. OF ASSEMBLY BILL, NO.- 2212

The executive board and the entire membership of -
Hudson County Citizens for Clean Air, with members in each
- municipality in Hudson County vigorously support Assembly
Bill # 2212. '

We, in Hudson County, live in the middle of the
garbage district in New Jersey. I suppose you all have heard
of garment districts, business districts but maybe this is the
first time you have heard of a garbage district. kearny,
Secaucus, and Jersey City have‘bécome the garbageVCan of the
east. Each day thousands of tons of imported garbage is dumped
on our meadowlands, fouling up the air, water and dé*spbiling |
our open space land. Noise pollution, smell pollution,‘rat
pollution, eye pollution, you name it, and you can be -sure
we have it as a result o6f this keg.of garbage ;:Essex,,Bergen,“
N. Y. State, to name just a few. Much of this garbage is
made up of glass bottles, rotted cansﬂ‘plastic_éontaiﬁérs
all dumped onto our land because the manufacturer's of these
same products has refused toiﬁush,the returnable.qqntainer
but has, with his tongue in his cheek, pushed the nonmreturnable
demon instead, foolishly thinking‘that.the S0 Calledv“people of
America" are too lazy to bring their returnables back to the
corner store. This is nonsenselll!  Qur organization used
some housewives to take a small independent poll in a few
centrally located supermarkets in Hudson County just to see
how the women of our area felt about the returnable container
vs. the non-returnable container. The question asked was: If
you had your choice of the non-returnable container of your
favorite beverage or the returnable container of your favorite
beverage, which would yield a refund upon its return to the
store, which one would you be willing to buy? Result showed
15% had no preference, 10% declared they preferred the non-
returnable container, 75% stated they would much rather
purchase the returnable, deposit yielding, container. Comments

were many but the best were "We save the cardboard containers
228
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they come in and since we have to go back to the store for more
anyway, why not Jjust bring them along with us. The empty
container is no trouble to lug back, especially when we know

we are doing our small part to help the environment". "We

have this family project, our kids bring all the empty, deposit
bottles back to the store and can keep thé money for a special
project. It beats lugging those bottles to the recycling
center, way on the other side of town. They can do this on
their own without my (their mother's help)." (These were

just a few of the many comments we received, but they show that
American women are not that very lazy breed of individuals

that the bottle and can manufacturer's cater to with their
products. These women stand up for what they believe in and
would, by an actual head count, prefer the returnable container.
In other words they would rather Fight for the environment

Than Switch to the throw-away container. Now you know how

they feel, the burden to get this law passed falls on you the
legislator, or representative in Trenton.

Recycling is no long-range answer to our solid waste
problem. What we are looking for is a permanent answer to this
emergency problem. We, in Hudson County; feel the solid waste
problem is an emergency that will not éo away if we close our
'eyes, you see our nose always reminds us the garbage is near-by.
There is only one solution to this problem and that is why
this bill #2212 was introduced. We must make up our mind
here and now we have to stop talking about steps we are going
to take to clean up the environment, we must start doing. Today
is the day for doers to come forward and be heard. The talkers
will always be with us, we cannot allow them to take ogver, we
must act today to do everything in our powér to see that this
bill is passed quickly.

This bill bans these "non-returnable demons", that go
right on polluting our air and water and messing up our incinerators
which usually have a hard time digesting thesé demons. This
is the only long term solution to the problem. If we don't
ban the returnable can, we will be going around in circles
coming out without any solution. No short term solutions such
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as recycling can help to save us now. We must reduce our
volumn of wastes. This bill will do just that. We must pass
it. ' ’ ’

The children could not be with us today,'they are in
school working at becoming wise adults. We have a responsibility
to them...they are our future generation. We must make this
earth a cleaner place for them to live. Let's start by passing
this bill. Remember, if you are not part of the solution
you are part of the problem:. Let's get one part of the solid
waste problem corrected by the passage of this bill, then we

can go on to other solutions. May we count on your support????
Mrs. Warren Zapp., President

Plus all the Board Members who signed the letter enclosed and

the entire Citizens for Clean Air MemberShip@

230




>
T

STATEMENT OF ROBERT P, SLOCUM, EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR,

METROPOLITAN REGIONAL COUNCIL, 155 E. 71st STREET

NEW YORK, N.Y,, AT THE HEARINGS OF THE

NEW JERSEY ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE ON AIR AND WATER POLLUTION

AND PUBLIC HEALTH, SEPT, 22, 1971

STATE HOUSE, TRENTON, NEW JERSEY.

The Metropolitan Regional Council, representing local
and county government and its elected leadership in the New York,
New Jersey and Connecticut metropolitan area, is vitally concerned
with the growingcrisis in solid waste generation and its effects
on the natural environment. The primary aim of the Metropolitan
Regional Council is to foster cooperation and communication among

“agencies and governmental units in the metropolitan area. 1In

addition to seeking solutions to problems which transcend the

many jurisdictional boundaries, a major part of our efforts involves
making known the feelings of our membership in regard to any
proposed innovative legislation at either the Municipal, State, or
Federal levels,

It is within this frame of reference that I am appearing
before you, to discuss the problem of current packaging’ procedures
and its impact on the City's solid waste management.system.

In 1968, the Metropolitan Regional Council co-sponsored
the publication of the first comprehensive study of Waste Manage-
ment in the New York-New Jersey metropolitan region. As such,
our interests are based not only on the merits of the proposed -
legislation but also on their implications for the metropolitan
area as a whole,

Accordingly, it seems proper that a brief summary of
the solid waste aspects of that report is now in order.

The most significant factors affecting the magnitude
and characteristics of generated solid wastes probably have been
changes in packaging practices and in household heating fuels,
Packaging changes have increased significantly the amount of
paper and paper products, have decreased food wastes, and have
introduced plastic as an important component, Noncombustible
solid wastes have increased significantly as a result of the
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widespread use of non-returnable bottles and cans. On the
other hand, the amount of household ashes has diminished as
a result of the increasing use of gas, oil, and to a lesser
extent, electric power for home heating.

A report by the National Academy of Sciences-National
Research Council indicates that per capita generation of wastes
grew from about 2,75 pounds per day in 1920 to about 4.5 pounds
per day in 1965, and anticipates a future increase by some
2 percent annually. Nationwide, gross solid waste production
is believed to be increasing at about 4 percent per year.
Records from New York City's Department of Sanitation indicate
that gross solid wastes from households in its service area
have increased at an average rate of slightly over 2.5 percent
per year since 1960.

Paper is the largest component of residential, com-
mercial and retail solid wastes., Studies at Purdue University
in the early 1960's showed that average municipal solid wastes
were 42 percent paper by weight., This percentage has increased
since the time of that study and is currently estimated to be
between 45 percent and 55 percent., In recent years, disposable
paper clothing and disposable bed linens have been introduced.
Future per capita paper consumption may be significantly in-
creased by further development of d1Sposab1e clothing, linens
diapers and other items.

Disposable containers for liquids and foods have
virtually eliminated the returnable, reusable bottles. Perhaps,
the first major shift was from milk bottles to coated paper
cartons. The steel, aluminum, glass, paper and plastics in-
dustries are all'currently competing for the disposable container
market. The "mix'" of container types which develops will affect
the quantity and characteristics of solid wastes and the problems
of the disposal. For example, aluminum and plastics are lighter
in weight than the other materials and are virtually nondegradable.
Aluminum may be incinerated at high temperatures, but this
results in gaseous wastes which could lower air quality. Plastics
generally have very high heat values and may cause gaseous waste
problems if they are incinerated. Glass is heavy, will melt
but seldom burn at normal incineration temperatures and is non-
degradable in landfills. A paper container may be plastic-
lined and/ or have various kinds of coating and sizings; these
affect its biodegradability and 1ncrease its heat value
if 1ncinerated

"
T
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- These are examples of potential changes in solid waste
quantities and characteristics which may result from develop-
ments that can be foreseen or that are currently known and
underway. But new developments are likely to take place by
the year 2000, These may profoundly affect solid waste gene-
ration coefficients. The development of containers which can
be used by the consumer would have such an effect. The classic
example of this is ... . the ice cream cone. Physical changes
in the structure of urban communities could result in purchasing
and delivery systems which would reduce packaging needs,

Many sets of assumptions could be made about the factors
which will affect solid waste generation in the future; each

- set would result in a generation coefficient representing both

quantity and characteristics per unit. Obviously, all possible
sets could not be analyzed. Since the main objective of the
1968 study was to develop a procedure, and since this objective
could only be achieved without analyzing all possibilities,
only two coefficients of '"mixed" solid waste generation were
selected for analysis. These represent two possible, but
significantly different, "waste generation conditions".

Generation Condition X assumes that present trend
of increase in solid waste generation per capita will continue, -
so by the year 2000 per capita generation will have increased
by 100 percent. In contrast, Generation Condition Y assumes
that policies, regulations and/or incentives will be established
so that the per capita generation of solid wastes in the year
2000 will be the same as at present.

For the study year of 1965, residential solid wastes
generated in the 31 county metropolitan area amounted to
10,765,000 tons per year.

Under Generation Condition X, assuming a projected
regional growth to 30,000,000 inhabitants, the total 31 county
metropolitan region estimates for residential solid waste
generation for the year 2000 will reach 34,695,000 tons.

Condition Y, which would establish new policies and new incentives
to relieve per capita waste generation, would result in a 50%
reduction of these figures, under the same population for that
time period.

The quantitative importance of this data is by defini-

tion an indication of what can be expected if we do not take
effective action and seek new policies to counteract this trend.
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'For too long consumer expedience has been valued and cherished

at the expense of our natural environment and municipal well- -
being. Marketing technology and consumer buying habits will

not change unless governmental agenéies are willing to pro-

vide the incentives for change.

It is for these reasons,'that‘the Metropolitan
Regional Council supports New Jersey Assembly Bill No.2212
which requires that beverages be sold in returnable containers -
carrying a minimum deposit of 5 cents. The solid waste disposal’
problem can best be solved by applying this recycling concept,
rather than by continuing traditional disposal methods which
are rapidly becoming inefficient, expensive and environmentally
harmful to many of our urban and suburban communities.

Because of the difficulties that result from changing
industrial and marketing practices it is desirable that consi-
derations should be given to induce firms to go into the re-
cycling business - perhaps in the form pf tax incentives. Change-
overs in packaging machinery require great outlays of capital.

We probably shoﬁld look to the Federal government,
and also to State governments, to provide tax incentives for

- the packaging industry which is located throughout the nation, »

so they would be more willing to make the needed expenditures,

This statement was prepared on recycled paper.

234



September 16, 1971

STATEMETNT

Protection of the envirbnment and conservation-of natural
fesources require that measures be taken to reduce and
eventually eliﬁiﬁate the waste materials that are destroyed.
Althéugh a great deal of research and engineering_willlbe
required to reach the ultimate goal, it may be attained if
progress can be made step by step.

I strongly urge the Assembly Committee on Air and.Water
Pollution and Public Health to favorably consider legislation
thap will discourage the usé of disposablé containers. for
- beverages. Regardless of the pfoportion‘such containers

constitute.of the.solid waste problem, this is an area where
" conservation can be practiced now while research is being
conduéted'&ﬁ ﬁeasﬁres that will reduce or recyle other solid
waste, |

Considerable volunteer effort and publicity have been
invelved with prcgrams to fecycle'disposable beverage con-
tainers. In actuality, these_efforts are a subsidy to the
beverage’inaustry since it should be responsible for the waste
it generates, és was thebcase before the popularity of dis-
posable containers. The container deposit system is a fair
and equitable method 6f\sharing the-respon§ibility for control
of the cbntainers between the producer and the consumer. The
éonsumer,'faced with the deposit incentive, will return the
container; The container can then be redeemed-~thus reclaimed

4
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- Page Two -

ahd re-used, eliminating théreby wasfefui production of
another throﬁ—away container, Volunteer recycling efforts
are important iﬁ'calliﬁg attention fo the need for environ-
mental protectioh and conservation of resources, but in -
actuality they are extremely expensive and, at best, are
merely symbolic.

Some municipalities have made an effort to reduce the
use of disposable beverage containers. Such efforts, how-
ever, are probably going to fail because of the size of the
Jurisdictions. An effort by a major State such as New Jersey,
: howéver, could be an important step in iﬁproving the environ-
ment and conserving resources in our country.

We mustvhot comprqmise our growing obligations to

protect and preserve our environment in favor of any vested

Alffed A, Hadinger, fbuncilman
Village of Ridgewocd

profit motivated opponents.
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STATEMENT BY -
EDWARD J. MITCHELL

VICE PRESIDENT, CORPORATE ENVIRONMENTAL AFFAIRS
AMERICAN CAN COMPANY

BEFORE THE
- NEW JERSEY ASSEMBLY COMMITTEE
. ON .
AIR AND WATER POLLUTION AND PUBLIC HEALTH

RE: A.B. 2212

TRENTON, NEW JERSEY

SEPTEMBER 22, 1971
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Mr. Chairman, ladies and gentlemen of this Committee:

My name is Edward J. Mitchell; I am an
employee of the American Can Company, and appear
here as a witness on behalf of the can manufacturing

industry.

I welcome ﬁhe opportunity to appear before
this Committee today, to present testimony in opposition
to the passage of Assembly Bill 2212. The American Can
Company, chartefea in}l901 asha ﬁEW Jersey corporation,
is and haé been‘é fesponsiblé cdrporate cifizen in the
State of New Jersey for the past 70 years; and has con-
tributed substantially in the way of payroll and tax
dollars to this State for these many years. The can
manufacturing industry employs over 7,000 people in this
State, with an annual payroll in excess of $80,000,000.
We as an industry, along with our employees and the con-
sumers and citizens of this Sﬁate have a vital stake in

the outcome of this legislation.
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My company, as well as other companies in the
Packaging Industry have long sharéd the concern of people
like yoﬁrselves, with the problems of solid waste and
- litter which, unfortunately, have only recently been
’brought to light in the eyes of the average citizen. I
am deeply concerned, however, fhat Bill 2212 addresses
itself to what the problem ié not about...Assembly Bill 2212
indiscrimiﬁately singles out non-returnable beer and beverage
containers llg'ghg ostensible problem in our overall environ-

mental concerns.

Undef closer scrutiny, I trust it will become
obvious to the members of this committee that the non-
returnable beer and beverage container is but a miniscule
proportion of the real problem facing society today -~

that is -- the problem of solid waste disposal.

Perhaps I can place Bill 2212 in proportion to what
the problem really is by making some simple and well-documented
observations...A study made by the Bureau of Solid Waste
Management states that non-returnable beer and beverage

containers represent but a mere 1.3% of the nation's total

solid waste. The bill being discussed by the Committee
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today totally ignores the 98.7% of solid waste which remains.

ggig_ig,what the problem is about. Almost évery day we hear
éries from well-intentioned, but obviously uninfo;med citizens,
that we are being buried in our own garbage. This statement
is patently ridiculous on its face; but at the.same time, it
does serve to bring to the forefront a situation which requires .
the immediate concern of not only this cOmmittee, but of all

society within this country.

We are presently the‘wealthiest, best fed, best housed,
and most technologically-advanced nation in the'history of
civilization. At the same time, we have been content to
handle the 360,000,000,tons of solid waste generated in this
country every year in almost precisely the same fashion as ‘

solid waste was handled 2,000 years ago. I repeat -- This

is what the problem is about.

Industry, along with labor, have been strong
supporters of the National Center for Resource Recovery --
an ofganization which has been.chartered to address itself
directly to a systems approach to solid waste dispoéal,f
There are any number of pilot. projects operating through- .

out the country today, which are designed to develop a
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workable system of resolving the problem and thereby
relieving the municipalities of the}burdensome cost
involved in waste disposal. I£ ié expected that in the
near future, the National Center will be making some
dramatic‘proposals which wili includé components of the
most advanced‘technélogy currently existing in present
pilot projects, and which will present a praétical and
overall long-range éolution to'the extremely complex
problem of solid waste disbosal. vMany of these pilot
projects have beeﬁ'provén to be both technologically and
economically feasible. 'The cities of Atlanta, Chicago,
Oakland and Sacramento, among others, alréady reclaim
all of the steel containers in their garbage dumps through
a system of mégnetic separation.’ This reclaimed steel is
then sold to the steel.industry as scrap to be recycled,
or to the copper industry as a necessary ingredient in the

precipitation of copper from low-grade ore.

In Franklin, Ohio, there is currently in operation
‘whatbis commonly known as the Black-Clawson systeﬁ, which
successfully classifies and separates pulped fiber, glass
and metals df all sorts for subsequent fecycling. This
system takes care of all the garbage in Franklin. Of even

more exciting potential is the CPU-400 system pilot operation
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which shreds garbage,'cléssifyiné the péﬁﬁicles into
glass, metals and other vélﬁgbie catégofies’and‘ﬁges the
balaﬂce of the fefuse as fuel for muéh-neededbenergy;v
Incidentally, the organic wastébfrom this system has a | -

caloric value one~third that of high-grade coal.

We know, therefore, that we have suééessfully~
found technological breakthroughsvfo fesolve‘the real
problem -- solid wasﬁe. A sound systéms’approach‘goes
right to the heart of the problem. It does notvgouge
out the eyes of the monster and permit the remaining

99% to flounder blindly about seeking a home.

Many of the propohents of»Bill 2212 would | -
have us belieQe that a ban on‘nonfreﬁurnéble containers
and 5 mandatoryvtaX'on feturnable éontainers would soive
‘the\litter problem. We‘in industry share the concern for
the disgraceful litter situatign p;evailing in our environ-
ment -- not only in New Jersey,vbut elsewheré“—- but logic
suggests to us that Bill 2212 is a simple‘solﬁtion where no *
simple problem exists. Litter is a separate problem. Solid
waste is-orgaﬁized garbagé...Littef isbdisorganiéea garbage. -

Litter is a people problem...a human behavioral problem.
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We do not know why people litter. We do know, however,
that people will litter whether the container is non-

returnable or carries a deposit.

A study conducted under one of the most presﬁigious
organizations in America -- the Natioﬁal Academy of Sciences--
concludes that less than 20% of the composition of roadside
litter is made up of beer and beverage cans and bottles.

The amazing statistic in this study is that 42% of all beer
and beverage bottles found in roadside litter were returnable
bottles...yes, deposit bottles. In 1ight of this fact, how
can anyone logically reach the conclusion that a mandatory

deposit will solve the litter problem?

How does Bill 2212 address itself to the other
80% of litter that is not beer or beverage containers?

It simply ignores 80% of the problem.

The facts clearly show that a ban or a deposit
system will not eliminate litter. Education, enforcement .
and equipment are the only answers. To this end, industry-'
haf been, and continues to be a strong supporter of mass- 
education in an endeavor to reach the estimated one per c

of the people who are litterers. This one per cent wh
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brazenly violate our surroundings are frankly just

plain slobs.

Not too many years ago, the American public
bought milk iﬁ a milk pail; oranges were available
for squeezing; peas; stringbeans and other f;esh produce
were available in season only at a premium price. The
advent of the supermarket, mass marketing and convenience
packaging brought to the American consumer an enormous
variety of nutritious foods in sanitary packages, and a
freedom of choice unparalleled in the history of mankind.
The cost of this revolution in food consumption can best .
be appreciated by considering the fact that the proportion
of the spendable dollar devoted to food consumption is
probably leés than half of what was expended thirty years

ago.

Assembly Bill 2212 would reverse this trend
dramatically. It would disrupt fantastigally the orderly, -
sanitary, efficient and economicallyfsound method of food i
.and beverage‘distribution. By definition, every container
is physicaily returnable. This wouidvinc;ude‘not only beer

and beverage cans and bottles, but also paper milk containers,
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orange crates, grapefruit bushels and a myriad of other
vessels which would contain products covered by this bill.

By last coﬁnt, there were 61,321 retail establishments in
the State of New Jersey; including supermarkets, food stores,
eating and drinking establishments, etc., where produdts are

dispensed that are covered by the deposit features of this bill.

If the consumer were to return for redemption all
of the used cans, bottles,vmilk containers - dirty and un-
washed - half-empty and contaminated with bacteria, the
merchants of the State would have a spectacle of 61,321 privately-
owned garbage dumés infested wirh vermin, rodents, bacteria
and contamination in which they would be expected to continue

Selling sanitary food in the normal course of business.

. It is wvirtually indisputable that a regression to
deposit containers will have the immediate impact of increasing
costs to the consumer - particularly in urban areas and ghettos
where the consumer citizen is least able to afford it. It
also represents the destruction of major portions of the
container-making industry with the consequent loss of thousands
of New Jersey jobs and millions upon millions of dollars in

wages. What for?
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We know, you know, there is a problem with
solid waste mismanagement. Everyone knows there is
a problem with litter. I respectfully submit, members
of this Committee, that Assembly Bill 2212 is what the
problem is not about.

# # #
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WHELEAC Assembly :ill 2212, a bill prohibiting the sale, offer for sale or
atteapt to sell any beverzage in & non=returnatle beve:a;e contoirer effective
Jan. 1, 1972, will be the‘subject of a public hesring in the Assebly Chambers
in Prencon, .«J. at 10:00 A, . or Sept. 22, 1é71; end ‘

VHELEAS: Two maﬁufactarerea ot uon-rotarnable containars, exploying a great

number of Salem Couity roesidents, are vituated within Saler County, namely,

WHELEAS: This bill if eaacted intn law in Hew Jersey could createc a revere

econoric nardsh -~ o these wanufacturers of noan-retvrnatle contalners with

regard to increaccd sanngacturdng cocots, possible reductlon in the labor work

force an: curtail-ent o7 any plont expansion; and ' '

HUHBasAS: The ccouonlc health of Salen County is dependent vpon a business

climate wiich ic concucive tv full employment =nd sdu;d,mqnajemcnt of manufacturing
costs, both oi whick would suifer uy the enrctings of prbitrory leglslatior; and
WhekEid: The <alem County :vard of Chosen Freeuolders objects to any bill which
wbuld create tihic unfavorable clémate, |

LOW Trwwwldin o Lo Wb oLVIR 0 0 TUE SALDM OOUNTY I0ATD OF CIONEN 6 DRESLDTRAS

(1) That it oppoces the cuactaent of Assesbly 411 2212, which iz 'mfair and
ovpresive tos lacal incductry,.

(2) That it urges tie tcmerel adsseubly ol tie =tatvs of Lew Jersey ‘to vote against
tlhids Lili's cuzclment.

2 adviced o the

(3) That the Agsc . blymen representing thie Listrict Za
content oi tiie rooolutiocon and to makek¥%w¥hc rublic iearinz to be held of

tile ooard's op osition to such opiresive leglslaticn.

(4) That copies oi thic resolotion he forwarcde! to tre fonorehle Xenmmeth i:lack,
Asseaxtlynan District'BA, senator vehn A, Vlite, Dierrict 34,
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Mrs. Betty A. Little
Testimony for
Citizens for Conservation
11 Porta Pl., Basking Ridge, N.J. 07920
Regarding A-2212, a bill to ban hoh4returnable beverage
containers hearings Sept. 22, 1971 before the N. J. Assebmly
Comm. on Air and Water Pollutione

I represent Citizens for Consérvation which is concerned
with the total evironment and affiliated with about 15 other
conservation groups of a similar nature principally in the
Passaic River Basin. My name is Mrs. Betty A. Little. I am
an environmental economist with twenty years experience in
business and finance and conservation, a member of the State
AAUW Board, its Dollarsworth Chairman, a member of the AAUW
National AdVisory Comm. on Finance, a Trustee for the Passaic
River Coalition, é member of the Board of Advisors of the N.J.
School Consortium on Environmental Educaticn and a member of
the American Economic Association.

As Dr. Calvin H. Ward has stated "...We can no longer
tolerate the once through system of utilization because we
have already passed the limit which the natural cycle can
handle." Now if we change or pollute a resource, it must be
purified, regenerated or recycled so that eventually we can
reuse it - we live in a closed system and what we have here
is all that we will ever have.

The many small conservation groups throughout the state
which are participating in voluntary monthly bottle, can and
paper collectionshrecognize this need and express their commitment
through these recycling drives but we must all recognize the
voluntary programs of this nature can not possibly do the job.

If any State in this nation needs to face up to a problem-
N.J. needs to face up to the solid waste problem and thereby
provide the leadership for a nation. Many of our sanitary
landfills have a life of only 4 or 5 years and yet 100,000
persons a year are entering our population each generating an

estimated 3.5 pounds per capita of solid waste per day. Sixty
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per cent of.our:solid‘wastefingenerated by Esséx,Bergen;
Hudson,. Middlesex and Union Counties whére populétion density
reaches 55,000 per square mile. What are»we-dOing‘torpfoduce
the knowledge and the technology to handle the total problem,
not just the 7 per cent represented by the glass and container
wastes? , ,

According to the Scientist Institute for Public Information
("A Brief Introduction to Solid Waste Mangement Pfoblems‘

April 17, 1971") "The refuse disposal industry consisting of
many small contractors, is possibly the most primitive major
industry in the country:." They found that none of Fortunes
top 100 corﬁorations were significantly involved'in,solid
wasté management. = Somehow we must motivate the private
sector to produce the knowledge and technology needed for New
Jersey now. S '

In May a resecarch team from Citizens for Conservation
traveled to College Park, Maryland to visit the U.S. Bureau
of Mines recycling plant. This process incorporates incineration
which is unacceptable. It is a crude system developed with
virtually no Federal grants and yet it is one of the top two
projects in the United States. This is not an answer to our
sclid waste program-We have not made the financial commitment
on a national level to solve these problems.

According to the Second Annual report of the Council on
Environmental Quality, August 1971, the whole nation is moving
more and more from an economy of reuse to an economy of
"non~returnables."  We are traveling fast in the wrong direction.

This bill has been much discussed as important legislation
to protect the environment and it may well be that at another:
time in another State it would be the answer. But it does not
seem adequate to us to meet the pressing problems in N.J.
today and it may, like the phosphate and detergent situation,
prove to be untenable.

We suggest that the Committee revise this bill to reflect
our need to build a new recycling industry in N.J. and
attempt to develop legislation which will be a beéinning
towards solving the total solid waste problems in this State.
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Mr. Chairman, Committee members:

We young people, appalled at the upward spiral of
the solid waste material, are very concerned for the future.

Statistics show that solid waste constitutes a
large part of the pollution problem. '

By eliminating non-returnable bottles we will not
only reduce, greatly, our total solid waste, we will
contribute to the cleanliness of New Jersey, especially -in
parks and along the highway system.

Banning the Tetail sale of non-returnable bottles
now, would be to re-introduce the popular activity of 20 years
ago, when every kid on the block was collecting discarded
empty bottles for their cash value at turn-in time.

The Youth Fellowship of Mendham
‘ Township
The Mendham Borough Conservation
Committee “
‘The North Jersey Conservation
Foundation
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September 19, 1971

Committee on Air and Water PQllgtion
N. J. Assembly |
State House » .

Trenton, New Jersey 08608

Dear Sirs: v
I am most anxious to register my support of the
passage of Bill A-2212, ' As a school teacher at the Newark
Academy and a frequent volunteer at local projects, I have
worked intimately with many aspects of recycling. Despite
all the good will and time involved, I know that these token
efforts by civic and school groups are not making a dent in
the mountains of solid waste that are choking our small state.
Roadsides are unsightly, wetlands are a common target in
our frantic search for fill area, and beaches are often
strewn with virtually indestructible plastic containers or
aluminum cans.

We must begin now teo pay the full cost of our thtow-away

way of life.
Non-returnable beverage containers are not any longer
tolerable in New Jersey.

Very truly yours,
John W. Straham III

P.A. I would appreciate these sentiments being entered into
the hearing record of September 22, 1971.
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“September 17, 1971

Dear Sir: »
I want to‘express_my approval of the bill now before the
Air and Water Pollution and Public Health Committee prohibiting

the sale of non-returnable no-deposit bottles and cans in
the State - | '

Please have copies made for each member of said committee.

Mrs. Victor Kress and 23 others
366 Passaic Avenue

W. Caldwell, New Jersey 07006
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September 18, 1971

Mr., Thomas M. O' Nelll
Admlnlstratlve As31stant to
The Commissioner

Dear Mr. O'Neill: ‘ »

Sorry that we willabe‘Unable to attend the hearing on
September 22, l97l but enclosed all 68 names of those who are
in favor of the passage of the bill.

Of the many reasons people gave, the following stood out.
Exploding bottles because of their thinness and cluttered
lawns each mornlng from the contalners thrown from passing
cars during the nlght , Lo

We had two who did not agree. One was a Scout leader
from Clifton, New Jersey who felt that the revenue his troop
gets for picking up old bottles, was more important. Another
said that he wash“t worried about his childrens' generation,
they could worry about 1t themselvesg "

' ' ' Very truly yours,

Mﬁﬁ & Mrs. Albert J. Neiford
and 69 others

253



kﬂenapyelgrail Gardeq Club

€ West‘Eﬁd Avenuév
Septermber 14, 1971

Yro. Tiomes Y. C'Neill ,

Adi -nistretive Assistent to the Corrissioner
Lepartient of Environmentel Protection
Trenton, N.J. 08625

Deer Sir:

' The Lenepe Treil Gerden Club of Surrit, New Providence
enc Murrey Hill wishes to go c¢n record es being in
favor of Eill #A-2212 which bens the use ef non-returnatle
teverege conteiners in the Stete of llew Jersey.

'Prv truly yours,

;A?‘//?f /g(__ //

4I‘St . . hrl"'f”t, Jro
Secretery
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HAROLD L. COLBURN, M. D.

164 MADISON AVENUE 47 WAGON BRIDGE RUN
MOUNT HOLLY, N. J. - 08060 MOORESTOWN, N. J. 08057
267-7331 235-9229

September 22, 1971

Committee on Air and Water Pollution
and Public Health

The General Assembly, State-of
New Jersey

The State House

Trenton, New Jersey

Mr. Chalrman and Members of the Committee:

: : Mr Wynn Kennedy and T thank you for
the Opportunlty to submit our opinions to you. I.
am Harold Colburn, M.,D, of Moorestown, New Jersey.
Mr, Kennedy -and I are candidates for the General
Assembly from District 4-C of Burlington County,
New Jersey.

' . Mr, Kennedy and I are v1tally 1nterested
in the improvement ofuour environment. We feel that
firm measures must be taken as quickly as possible
‘to reverse the unhealthy trends.which have been:
allowed to continue for much too long. We support
Assembly Bill 2212, - We suggest, however, that the
effective date be chosen to allow industry to use
existing container supplies and to retool, This will
be a major change for them.

Flnally, ‘we belleve that product dis-
posal must be planned along with product manufac-
. ture. :
Thank you,

f (oo

arold L. Colburn, M.D.

ﬁ?ﬁ%mkéé%gay(/
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September 17, 1971

Mr. Thomas M. 0'Neill

Administrative Assistant. to the Commissioner
State of New Jersey

Department of Environmental Protection
Trenton, New Jersey 08625

Dear Mr. O'Neill:

Thank you for your letter of September 9, 1971 and the
attached copy of Assembly Bill 2212. A few months ago, I sent
a petition to the Governor with many signatures of my co-workers,
protesting the dumping of sludge in the ocean. Although it is -
impossible to poll all of the same people due to job changes
and vacations, I talked to many and all are in favor of Assembly
No. 2212.

We cannot make the hearing on September 22, 1971, but we
are making our support of Assembly No. 2212 known with this letter.

It is extremely gratifiing to receive letters from the office
of the Commissioner letting us know that action is being taken on
problems such as this and to keep us informed. Please keep my
name on your mailing list so that my co-workers and myself can
lend our support to your office. Again I thank you.

Sincezely,
/f‘f//
7 John T. Pentony

27 Oliver Street
Chatham, New Jersey 07928
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. NATURE'S NEWS

571 Davidson Road
Piscataway, New Jersey 08854
(201) 463 - 9370

o Sept 20,I97I
Dear Mr. Mattek: |

We the editors of Nature's News support Assembly Bill

0.2212. Arguments in support of the bill can be presented

by using banishment of natural resources and a overwhelming
solid-waste problem as reasons for passing the Bill.

Howevern, what we want to nelay 44 the survey of public response
to Assembly BLLE 2212. The nesults of the survey follLow: 272 of
* the 300 have never even heared of the BiLL a whopping 90.5%.

Once the Bi£L was explained to them, these and the nemaining 9.5%

P

who knew about the BLLL. 194 people on 64.7% favonred it; 40

- people on 13.3%‘oppo$ad it; 66 people on 22% had no opindon.
The above has been published in Natunrne's News Vo£.T No. 9610

Since this 48 a democracy public opinion should also count when

4L comes to cleaning-up Lthe ENVIRONMENT,

d&tané
LLnda/jgi /<f?;é2527

MZgu Z A, SantoA Ph.D.
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meste'rnfuniun

I T . Telegram

1005A EDT SEP 23 71 PAOS5 | | ‘

P MPAO21 FH NL PD TDMP SPARTA NJER  SEPT 2322

ASSEMBLYMAN KENNETH T WILSON =~ -

STATE HOUSE TRENTON NJER | :
WE STRONGLY SUPPORT THE PASSAGE OF BILL A2212 AS A FIRST STEP .
TOWARDS SOLVING OUR SOLID WASTE CRISIS THE MUNICIPLE GOVERNMENT
OF SPARTA HAS RECYCLED OVER 75,000 LBS OF BROWN AND CLEAR
GLASS SINCE JAN 1 1971 CITIZENS HAVE BROUGHT THESE MATERIALS
TO BINS WITHOUT A GREAT CEAL OF SOLICITATIONe WE EXPCET THIS
VOLUMN TO INCREASE GREATLY AS OUR GROUP COMPLETES PUBLICITY
PROGRAMS AND EXPERIMENTAL PICUP CDRIVES LATER THIS MONTH. WE
RE CERTAIN THAT THE MEMBERS OF CUR STATE

MRS WATER R SCHAEFER PRESIDENT SPARTA ACTION VOLU NTEERS
FCR ECCLOGY 23 WALLKILL RD SPARTA NJER

SF-1201 (R5-69)

| mesfemtﬂ . | T Tele’gram‘

T 817P EDT SEP 21 71 PA234
P WUA220 FH PDF SALEM NJER 21 815P EODT
THE HONORABLE KENNETH BLACK, DLY 75 DLR 9AM SURE
ASSEMBLY CHAMBERS STATE HOUSE TRENTON NJER |

AT A EMERGENCY MEETING THIS DAY THE MAJORITY MEMBERSHIP OF ¥
THE SALEM COUNTY BOARD OF CHOSEN FREEHOLDERS REQUEST TO BE
PUT ON RECORD AS OPPOSING ASSEMBLY BILL NO 2212. FORMAL RESOLUTION .

WILL FOLLOW BY MAIL BY ORDER OF THIS BOARD
W R SWAVERLY CLERK.
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